
  

 

 Joanne Roney OBE 
Chief Executive 
Telephone: 0161 234 3006 
j.roney@manchester.gov.uk 
PO Box 532, Town Hall 
Extension, Manchester 
M60 2LA 

 
Tuesday, 23 January 2024 

 
Dear Councillor / Honorary Alderman, 
 
Meeting of the Council – Wednesday, 31st January, 2024 
 
You are summoned to attend a meeting of the Council which will be held at 10.00 am on 
Wednesday, 31st January, 2024, in The Council Chamber, Level 2, Town Hall Extension. 
  
1.   The Lord Mayor's Announcements and Special Business   

 
 

 
2.   Interests 

To allow members an opportunity to declare any personal, 
prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interest they might have in 
any items which appear on this agenda; and record any items 
from which they are precluded from voting as a result of Council 
Tax or Council rent arrears. Members with a personal interest 
should declare that at the start of the item under consideration. If 
members also have a prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interest 
they must withdraw from the meeting during the consideration of 
the item 
 

 

 
3.   Minutes 

To submit for approval the minutes of the meeting held on 29 
November 2023. 
 

7 - 14 

 
4.   Notice of Motion - Extension of the Franchise - Our Home 

Our Vote Residence - Based Voting Motion 
This Council notes: 
  
            That all our residents, no matter their nationality, bring 

significant value to our area. 
            37% of Mancunians were born abroad and 12% are from the 

European Union (EU). They live, work, study, make use of 
public services, and call Manchester their home.  

            Many of our foreign-born residents from EU and 
Commonwealth countries can vote in our local elections.  

            However, our residents born in non-EU and non-
Commonwealth countries cannot.  

            Scotland and Wales have implemented residence-based 
voting rights where all residents with lawful immigration 
status have the right to vote in local and devolved national 
elections. 

 

Public Document Pack



Council 
 

 

            A poll conducted by Number Cruncher showed that 63% of 
people agree that all residents should have the right to vote 
in local elections in England and Northern Ireland. 

            The current complexity in voting eligibility causes confusion 
and will reduce voter turnout in local elections amongst 
migrant voters, a group which already has a 
disproportionately lower voter registration rate compared to 
British voters. 

  
The Council resolves to call upon our leader, Councillor Bev Craig 
to:- 
  
            To write to the Minister of State for the Cabinet Office, 

requesting that the Elections Bill be amended to extend local 
election voting rights in England and Northern Ireland to all 
qualifying foreign nationals in line with voting rights in 
Scotland and Wales.” 

            Write to the Minister of State at the Department for Levelling 
Up, Housing and Communities requesting that the franchise 
for local elections be extended in England and Northern 
Ireland to all qualifying foreign nationals in line with eligibility 
criteria in Scotland and Wales. This would ensure a UK-wide 
and fair approach so that all our residents who are also our 
council taxpayers are enfranchised. 

  
Proposed by Councillor Bayunu, seconded by Councillor 
Abdullatif and supported by Councillors Johnson, Wiest, 
Nunney, Northwood and Kilpatrick. 
  

5.   Notice of Motion - Post Office Scandal and Lies 
All of Manchester and the country have been horrified at the lies 
and injustices perpetrated by the Post Office against 900 
postmasters. 
  
At the height of the scandal from 2010 to 2012 the Postal Affairs 
Minister was Sir Ed Davey.  The record shows that he refused to 
meet with postmaster Alan Bates who led the campaign for 
justice. 
  
The City Council calls on Ed Davey::- 
  
            To apologise to Mr. Bates; 
            To apologise to the 900 postmasters whose lives were 

shattered by the lies and criminal harassment of the Post 
Office. 

  
Proposed by Councillor Karney, seconded by Councillor 
Hilal and supported by Councillors I Robinson, Richards, 
Curley, Flanagan, Rahman and Hitchen. 
 
 

 

 



Council 
 

 

6.   Notice of Motion - Save the Housing Support Fund: Stop 
Government cutting vital support for families 
This Council notes: 
 
 
            Since 2010, cuts and decisions have led to rising levels of 

poverty in the UK, made event worse by the Cost-of-Living 
Crisis. 

            In Manchester, we have long worked hard to increase 
opportunities and reduce poverty. Despite our best efforts 
over 40% of our children live in poverty. With over 41,000 
residents likely to be living with disposable income of less 
than £30 a month and a further 60,000 who potentially have 
less than £124 disposal income a month, the situation is 
acute. 

            This council works hard to support those in need and last 
year alone the council spent over £50 million to support 
residents in hardship and reduce poverty Examples include 
our freephone Cost of living advice line, our food support 
response service and free school meals for children in the 
school holidays. 

            The Government is now threatening to scrap the Household 
Support Fund in March 2024. In Manchester we use this to 
provide support to around 60,000 residents in the form of: 
            40,000 children and young people receiving free school 

meals holiday support; 
            12,500 vulnerable households receiving cost of living 

support payments; 
            6,000 children and young people accessing additional 

Holiday Activity Fund support;  
            400 care leavers receiving an income top up; 
            Valuable support to charities working in our 

communities. 
            This support makes a real difference to some of 

Manchester’s most vulnerable residents in managing cost of 
living pressures. 

  
This Council is concerned that across Manchester families are 
living under the threat of losing this vital lifeline, and that many 
charities and voluntary groups in Manchester depend on HSF to 
deliver emergency cost of living support to families who are at risk 
of financial hardship. 
  
This Council resolves:- 
  
            To restate the fact that political choices have seen levels of 

poverty rise in the UK. 
            To call on the Government to provide urgent clarity and 

reassurance to these families and community groups reliant 
on this funding and extend the Household Support Fund 
beyond its current end date of March 2024. 

 



Council 
 

 

            That the Leader of the Council is requested to write to the 
Government to restate Manchester’s deep worry that this 
lifeline for many will be scrapped. 

            To campaign alongside the LGA, Labour MPs and 
community groups to save the HSF. 

  
Proposed by Councillor Midgely seconded by Councillor 
Marsh and supported by Councillors Akbar, Bridges, Craig, 
Igbon, Rahman, Mahadi Mahamed, Irene Robinson, Butt and 
Taylor. 
  

7.   Proceedings of the Executive 
To submit the minutes of the Executive on 13 December 2023 
and 17 January 2024 (to follow). 
 

15 - 24 

 
8.   Questions to Executive Members and Others under 

Procedural Rule 23 
To receive answers to any questions that councillors have raised 
in accordance with Procedural Rule 23. 
 

 

 
9.   Scrutiny Committees 

To note the minutes of the following committees: 
  
            Economy & Regeneration – 5 December 2023 & 9 January 

2024  
            Communities & Equalities – 5 December 2023 & 9 January 

2024 (to follow) 
            Children & Young People – 6 December 2023 & 10 January 

2024 (to follow) 
            Health – 6 December & 10 January 2024 
            Resources & Governance – 7 December 2024 & 11 January 

2024 
            Environment, Climate Change & Neighbourhoods – 7 

December 2023 & 11 January 2024 
 

25 - 126 

 
10.   Proceedings of Committees 

To submit for approval the minutes of the following meetings and 
consider recommendations made by the committee: 
  
            Audit Committee – 28 November 2023 
            Planning and Highways Committee – 14 December 2023 & 

18 January 2024 (to follow) 
            Health and Wellbeing Board – 24 January 2024 (to follow) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

127 - 152 

 



Council 
 

 

11.   Key Decisions Report 
The report of the City Solicitor is enclosed. 
 
. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

153 - 156 

 
 

Yours faithfully, 

 
Joanne Roney OBE 
Chief Executive 

 
 



Council 
 

 

Information about the Council  
The Council is composed of 96 councillors with one third elected three years in four. 
Councillors are democratically accountable to residents of their ward. Their overriding duty 
is to the whole community, but they have a special duty to their constituents, including 
those who did not vote for them. 
 
Six individuals with previous long service as councillors of the city have been appointed 
Honorary Aldermen of the City of Manchester and are entitled to attend every Council 
meeting. They do not however have a vote. 
 
All councillors meet together as the Council under the chairship of the Lord Mayor of 
Manchester. There are seven meetings of the Council in each municipal year and they are 
open to the public. Here councillors decide the Council’s overall strategic policies and set 
the budget each year. 
 
Agenda, reports and minutes of all Council meetings can be found on the Council’s 
website www.manchester.gov.uk 
 
Members of the Council 
Councillors:- 
 
Y Dar (Chair), Andrews (Deputy Chair), Abdullatif, Akbar, Azra Ali, Ahmed Ali, Nasrin Ali, 
Shaukat Ali, Alijah, Amin, Appleby, Bano, Bayunu, Bell, Benham, Brickell, Bridges, Butt, 
Chambers, Chohan, Collins, Connolly, Cooley, Craig, Curley, Davies, Doswell, Douglas, 
Evans, Flanagan, Fletcher, Foley, Gartside, Good, Green, Grimshaw, Hacking, Hassan, 
Hewitson, Hilal, Hitchen, Holt, Hughes, Hussain, Igbon, Ilyas, Iqbal, Johns, Johnson, 
T Judge, Kamal, Karney, Kilpatrick, Kirkpatrick, Lanchbury, Leech, J Lovecy, Ludford, 
Lynch, Lyons, Marsh, McCaul, McHale, Midgley, Moran, Muse, Noor, Northwood, Nunney, 
Ogunbambo, H Priest, Rahman, Rawlins, Rawson, Razaq, Reeves, Reid, Riasat, 
Richards, I Robinson, T Robinson, Rowles, Sadler, M Sharif Mahamed, Sheikh, 
Shilton Godwin, Simcock, Stogia, Taylor, Wheeler, Wiest, Whiston, White, Wills, Wilson 
and Wright 
 
Honorary Aldermen of the City of Manchester –  
Hugh Barrett, Andrew Fender, Paul Murphy OBE, Nilofar Siddiqi and Keith Whitmore. 
 
Further Information 
For help, advice and information about this meeting please contact the meeting Clerk: 
 Andrew Woods 
 Tel: 0161 234 3011 
 Email: andrew.woods@manchester.gov.uk 
 
This agenda was issued on Tuesday, 23 January 2024 by the Governance and Scrutiny 
Support Unit, Manchester City Council, Level 2, Town Hall Extension (Library Walk 
Elevation), Manchester M60 2LA 
 

http://www.manchester.gov.uk/


Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Council  29 November 2023 

Council 
 
Minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday, 29 November 2023 
 
 
Present: 
 
The Right Worshipful, the Lord Mayor Councillor Y Dar – in the Chair 
 
Councillors:  
Andrews, Abdullatif, Akbar, Azra Ali, Ahmed Ali, Nasrin Ali, Shaukat Ali, Alijah, Amin, 
Appleby, Bano, Bayunu, Bell, Benham, Brickell, Bridges, Butt, Chambers, Chohan, 
Collins, Connolly, Cooley, Craig, Curley, Davies, Doswell, Evans, Flanagan, Fletcher, 
Foley, Gartside, Good, Grimshaw, Hacking, Hassan, Hewitson, Hilal, Hitchen, Holt, 
Hughes, Hussain, Ilyas, Iqbal, Johns, Johnson, T Judge, Kamal, Karney, Kilpatrick, 
Kirkpatrick, Lanchbury, Leech, J Lovecy, Ludford, Lynch, Lyons, Marsh, McCaul, 
McHale, Midgley, Moran, Muse, Noor, Northwood, Nunney, Ogunbambo, H Priest, 
Rahman, Rawlins, Rawson, Razaq, Reeves, Reid, Riasat, Richards, I Robinson, 
T Robinson, Rowles, Sadler, M Sharif Mahamed, Sheikh, Shilton Godwin, Simcock, 
Stogia, Taylor, Wheeler, Wiest, Whiston, White, Wills, Wilson and Wright 
 
 
CC/23/80 The Lord Mayor's Announcements and Special Business - United 

Cross Party Call for peace in Israel and Palestine  
 
The Lord Mayor invited the Leader of the Council to read out a united cross party 
statement calling for peace in Israel and Palestine, a sustained ceasefire on all sides, 
the release of all hostages, access for humanitarian aid and efforts to secure lasting 
peace.  The Lord Mayor then invited the leaders of each political group and 
Councillor Abdullatif, as joint signatories to the statement, to briefly address the 
meeting. 
 
CC/23/81 The Lord Mayor's Announcements and Special Business - Death of 

Sir Bobby Charlton  
 
The Lord Mayor invited those present at the meeting to observe a minute’s silence in 
memory of the recent and very sad passing of Sir Bobby Charlton which is been a 
great loss to thegame of football, Manchester and the nation. He is a true legend of 
the game and is greatly missed by all football fans. Sir Bobby Charlton had been 
made an Honorary Freeman of the City on 3 December 2008.   
 
CC/23/82 The Lord Mayor's Announcement and Special Business - former 

Councillor and Lord Mayor Patricia Conquest and former 
Councillor Keith Barnes  

 
The Lord Mayor invited all those present to stand for a minute silence in memory of 
former Councillor and past Lord Mayor, Patricia Conquest and former Councillor, 
Keith Barnes.  Patricia Conquest served as a Councillor from May 1979 to May 1999 
representing Miles Platting Ward and Central Ward.  She was Lord Mayor of 
Manchester between 1988 and 1989.  Keith Barnes was elected and served as 

Page 7

Item 3



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Council  29 November 2023 

Councillor for Brooklands between 1980 to 1982 and was later elected to serve 
Northenden Ward from 1982 to 1987. 
 
CC/23/83 The Lord Mayor's Announcement and Special Business - launch of 

the Council's new Age Friendly Strategy - Manchester a City for 
Life 2023-2028  

 
The Lord Mayor invited Councillor Thomas Robinson, Executive Member for Healthy 
Manchester and Adult Social Care to speak on the launch of the Council’s new Age 
Friendly Strategy. The Council viewed two short films and then heard from Elaine 
Unegbu (Chair, Age Friendly Manchester Older People’s Board) and Councillor Joan 
Davies (Lead Member for Age Friendly Manchester). 
  
Following the presentation, the Lord Mayor invited questions from members. 
  
The Lord Mayor thanked Elaine Unegbu and Councillors Davies and T Robinson for 
their informative and helpful presentation.  
 
CC/23/84 Minutes  
 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 4 October 2023 were approved as a correct 
record and signed by the Lord Mayor. 
 
CC/23/85 Notice of Motion - Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder (FASD) 

Awareness  
 
Councillor Alijah submitted the following motion, which was seconded by Councillor 
Doswell. 
  
Manchester is proud to be a trauma-informed city but we cannot support the majority 
of residents with trauma and break the cycle of adverse childhood experiences 
unless we are FASD and Neurobehaviourally informed too.   
  
FASD, Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder is a hidden epidemic in Greater Manchester.  
A Salford University study published in 2021 estimated that up to 4% of the 
population is likely to have FASD – that’s 2.5 times higher than autism.  The average 
life expectancy for individuals with FASD is only 34 years of age because they do not 
receive the interventions and support they need. FASD is underdiagnosed and little 
understood by professionals and frontline workers. There is an underserved stigma 
attached to it and often professionals, including medical, only learn about it as a very 
tiny part of their training. 
  
FASD happens when a pregnant woman consumes alcohol.  Alcohol crosses the 
placenta and interferes with the development of the fetus, particularly the developing 
brain.  This has a significant impact on the executive brain function – the part 
responsible for organisation, self-regulation, working memory and flexible thinking.  It 
also results in some incredible strengths which, if a person with FASD is given 
support, may be developed and realised, such as creativity. 
  

Page 8

Item 3



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Council  29 November 2023 

The mother is blameless and often a victim too – this is vital to note.  No mother 
knowingly damages her developing child – she drinks because she doesn’t know she 
is pregnant, doesn’t know the impact of alcohol or has an alcohol abuse disorder and 
cannot control her drinking.  We must remove the stigma. 
  
FASD is a brain and body disability with lifelong impact and up to 400 comorbidities 
including Attention Deficit Hyperactive Disorder (ADHD), Autism Spectrum Disorder 
(ASD), sensory issues including Sensory Processing Disorders (SPD), 
developmental trauma and secondary and tertiary conditions such as depression, 
anxiety, loneliness, poor academic outcomes, suicide, homelessness and 
criminality.     
  
Often individuals with FASD are diagnosed with an “alphabet soup” of labels to 
account for their behaviours but not FASD and internalise their problems leading to 
the secondary and tertiary conditions.  Where they receive support, it is not FASD or 
neurobehaviourally informed so the support fails or exacerbates their problems. 
  
Any engagement with an individual with FASD must begin with the FASD regardless 
of their secondary and tertiary conditions including trauma. This means particularly 
supporting with challenges to executive brain function. 
  
For example, individuals needing treatment for addictions need support to attend 
each appointment.  Those that have fallen into debt can’t be helped with a debt 
repayment plan unless the cause of the debt, the disability that means they need help 
with maths and organisation is addressed. Schools must work from a brain and 
nurture-based approach rather than behaviour change (rewards and sanctions). 
  
In 2022, following campaigning by groups such as the FASD Alliance, NICE 
published Quality Standards on FASD and Greater Manchester CCG have acted on 
the majority of these to prevent alcohol drinking in pregnancy.  However, there is 
much to do in the areas of follow-up and in diagnosing children and adults. 
  
Manchester council should: 
  
(1)       Explore the ability to ensure trauma informed training includes FASD and 

Neurobehavior awareness with an understanding that FASD is a brain and 
body disability and interventions and engagement need to be led by FASD-
friendly approaches. 

(2)       Explore how services can become more FASD-friendly and aware. 
(3)       Work with health services to act on NICE guidelines for early diagnosis and a 

management plan following diagnosis (NICE Quality Standard 5) “Because 
FASD has lifelong effects, a staged management plan may be needed to 
anticipate upcoming problems at planned intervals and revision should be 
considered at all transition stages in the person's life.” 

(4)       Work with schools and other organisations in providing appropriate training 
courses. 

(5)       Explore possibilities for the provision of further support for children and adults 
seeking an FASD diagnosis. 

  
On the motion being put to the vote, the Lord Mayor declared it carried unanimously. 

Page 9

Item 3



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Council  29 November 2023 

Resolution 
  
This Council agrees to:- 
  
(1)       Explore the ability to ensure trauma informed training includes FASD and 

Neurobehavior awareness with an understanding that FASD is a brain and 
body disability and interventions and engagement need to be led by FASD-
friendly approaches. 

(2)       Explore how services can become more FASD-friendly and aware. 
(3)       Work with health services to act on NICE guidelines for early diagnosis and a 

management plan following diagnosis (NICE Quality Standard 5) “Because 
FASD has lifelong effects, a staged management plan may be needed to 
anticipate upcoming problems at planned intervals and revision should be 
considered at all transition stages in the person's life.” 

(4)       Work with schools and other organisations in providing appropriate training 
courses. 

(5)       Explore possibilities for the provision of further support for children and adults 
seeking an FASD diagnosis. 

Resolution 
  
That the Council:- 
  
(1)       Explore the ability to ensure trauma informed training includes FASD and 

Neurobehavior awareness with an understanding that FASD is a brain and 
body disability and interventions and engagement need to be led by FASD-
friendly approaches. 

(2)       Explore how services can become more FASD-friendly and aware. 
(3)       Work with health services to act on NICE guidelines for early diagnosis and a 

management plan following diagnosis (NICE Quality Standard 5) “Because 
FASD has lifelong effects, a staged management plan may be needed to 
anticipate upcoming problems at planned intervals and revision should be 
considered at all transition stages in the person's life.” 

(4)       Work with schools and other organisations in providing appropriate training 
courses. 

(5)       Explore possibilities for the provision of further support for children and adults 
seeking an FASD diagnosis. 

 
CC/23/86 Proceedings of the Executive  
 
The proceedings of the Executive on 4 October, 18 October and 15 November 2023 
were submitted. The Council was asked to give particular consideration to the 
following recommendations: 
  
Exe/23/98 Capital Programme Monitoring (P6) and Update 
  
The Executive Recommends that the Council approve the following changes to the 
Council’s capital programme:- 
  
                Children’s Services - Levenshulme High School for Girls – 2024 Expansion. A 

budget increase of £2.5m funded by borrowing 

Page 10

Item 3



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Council  29 November 2023 

                Children’s Services – Chorlton High School (CHS) South – 2024 Expansion. A 
budget increase of £4.2m funded by borrowing 

                Growth and Development - Carbon Reduction Programme 2024-25. A budget 
increase of £0.5m funded by borrowing on a invest to save basis. 

  
Decisions 
  
(1)       To receive the minutes of the Executive held on 4 October, 18 October and 15 

November 2023. 
  
(2)       To approve the following changes to the Council’s capital programme:- 
  

                Children’s Services - Levenshulme High School for Girls – 2024 
Expansion. A budget increase of £2.5m funded by borrowing 

                Children’s Services – Chorlton High School (CHS) South – 2024 
Expansion. A budget increase of £4.2m funded by borrowing 

                Growth and Development - Carbon Reduction Programme 2024-25. A 
budget increase of £0.5m funded by borrowing on a invest to save basis. 

  
 
CC/23/87 Questions to Executive Members and Others under Procedural 

Rule 23  
 
Councillor White responded to a question from Councillor Taylor regarding 
announcement of the successful Levelling Up bid for Wythenshawe's Civic Centre. 
  
Councillor T Robinson responded to a question from Councillor Lyons regarding what 
measures the Council was currently undertaking to support the delivery of sexual 
health services, particularly in relation to PreP, across the city. 
  
Councillor Rawlins responded to a question from Councillor Nunney regarding what 
was being done to maintain or improve the existing infrastructure to stop roads 
flooding whenever there was persistent or heavy rain. 
  
Councillor Akbar responded to a question from Councillor Leech regarding what 
assessment had been made of the impact of the Autumn statement on future 
revenue for Manchester to spend on vital local services. 
  
Councillor Rawlins responded to a question from Councillor Leech regarding what 
was considered to be a reasonable length of time for street light repairs to be 
completed. 
  
Councillor White responded to a question from Councillor Leech regarding how many 
previous complaints from families housed in an uninhabitable home, rife with damp 
and mould, had been reviewed, how many of these complaints were being dealt with, 
and repairs carried out, to avoid further complaints being submitted to the Housing 
Ombudsman. 
  
In the absence of Councillor Igbon to provide a response to a question from 
Councillor Leech for an update on the progress made so far with the leaf removal 

Page 11

Item 3



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Council  29 November 2023 

programme, the Lord Mayor advised that a written response would be forwarded to 
the councillor. 
  
Councillor Midgely responded to a question from Councillor Good regarding prompt 
access safe temporary accommodation for those who were homeless within the city. 
  
In the absence of Councillor Igbon to provide a response to a question from 
Councillor Good regarding what the Council was doing to improve fly-tipping in 
Manchester, the Lord Mayor advised that a written response would be forwarded to 
the councillor. 
  
Councillor White responded to a question from Councillor Good regarding an update 
on the Grey Mare Lane Regeneration Steering Group. 
  
Councillor Rawlins responded to a question from Councillor Good regarding why the 
Council had refused to fund the works to fix the drainage issues on Purslow Close in 
Beswick. 
  
Councillor Rawlins responded to a question from Councillor Good regarding when the 
Ancoats Residents' Parking Scheme would be implemented. 
Councillor Rahman responded to a question from Councillor Good regarding how 
many CCTV cameras operated by the Council were currently non-functional or in a 
state of disrepair. 
  
Councillor White responded to a question from Councillor Good regarding what the 
£32m public investment into Ancoats Green was going towards. 
  
Councillor White responded to a question from Councillor Good regarding an update 
on the Central Retail Park Strategic Regeneration Framework. 
  
Councillor White responded to a question from Councillor Northwood regarding 
whether consideration would be given to reducing ground rent on council-owned 
residential freeholds to a peppercorn. 
  
Councillor Midgely responded to a question from Councillor Northwood regarding 
what her understanding of allyship was. 
  
In the absence of Councillor Igbon to provide a response to a question from 
Councillor Kilpatrick regarding what time frame should residents expect between 
reporting the issue of leaf mulching and detritus becomes dangerous or impassable 
and action being taken, the Lord Mayor advised that a written response would be 
forwarded to the councillor. 
  
In the absence of Councillor Igbon to provide a response to a question from 
Councillor Kilpatrick regarding how close was the Council to changing its policy for 
parks to be protected by placing them into perpetuity, the Lord Mayor advised that a 
written response would be forwarded to the councillor. 
  
Councillor Craig responded to a question from Councillor Kilpatrick regarding whether 
there would be future support for an official motion in relation to the call for 

Page 12

Item 3



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Council  29 November 2023 

recognition of the Great Ukrainian Famine, otherwise known as Holodomor, which 
was deliberately engineered by the Soviet Union upon the people of Ukraine, where it 
was estimated that between 3.5-5 million Ukrainians lost their lives. 
  
Councillor Rahman responded to a question from Councillor Shilton Godwin 
regarding the need for continued support from Greater Manchester Police in relation 
to tackling the parking of vehicles on pavements 
 
CC/23/88 Scrutiny Committees  
 
The minutes of the following Scrutiny Committee meetings were submitted: 
  
                Economy and Regeneration –16 October and 7 November 2023 
                Communities and Equalities – 10 October and 7 November 2023 
                Children and Young People – 13 October and 8 November 2023 
                Health – 11 October and 8 November 2023 
                Resources and Governance – 12 October and 9 November 2023 
                Environment, Climate Change and Neighbourhoods – 12 October and 9 

November 2023 
  
Decision 
  
To receive those minutes submitted. 
 
CC/23/89 Proceedings of Committees  
 
The minutes of the following meetings were submitted: 
  
                Planning and Highways Committee – 19 October and 16 November 2023 
                Health and Wellbeing Board – 1 November 2023 
                Standards Committee – 2 November 2023 
  
The Council was asked to give particular consideration to the following 
recommendations from the minutes: 
  
ST/23/17        Member Code of Conduct 
  
To recommend to full Council that the Council retain its current Code of Conduct for 
Members. 
  
ST/23/21        Review of the Operation and Efficacy including a proposed 
amendment of the Arrangements for dealing with Code of Conduct complaints 
against Members 
  
Recommend to full Council the Arrangements as amended. 
  
                Licensing Committee –  23 October and 13 November 2023 
                Licensing and Appeals Committee – 23 October 2023 
                Licensing Policy Committee – 31 October and 20 November 2023 
 

Page 13

Item 3



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Council  29 November 2023 

The Council was asked to give particular consideration to the following 
recommendations from the minutes: 
  
LPC/23/04     Statement of Licensing Policy 2023 - 2028 
  
To recommend to full Council to approve the Statement of Licensing Policy 2023 - 
2028 policy for publication. A copy of the policy was submitted. 
  
Decisions 
  
(1)      To receive those minutes listed. 

  
(2)      To approve the retention its current Code of Conduct for Members. 
  
(3)      To approve, the arrangements, as amended, for dealing with Code of Conduct 

complaints against Members. 
  

(4)      To approve the Statement of Licensing Policy 2023 – 2028 for publication.  
 
 
 

Page 14

Item 3



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  13 December 2023 

 

Executive 
 
Minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday, 13 December 2023 
 
Present: Councillor Craig (Chair) 
 
Councillors: Akbar, Hacking, Igbon, Midgley, Rahman, Rawlins, T Robinson and 
White 
 
Also present as Members of the Standing Consultative Panel:  
Councillors: Ahmed Ali, Chambers, Douglas, Foley, Johnson, Leech and Lynch 
 
Apologies: Councillor Bridges, Butt and Moran 
 
Exe/23/104 Minutes  
 
Decision 
  
The Executive approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting on 15 
November 2023. 
 
Exe/23/105 Our Manchester Progress Update  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Chief Executive which provided an update 
on key areas of progress against the Our Manchester Strategy – Forward to 2025 
which reset Manchester’s priorities for the next five years to ensure the Council could 
still achieve the city’s ambition set out in the Our Manchester Strategy 2016 – 2025. 
  
The Deputy Leader (Statutory) reported that a Joint Targeted Area Inspection of 
multi-agency working to safeguard young people at risk of serious violence or 
criminal exploitation had been published last month and had praised their 
effectiveness.  The headline findings of the detailed inspection noted the strength of 
multi-agency arrangements between the Council, Greater Manchester Police, 
schools, health agencies and other partner organisations such as the Greater 
Manchester Violence Reduction Unit and the voluntary and community sector in 
preventing and tackling serious youth violence and criminal exploitation – including 
early intervention initiatives to identify those at risk and put measures in place to 
support them.  It was also noted that whilst recognising the strength of partnerships, 
the report had also identified areas for improvement. These included enhanced multi-
agency evaluation of projects to understand better how they worked together as part 
of an overall system and more consistency in information recording and sharing 
between partners. 
  
Councillor Leech sought clarification on why the Inspectors had identified the need 
for more consistency in information recording and sharing between partners as an 
area for improvement 
  
The Deputy Leader (Statutory) also reported on the decision of English National 
Opera (ENO) to relocate its main base for the opera company to the City by 2029.  
The announcement followed an agreement reached with Arts Council England in July 

Page 15

Item 7



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  13 December 2023 

 

in which £24m was awarded to ENO to enable the organisation to develop an artistic 
programme in a new base outside London during the 2024-26 period. It  would 
develop significant performance and learning activity in Greater Manchester, whilst 
still delivering an opera season every year in its London home, as it works towards 
establishing a new main base by 2029.  ENO cited Manchester’s thriving cultural 
ecosystem as a key factor in its decision, as well as the chance to inspire and work 
with new audiences and communities and scope for exciting and ambitious new 
collaborations around new innovations in opera. 
  
Councillor Leech sought clarification as to whether ether was any indication of the 
proportion of work that the ENO would deliver would be in Manchester as opposed to 
London. 
  
The Executive Member for Environment and Transport reported that Manchester had 
retained its high placing on a global list recognising cities that were showing 
leadership on environmental action and transparency.  For the second year in a row, 
Manchester had received the top score – an A rating – which meant it was rated as 
being one of the cities in the forefront of building momentum in taking climate 
mitigation and adaptation measures.  The list, compiled by global not-for-profit 
environmental organisation CDP, showed that A rated cities demonstrated their 
climate leadership through concerted  and effective action, just as national 
governments will be asked to do at COP28 and were taking four times as many 
mitigation and adaptation measures as non A  List cities. 
  
The Deputy Executive Member for Housing and Development reported that plans for 
the regeneration of Wythenshawe town centre had been bolstered with the 
confirmation of £20 million funding from the Government’s Levelling Up Fund.  The 
money had been awarded by the Department of Levelling Up, Homes and (DLUHC) 
as part of the third round of national funding in recognition of the progress already 
made on proposals for Wythenshawe Civic, the high quality of the planned project 
and the fact it was ready to deliver.  The Council was currently going through a formal 
tender process to find a joint venture partner to drive the ‘once-in-a-generation' 
programme of investment over the next 10 to 15years.  
  
Councillor Johnson welcomed the additional funding secured to help deliver the 
aspirations for the redevelopment of Wythenshawe town centre. 
  
The Executive Member for Housing and Development reported that Manchester 
Foyer, a leading provider of housing and support services for young people in the 
city, has marked its 25th anniversary.  Since opening its doors in 1998, Manchester 
Foyer had provided a safe and supportive environment for more than 1,000 young 
people.  Many of these young people come from challenging backgrounds and had 
experienced difficulties early in life, such as family breakdowns, abusive 
environments, mental health issues, or substance abuse. The Foyer was committed 
to providing these young people with the support they need to achieve their full 
potential and live independent, happy, and fulfilling lives. 
  
The Executive Member for Housing and Development also reported on the proposals 
being brought forward for a raft of new Selective Licensing schemes to improve 
private rented sector housing standards in Manchester.  Nine new Selective 

Page 16

Item 7



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  13 December 2023 

 

Licensing areas across six wards, covering 1,872 private rented sector homes, had 
been proposed and were set to be subject to local consultation next year once 
Executive approval has been sought.  The areas had been chosen following a 
‘hotspot’ mapping exercise that looked at areas of the city where licensing could 
make a positive impact on those communities and where they met the criteria for a 
Selective Licensing scheme.  
  
Decision 
  
The Executive note the report. 
 
Exe/23/106 Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy 2024/27  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Strategic Director (Neighbourhoods), the 
Director of Housing Services and the Assistant Director – Homelessness, which set 
out the Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy for Manchester (2024-2027) 
  
The Deputy Leader reported that it was a legal requirement for the Council to publish 
a strategy, informed by a homeless review, at least once every five years and the 
strategy would provide the Council and its’ partners with a strategic direction and 
framework to achieve the city priority of reducing homelessness and rough sleeping. 
  
The strategy built on the existing aims and overarching city-wide vision and had been 
developed in collaboration and co-produced with Manchester’s Homelessness 
Service as well as wider Council Services including Adults and Children Services, 
Strategic Housing, Reform and Innovation, Health Services and the Manchester 
Homelessness Partnership (MHP) which consisted of voluntary, community and faith 
organisations, statutory organisations and businesses as well as individuals with 
personal insight into homelessness.  
  
At the heart of the Strategy were people, with an ambition to achieve better outcomes 
for everyone, where every contact counted and those who were vulnerably housed or 
groups who were disproportionately impacted by homelessness were reached in the 
first instance. It was framed around the four principles of Manchester City Council’s 
Homelessness Transformation Programme (A Place Called Home):- 
  
                Increasing prevention   
                Reducing rough sleeping   
                More suitable and affordable accommodation   
                Better outcomes, better lives  
  
and complemented other existing Manchester Strategies, in particular the Housing 
Strategy and Making Manchester Fairer Framework, and would have a dynamic 
action plan sitting alongside it to provide the governance and operational framework 
to ensure the vision of the Strategy was achieved. 
  
The Executive also heard from representative of Caritas and Manchester 
Communications Academy as to how they currently worked in partnership with the 
Council in supporting families and young people who were either experiencing or at 
risk from becoming homeless. 

Page 17

Item 7



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  13 December 2023 

 

  
Councillor Leech sought clarity on how realistic where some of the ambitions of the 
strategy and whether Officers had undertaken a cost exercise to the Council if it was 
to fulfil all the criteria of the Homelessness Act.  He also suggested that the Equality 
Impact Assessment of the strategy needed to consider hidden victims of 
homelessness insofar as those being families who were just about managing.  
  
The Leader stated that it had been as a result of over a decade of national political 
choices that the city and the country was no facing a crisis housing and 
homelessness crisis, with a 75&% increase in rough sleeping and 175% increase in 
homelessness since 2010.  
  
Decision 
  
The Executive agree to adopt the Manchester Homelessness & Rough Sleeping 
Strategy (2024-2027) 
 
Exe/23/107 Single Use Plastics Action Plan and Policy  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer, 
which provided an update on work being undertaken across the Council on Single 
Use Plastics (SUPs) as part of action within the Council’s Climate Change Action 
Plan 2020-25, which included work to develop the ‘Avoidable Single Use Plastic Free 
Action Plan’ and ‘Single Use Plastics Policy’. 
  
The Executive Member for Environment and Transport reported that the picture on 
single-use plastics was complex and was not as straight forward as removing or 
replacing all SUPs, as for some there were no viable alternative.  A working group 
had been established and had developed an approach, which ensured the Council 
fully embedded SUP reduction practices in decision making across Council services, 
as well as fulfil its influencing and leadership role outside of the Council. This 
included three levels of control, which underpinned the action plan:- 
  
         Direct Purchases 
         Indirect Purchases (contracts, concession and commissioning) 
         Influencing (workforce, residents, partners and businesses)   
  
New procurement regulations would come into effect from October 2024 and 
guidance and documentation for inclusion in tenders was to be developed before 
mid-2024. This would include requirements to eradicate avoidable SUPs as per the 
policy and would incorporate guidance for suppliers to help them provide relevant 
responses including how to develop and implement action plans that were 
appropriate to the service / goods being procured with achievable targets. 
  
It was recognised that continued communications and engagement actions would be 
fundamental to the success of the SUP Action Plan. 
  
Councillor Leech queried whether the target of 60% of products to come in bulk 
containers by the end of 2024 was going to be achieved or whether it was ambitious 
enough. 

Page 18

Item 7



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  13 December 2023 

 

 Decision 
  
The Executive endorse the approach set out in the ‘Avoidable Single Use Plastic 
Free Action Plan’ and the Single Use Plastics Policy. 
 
Exe/23/108 Victoria North Development Area Business Plan 2: Dantzic Street 

Plots  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Strategic Director (Growth and 
Development), which provided a high level summary of the second Development 
Area Business Plan for the Victoria North programme, which was being taken forward 
by the City Council operating in a Joint Venture Partnership with Far East Consortium 
(FEC).  The report also provided an update on the current position with regards to the 
Housing Infrastructure Fund (HIF) grant allocation of £51.6m that had been provided 
to the Council by Homes England for the delivery of core infrastructure works which 
would unlock a development platform for up to 5,500 homes in the New Town and 
Red Bank neighbourhoods in Cheetham Ward 
  
The Executive Member for Housing and Development reported that following the 
refresh of the Strategic Business Plan, FEC have now brought forward the next 
formal Development Area Business Plan in line with the governance arrangements 
established at the outset of the partnership.  The entire Development Area site 
extends to circa 7 acres and was bounded by Dantzic Street, Dalton Street and the 
Trans-Pennine Rail / Metrolink Viaduct.  Other than a small parcel of land for which 
the Council had freehold ownership, FEC had acquired the freehold or long-leasehold 
ownership of the majority of land that the Development Area would utilise. This had 
been made possible through negotiation with landowners where they have been 
identified.  There were however, a number of parcels of land, that were either 
unregistered, with no known legal owner, or where FEC had only been able to 
register “possessory title” meaning that there was insufficient documentation to 
register absolute title. Without contact information available for the unregistered 
parcels of land, FEC had been unable to identify or contact owners to acquire the 
land through negotiation.  This presented a risk to the delivery of the scheme covered 
by the DABP2 and as such a proposed approach to mitigate against this would see 
the Council making a Compulsory Purchase Order for the parcels of land. 
  
It was also reported that as part of the proposal an affordable housing contribution of 
5% has been secured through the formal Planning process, however FEC would 
work with their panel of Registered Providers with the aim to increase affordable 
housing to deliver a 20% provision outside of the confines of the s106 which will allow 
access to grant funding from Homes England 
  
In relation to the HIF, it was reported that since its commencement a number of 
packages of work had been completed.  However, as with many current construction 
projects, the programme had experienced a number of delays and impacts from the 
pandemic, cost inflation and labour and supply chain instability as well as previously 
unidentified contamination being found onsite. In addition, the Council and appointed 
contractors would be unable to prosecute in-channel flood resilience measures as 
originally envisaged within the project programme. This would result in on-plot 
solutions being required that would materially increase project delivery costs for 

Page 19

Item 7



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  13 December 2023 

 

residential development schemes as they came forward in the future. As a 
consequence of these unforeseen issues, the Council had been in a position of 
General Default against the terms of the GDA.  The intention was that, subject to 
Homes England approval, a variation to the GDA would be entered into, including a 
new cashflow, and extended programme milestone events and end date for eligible 
expenditure.  Homes England had confirmed their in-principle approval of variations 
sought by the Council and had instructed Solicitors to draft a Deed of Variation to the 
GDA. 
  
Decisions 
  
The Executive:- 
   
(1)      Note the summarised content of the second Development Area Business Plan 

which will focus on the delivery of 1,551 homes at Dantzic Street and delegate 
authority to the Chief Executive in consultation with the Deputy Leader and the 
Executive Member for Housing and Development to approve the detailed 
Development Area Business Plan in conjunction with FEC. 

  
(2)      Delegate authority to the Strategic Director (Growth and Development) and the 

Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer to finalise terms for the disposal of 
the Council’s land interests within the Development Area Business Plan and to 
agree any adjustments to the Joint Venture partnership documentation that 
helps secure the Council’s objectives and facilitates the delivery of the 
Development Area Business Plan.  

  
(3)      Note the historically complex nature of land interests acquired by FEC and that a 

separate report on the agenda sets out a proposal to use Compulsory Purchase 
Powers to ensure the delivery of the Development Area Business Plan. 

  
(4)      Note that Council Officers are currently negotiating with Homes England to 

secure some adjustments to the approved Housing Infrastructure Fund grant 
funded programme which will facilitate delivery of the Development Area 
Business Plan and delegate authority to the Strategic Director (Growth and 
Development) and Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer to finalise the 
terms of a Deed of Variation to the existing Grant Determination Agreement to 
reflect agreed adjustments.  

  
(5)      Authorise the City Solicitor to enter into and complete all necessary documents 

to give effect to the recommendations set out in this report. 
  
Exe/23/109 Victoria North - The Proposed City of Manchester (Dantzic Street) 

Compulsory Purchase Order 2023  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Strategic Director (Growth and 
Development), which sought approval of a proposed compulsory purchase of land 
within the Red Bank neighbourhood, which consisted of former industrial land and 
highway as part of the wider Victoria North scheme. 
  

Page 20

Item 7



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  13 December 2023 

 

The Executive Member for Housing and Development advise that the proposed 
Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO) would be made under the provisions of sections 
226(1)(a) and (1A) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 to facilitate development, 
redevelopment and improvement of land between Dantzic Street and the railway line 
for the provision of 1,551 new residential dwellings, public realm and ancillary uses. 
  
As referred to in the previous item (Exe/23/??), without the acquisition of the 
unregistered land, and the land for which absolute title could not be registered with 
the Land Registry, there remained inherent risks to the delivery of the Scheme.  
Given that there was no available route to acquire the land through negotiation, or 
upgrade titles within the required programme, it was proposed that the use of CPO 
powers represented the most suitable option available to secure the delivery of the 
Scheme and which was determined to be in the public interest due to the benefits 
and target outcomes as reflected in the Statement of Reasons. 
  
Decisions 
  
The Executive:- 
  
(1)      Authorise the making of the City of Manchester (Dantzic Street) Compulsory 

Purchase Order 2023 (“the Order”) under Section 226(1)(a) and (1A) of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and the Acquisition of Land Act 1981 to acquire 
the Order Lands for the purpose set out in the Statement of Reasons.  

  
(2)      Note the content of the Statement of Reasons attached at Appendix 2 of the 

report. 
  
(3)      Note that all costs associated with the CPO and the acquisition of the Order 

Lands will be met by Far East Consortium International Limited who will 
reimburse the City Council of all costs incurred in accordance with a CPO 
Indemnity Agreement to be entered into between the City Council and Far East 
Consortium International Limited.  

  
(4)      Authorise the Assistant Director Development and Investment Estate to approve 

the Indemnity Agreement between the City Council and Far East Consortium 
International Limited 

  
(5)      Authorise the City Solicitor to seal the Order and to take all necessary steps, 

including the publication and service of all statutory notices and presentation of 
the Council’s case at Public Inquiry, to secure confirmation of the Order by the 
Secretary of State for Levelling up, Housing and Communities and the vesting 
of the land in the City Council.  

  
(6)      Authorise the Strategic Director (Growth and Development) to confirm the Order, 

if the Secretary of State is satisfied that it is appropriate to do so.  
  
(7)      Authorise the Assistant Director Development and Investment Estate to approve 

agreements with landowners, if identified, setting out the terms of withdrawals of 

Page 21

Item 7



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  13 December 2023 

 

objections to the Order including where appropriate the exclusion of land from 
the Order. 

  
(8)      Authorise the Strategic Director (Growth and Development) and the City Solicitor 

to make deletions from, and/or minor amendments, and modifications to the 
proposed Order and Order Plan or to agree to refrain from vesting any land 
included within the Order should this be in their opinion appropriate.  

  
(9)      Authorise the Assistant Director Development and Investment Estate to 

negotiate terms for the acquisition by agreement of any outstanding interests in 
the land within the Order prior to its confirmation.   

  
(10)   Authorise the Strategic Director (Neighbourhoods) to take all necessary steps to 

secure the closure of all relevant highways streets and alleyways which are 
required for the development to proceed, if requested by the Director of 
Strategic Housing and Development. 

  
(11)   Agree that the resources of the City Council are sufficient to carry out the duties 

resulting from the making of the Order, as outlined in this report.  
  
(12)   Authorise the City Solicitor to do all things necessary or incidental to implement 

the above. 
  
Exe/23/110 Large Scale Renewable Energy Generation - PPA Purchase (Part 

A)  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer, 
which provided an update on the progress of the City Council’s proposal to purchase 
renewable energy supplies via a Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) to ensure the 
Council has a long-term, cost-effective supply of renewable energy to meet its energy 
needs and achieve its Zero Carbon objectives to reduce the Council’s CO2 
emissions. 
  
The Leader advised that following on from the decision in February 2023 not to 
progress with the acquisition of the solar farm, procurement activity to secure a 
suitable Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) opportunity was now concluding. The 
procurement was led by the Council with technical, financial and market advice being 
provided by Ernst & Young (EY), alongside DLA Piper who were advising on legal 
and contractual matters. 
  
Following assessment of the current market conditions and lessons learned from the 
experience of others (including the City of London as the only other Council currently 
with a form of PPA in place) it was decided that a ‘competitive process with 
negotiation’ was the most appropriate way in which to secure the best possible 
opportunity for the Council.  Prior to the formal commencement of procurement 
activity, a market engagement session was hosted by the Council and EY to make 
potential bidders aware of the opportunity which the Council was to put to market and 
its requirements for the PPA it was looking to secure.  Over 30 different organisations 
were on the call, with a further 50 receiving notification of Manchester’s intention to 
advertise the opportunity. 

Page 22

Item 7



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  13 December 2023 

 

  
A thorough assessment of the potential financing and structures of the bidders had 
been undertaken in order to gain a full understanding of the party which the Council 
would be potentially contracting with and to gain an understanding of the origin of the 
funding source to develop the asset.  The parties that were successful through the 
Invitation To Tender stage had moved into the negotiation phase and final tender 
stage. Following conclusion of this negotiation stage, a preferred bidder had now 
been selected. 
  
Following the conclusion of the mandatory standstill period and subject to Council 
approval, the Council would formally announce the bidder it would be contracting with 
on the PPA arrangement in early January 2024.  Regular updates on the 
development of the asset which the PPA would come from would be submitted via 
the Council’s Zero Carbon governance arrangements, with progress reports being 
presented to the Executive and appropriate Scrutiny Committee(s) on an annual 
basis as part of the Council’s Zero Carbon reporting. 
  
Decision 
  
The Executive note the report. 
 
Exe/23/111 Exclusion of the Public  
 
Decision 
 
The Executive agrees to exclude the public during consideration of the following item 
which involved consideration of exempt information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of particular persons and public interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. 
 
Exe/23/112 Large Scale Renewable Energy Generation - PPA Purchase (Part 

B)  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer, 
which provided details around the commercial, financial and legal arrangements in 
respect of the purchase of a Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) as part of the Large-
Scale Renewable Energy Generation Project to act as a key contributor to enable the 
Council to meet the Zero Carbon targets and sought approval to enter into a PPA 
with the preferred bidder. 
 
Decisions 
  
The Executive:- 
  
(1)      Note the content of the report. 
  
(2)      Approve the entering into of the Power Purchase Agreement the preferred 

bidder linked to the development of the Bicker Fen Solar Farm.  
  

Page 23

Item 7



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  13 December 2023 

 

(3)      Authorise the City Solicitor to enter into and complete on behalf of the Council all 
the necessary legal documentation giving effect to the above. 

  
(4)      Agree that progress reports will be presented to the Executive and appropriate 

Scrutiny Committee(s) on an annual basis as part of the Council’s Zero Carbon 
reporting. 

  
 
 
 

Page 24

Item 7



Council meeting – 31 January 2024 

Questions for Executive Members and Others under Procedural Rule 23 
(Agenda Item 6) 
 
 
1. Question from Councillor Hilal to the Executive Member for Vibrant 
Neighbourhoods 
 
Question: Is there a policy in place to encourage owners of cafes who provide a 
takeaway service to use refillable cups? 
 
Received: 23/01/2024 @ 12:31 
 
 
2. Question from Councillor Hilal to the Executive Member for Vibrant 
Neighbourhoods 
 
Question: Is there a plan to introduce bigger bins in parks and review frequency of 
emptying? 
 
Received: 23/01/2024 @ 12:31 
 
 
3. Question from Councillor Hilal to the Executive Member for Vibrant 
Neighbourhoods 
 
Question:  Are the Council refreshing the park strategy placing particular emphasis 
on the safety of women/girls in parks? 
 
Received: 23/01/2024 @ 12:31 
 
 
4. Question from Councillor Hilal to the Executive Member for Vibrant 
Neighbourhoods 
 
Question:  Leaf fall is a big problem.  Can the policy of cleaning side road once 
every 3/4 years be reviewed? 
 
Received: 23/01/2024 @ 12:31 
 
 
5. Question from Councillor Hilal to the Executive Member for Vibrant 
Neighbourhoods 
 
Question:  Can you confirm the funding available for street cleaning? 
 
Received: 23/01/2024 @ 12:31 
 
 
6. Question from Councillor Hilal to the Executive Member for Vibrant 
Neighbourhoods 
 

Page 25

Item 8



Council meeting – 31 January 2024 

Question:  When is the Biffa contract due for renewal?  Can we change contract in 
the middle? 
 
Received: 23/01/2024 @ 12:31 
 
 
7. Question from Councillor Nunney to the Executive Member for Housing and 
Development 
 
What measures have been taken to include as many local residents as possible in 
the consultation on the Wythenshawe Culture Hub which closes in four days? 
 
Received:  26/01/2024 @14:44 
 
 
8. Question from Councillor Nunney to the Leader of the Council 
 
Manchester City Council is the joint largest shareholder with 35.5% of Manchester 
Airport Group. As Council Leader, is Cllr Craig willing to use her position to ask the 
airport to stop its continuing incoming cargoes of endangered live macaque monkeys 
destined for UK vivisection laboratories? 
 
Over 2,000 live macaques were brought into the UK via Manchester Airport last year, 
making our regional airport the major UK gateway for live primates used in animal 
testing laboratories 
 
Received:  26/01/2024 @14:44 
 
 
9. Question from Councillor Northwood to the Executive Member for Finance 
and Resources 
 
Question:  How many Windows servers running OS versions predating Windows 
Server 2016 are running on the Manchester City Council digital estate? 
 
Received: 28/01/2024 @ 19:24 
 
 
10. Question from Councillor Leech to the Executive Member for Vibrant 
Neighbourhoods 
 
Question:  What proportion of Manchester's roads have been inspected since the 
end of the leaf clearance programme, and what proportion of those roads were found 
to require additional action? 
 
Received: 28/01/2024 @ 19:43 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 26

Item 8



Council meeting – 31 January 2024 

11. Question from Councillor Leech to the Executive Member for Environment 
and Transport 
 
Question:  What assessment has the Executive Member made of the carbon 
emission impact of the 32 ward Climate Change action plans?  
 
Received: 28/01/2024 @ 19:43 
 
 
12. Question from Councillor Leech to the Leader of the Council 
 
Question:  The "exploratory partnership" with Fujitsu that was signed by the Leader 
of the Council and Mayor Burnham in Japan, was described by the Mayor as a 
"massive boost" for the region's investment zone. Could this "massive boost"  be 
achieved without public money being handed over to Fujitsu?  
 
Can the Leader foresee a scenario where the outcome of the Post Office Horizon 
inquiry would result in the Council rejecting  any such deal with Fujitsu? 
 
Received: 28/01/2024 @ 19:43 
 
 
13. Question from Councillor Shilton Godwin to the Executive Member for 
Skills, Employment and Leisure 
 
Question:  This week you and the Leader attended the launch of Manchester, 
European Capital of Cycling.  Manchester is the first city to win this award.  
Please could you tell me how the city will use this award to create a step change in 
the number of people who use a bike to get around the city ? 
 
Received: 28/01/2024 @ 19:57 
 
 
14. Question from Councillor Wheeler to the Executive Member for Finance  
and Resources 
 
Question: Manchester City Council is proudly a Real Living Wage Employer. To 
retain this accreditation the Council will have to pay all directly employed staff a 
minimum of £12 an hour from May 1st. Will the Council be doing so?" 
 
Received: 28/01/2024 @ 23:34 
 
 
15. Question from Councillor Good to the Executive Member for Environment 
and Transport 
 
Question: What is the council doing to make crossing Great Ancoats Street, and Pin 
Mill Brow, safer? 
 
Received: 29/01/2024 @ 08:34 
 
 

Page 27

Item 8



Council meeting – 31 January 2024 

16. Question from Councillor Good to the Executive Member for Environment 
and Transport 
 
Question: What is the council's policy on the minimum width of parking bays? 
 
Received: 29/01/2024 @ 08:34 
 
 
17. Question from Councillor Good to the Executive Member for Healthy 
Manchester and Adult Social Care 
 
Question: What is the council doing to improve access to GP and dentist services in 
Ancoats and Beswick? 
 
Received: 29/01/2024 @ 08:34 
 
 
18. Question from Councillor Johnson to the Executive Member for Finance 
and Resources 
 
The community renter’s union Acorn and other organisations have worked with the 
council to arrange a feasibility study to stop using enforcement agents to collect 
council tax - which comes with a fee. Their argument is that it is 'false economy' and 
that  the 'human cost' of using bailiffs cannot be quantified. They have called on our 
local authority to stop using bailiffs, apologise to residents who have been visited by 
bailiffs and find more 'humane' ways of collecting debt. 
 
Can we please get an update on the feasibility study? 
 
Received: 29/01/2024 @ 10:00 
 
 
19. Question from Councillor Johnson to the Leader of the Council 
 
Question:  Will the Leader of the Council re-issue our call to the UK Government to 
work on international efforts for a long term ceasefire and an urgent and vigorous 
international effort to bring about the creation of a Palestinian state, allowing Israel 
and Palestine to exist safely within their own borders? 
 
Received: 29/01/2024 @ 10:00 
 
 

Page 28

Item 8



Economy and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee 
 
Minutes of meeting held on Tuesday, 5 December 2023 
 
Present:  
Councillor Johns – in the Chair 
Councillors Abdullatif, Benham, Hussain, Northwood, Richards, I Robinson, Shilton 
Godwin and Taylor 
 
Also present:  
Councillor Akbar, Executive Member for Finance and Resources 
Councillor Moran, Deputy Executive Member for Finance and Resources 
Councillor Rawlins, Executive Member for Environment and Transport 
Councillor White, Executive Member for Housing and Development 
Andy Clarke, Manchester Airport 
Chris Woodroofe, Manchester Airport 
Christopher Coleman, Network Rail 
David Hoggarth, Transport for the North 
Simon Elliot, Transport for Greater Manchester 
Paul Galloway, Morgan Sindall 
Mark Hodkinson, Biffa 
Katie Mowat, Biffa 
 
Apologies:  
Councillor Iqbal 
 
ERSC/23/52 Minutes 
 
Decision 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 7 November 2023 be approved as a correct 
record.  
 
ERSC/23/53  Manchester Airport 
 
The Committee received a report of the Director of City Centre Growth and 
Infrastructure which provided an update on the role of Manchester Airport in the 
economy of the city; the current economic situation of the Airport following the impact 
of COVID-19; and the next steps in the economic future for the Airport. 
 
Key points and themes within the report included: 
 

• Manchester Airport operational update; 

• Economic impact of Manchester Airport; 

• Investment in infrastructure; 

• Investment in employment, education, and skills; 

• Airport City update; and 

• Forward look. 
 

Page 29

Item 9



Chris Woodroofe, Managing Director of Manchester Airport delivered a short 
presentation on the Airport, including its operational performance, its economic 
impact, transformation work, engagement with the local community and 
apprenticeship opportunities. 
 
Key points and queries that arose from the Committee’s discussions included: 
 

• The economic impact and benefits of the Airport on Wythenshawe and to 
request that, when the Committee received a further report from the Airport, it 
include a narrative on this; 

• Public transport links to the Airport, including a question about Metrolink 
expansion, and the impact of congestion; 

• Public transport connectivity at Airport City; 

• The implications of the Transformation Programme by 2025; 

• Managing risk related to future changes in the aviation industry due to a move 
to a net zero future; 

• The customer experience and perceptions of this; 

• The workforce, including the areas that staff were recruited from, pathways for 
staff to progress their careers, restrictions on employing staff with a criminal 
record and whether the post-pandemic recruitment and training issues had 
been resolved; 

• Noting that the Airport had become an accredited Real Living Wage employer, 
did this apply to procured services as well; and 

• The Airport’s longer-term financial position. 
 
A Member who was the Chair of the Environment, Climate Change and 
Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Committee informed Members that her Committee would 
be receiving a report on Manchester Airport and Aviation Emissions at its meeting on 
11 January 2024 and she invited all Members of this Committee to attend. 
 
Chris Woodroofe outlined some of the work taking place with the local community in 
Wythenshawe, including schools engagement, which prioritised Wythenshawe 
schools, engagement with the local community and local Ward Councillors and 
involvement in the multi-agency taskforce for the area.  He reported that the people 
assisted by the Manchester Airport Academy to return to work after a period out of 
work were from the local community. He offered to provide the Member with further 
information on the economic benefits of the Airport for Wythenshawe after the 
meeting.  He explained that the Transformation Programme would revolutionise the 
passenger experience and enable the airport to make full use of its existing runway 
infrastructure, highlighting the expected increase in passenger numbers, increase in 
GVA (Gross Value Added) and additional jobs created.  He reported that the aviation 
industry in the UK was committed to net zero carbon emissions by 2050 and was 
confident of being on track to meet this target, advising that Manchester Airport was 
a founding member of the Jet Zero Council.  He informed Members about plans for 
sustainable aviation fuel, including proposals to turn the Council’s black bin bag 
waste into jet fuel.  He informed Members of the commitment for the Airport itself to 
be net zero by 2038 and stated that he was confident that this was achievable.  He 
recognised the Member’s point about public transport connections to jobs at Airport 
City and advised that he would look into that issue outside of the meeting.  
 

Page 30

Item 9



Andy Clarke, Head of Corporate Affairs at Manchester Airport reported that the 
Airport shared Members’ disappointment about the decision in relation to HS2.  He 
informed Members that the Rail Minister had visited the Airport since the decision 
was announced and that the Airport was being included as one of the northern 
leaders engaged with over the future of the network in the north.  He advised that, 
while it was too early to comment on a Metrolink expansion, the Airport was working 
on a response to the Minister on what it would want to see delivered from the funding 
package for the northern transport network and he offered to share this information 
with Members once it was available.   
 
Chris Woodroofe reported that, with increased east-west connectivity, the number of 
passengers who could travel to the Airport by rail would increase by 50%.  In 
response to a question about congestion, he reported that the Airport’s 
Transformation Programme included investment in the road network around 
Terminal 2 and that there was a capacity cap on the Airport until additional 
roadworks were done.  He stated that he would welcome a coherent scheme, 
involving east-west rail, national highways and government investment, to address 
congestion.   
 
Chris Woodroofe informed Members that the experience of customers at Manchester 
Airport had improved since the summer of 2022 and that 90% of passengers 
surveyed now rated their experience as good or better.  He reported that the Airport 
now had a stable workforce which had enabled them to deliver one of their best 
performances in the summer of 2023.  He outlined how Manchester Airports Group 
was investing in its airports, firstly at Manchester Airport and then at London 
Stansted, which would benefit the Council as one of the owners.  In terms of the 
longer-term financial position, he reported that the views of the Credit Rating Agency 
and the over-subscription of the Airport’s corporate bond were positive indicators that 
investors saw the Airport as a good investment.  He offered to share with Committee 
Members the Arup report on Manchester Airport’s impact on the wider economy, 
society and its potential to drive future prosperity across the North.  He reported that 
there were already examples of employees who had built their careers at the Airport 
but that there was always more to be done on providing pathways for career 
progression.  He informed Members that there were some jobs at the Airport which, 
for security reasons, had rules around employing people with criminal records but 
that most criminal records, except for very serious crimes, expired after a certain 
period and that there were a lot of land-side jobs available at the Airport which these 
restrictions did not apply to.  In response to a question from the Chair, he reported 
that the Border Force at Manchester Airport had been working well this summer and 
he cited the benefits of electronic gates in speeding up the process.  He clarified that 
the Airport paid the Border Force to employ additional staff to provide the Fast Track 
Service, with passengers paying the Airport to use the service.  He recognised a 
comment by the Chair about public transport access to the Visitor Park, stating that 
he would look into this. 
 
Andy Clarke reported that the Real Living Wage employer status related to partners 
providing direct services to the Airport, such as the company which had the cleaning 
contract, but not to, for example, the airlines; however, he stated that the Airport led 
by example.  In response to a question from the Chair about retail and hospitality 
businesses at the Airport, Chris Woodroofe reported that they were encouraged to 

Page 31

Item 9



pay the Real Living Wage but the Airport could not force them to do so; however, he 
advised that, by the Airport paying its cleaners the Real Living Wage, it put pressure 
on other employers at the Airport to compete with those wage levels.  
 
In response to questions about public transport connectivity, the Executive Member 
for Environment and Transport reported that the Bee Network, with franchised bus 
services, would be in place in south Manchester in 2025 and that Members could 
speak to her about gaps in public transport services.  She informed the Committee 
that the hours of operation for Metrolink services to the Airport was constantly being 
reviewed.  She informed Members that there were already a lot of examples of local 
residents who had progressed their careers through Manchester Airport and agreed 
that it was important to consider how this was being communicated to local 
residents, so that they could see the benefit that the Airport brought to their area. 
  
The Strategic Director (Growth and Development) reported that transport 
infrastructure, and investment in this infrastructure, were fundamental to 
Manchester’s growth, although there were limits on the ability of partners, including 
the Airport, Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM) and the Greater Manchester 
Combined Authority (GMCA), to affect change.  She advised that bus franchising 
provided an opportunity to influence the transport network and that, following the 
decision about HS2, the Council and its partners would continue to make the case 
for investment in the transport infrastructure that was needed for Manchester and the 
north.    
 
Decisions: 
 
1. To request that the report by Arup be circulated to Committee Members. 
 
2. To request that the Airport’s response to the Rail Minister on what it wants to 

see delivered from the funding package for the northern transport network be 
circulated to Committee Members, once it is available. 
 

3. To receive a further report on the Airport in the next municipal year. 
 
ERSC/23/54  Rail Update 
 
The Committee received a report of the Director of City Centre Growth and 
Infrastructure which provided an update on the current position with a number of rail 
schemes, including high speed and conventional rail, and the resulting impact on the 
city. 
 
Key points and themes within the report included: 
 

• HS2, Northern Powerhouse Rail and Network North; 

• Northern Hub update; 

• Manchester & North West Transformation Programme (MNTP) and 
Manchester Recovery Task Force (MRTF); 

• The Transpennine Route Upgrade (TRU); 

• Manchester & Salford Central Stations Prospectus; 

• Current train service issues and opportunities; 

Page 32

Item 9



• GM Rail Board update; and 

• Priorities for Manchester. 
 
Key points and queries that arose from the Committee’s discussions included: 
 

• To express concern at the impact of the decision on HS2 on Manchester, 
Greater Manchester and the north; 

• How much money had been spent working on HS2 over the past 10 years; 

• How ‘tap-in tap-out’ pricing would work, given the complexity of the ticketing 
options; 

• The management of land owned by Network Rail and engagement with the 
Council and Ward Councillors on this; and 

• Concern that, after having its contract renewed, Avanti West Coast had cut its 
services. 

 
In response to a Member’s question, the Director of City Centre Growth and 
Infrastructure reported that the Government was not required to publish the Equality 
Impact Assessment in relation to the decision on HS2.  She informed the Committee 
that the Council had spent around £3 million since 2012 on work relating to HS2.  
 
Simon Elliot from Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM) advised Members that 
an integrated public transport system, including integrated ticketing, was key to the 
roll-out of the Bee Network.  He acknowledged the challenges of introducing a ‘tap-in 
tap-out’ contactless system due to the complexity of rail ticket pricing, informing 
Members of a pilot on the train route from Glossop and Stalybridge into Manchester 
by 2025, prior to a multi-modal roll-out across the region.  He reported that TfGM 
shared Members’ disappointment regarding the reduction in Avanti West Coast 
services in December, advising that these were due to planning issues, historical 
terms and conditions and a backlog in driver training and emphasising the 
importance of ensuring the reliability of the reduced service.  He reported that Andy 
Burnham, the Mayor of Greater Manchester, had written, through the Rail North 
Committee, to Avanti stating that the reduced service was not acceptable and 
seeking assurances that there would not be further reductions in the New Year.  He 
informed the Committee that the Rail North Committee was the body responsible for 
holding rail companies in the north to account and that the Managing Director of 
Avanti, Andrew Mellors, had attended a meeting of the Committee and would be 
providing them with Avanti’s full recovery plan for the New Year. 
 
Christopher Coleman from Network Rail advised Members that, if they informed him 
of the details of the issues relating to Network Rail land, he would work with 
colleagues to address these concerns.  The Executive Member for Environment and 
Transport offered to work with Network Rail on how Ward Councillors could engage 
with Network Rail on issues relating to their land, ensuring that they received a 
consistently good response. 
 
The Chair emphasised the importance of north-south connectivity, as well as east-
west connectivity, and expressed concern that the Government did not appear to 
have a plan for north-south rail beyond using the current West Coast Main Line.  He 
also expressed disappointment at the cancellation of Work Package C's Transport 

Page 33

Item 9



and Works Act Order (TWAO), relating to improvements at Oxford Road and 
Piccadilly Stations, and questioned why this decision had been taken.  
 
David Hoggarth from Transport for the North (TfN) reported that, along with other 
organisations, TfN was trying to get more details on plans in relation to Northern 
Powerhouse Rail and following the decision on HS2.  He highlighted a report which 
TfN was submitting to its Board meeting the following week, which recommended 
safeguarding the routes until a clear alternative was put forward and reconfirming its 
position in relation to the Strategic Transport Plan for the North, publishing this in the 
next few months.  He reported that TfN would be working with all parties, including 
the Department for Transport as a potential funder, on opportunities for developing 
and financing the north-south link.  He reported that the industry was pushing 
Network Rail to work to identify a solution to the congestion issues around the 
Manchester Piccadilly area through to Stockport. 
 
Christopher Coleman from Network Rail reported that the Manchester Recovery 
Task Force (MRTF) had been formed in 2020 with one of its objectives being to 
address the capacity issues on the Castlefield Corridor.  He advised that it had 
identified that the issues related to the wider network and had put in place a number 
of actions to address this, which included a small reduction in the number of services 
using the Castlefield Corridor in the December 2022 timetable to improve reliability 
and punctuality.  He reported that a second piece of work for the Task Force was a 
Performance and Capacity Strategy to ensure that the required infrastructure was in 
place before the timetable was increased and that £72 million of Government funding 
had been awarded to improve connectivity, reliability and performance in north 
Manchester.  He reported that there was an emerging capacity challenge between 
Stockport and Manchester Piccadilly and that Network Rail was taking a strategic 
view of this, testing a number of scenarios to identify improvements that might need 
to be made and he outlined some of the options being considered.  He reported that 
proposals for Platforms 15 and 16 at Piccadilly Station were being included in this 
strategic review.  He informed Members that the original proposal for additional 
platforms at Manchester Oxford Road Station would have taken the building work 
significantly outside the boundary of Network Rail’s land and it was determined that it 
was not a viable option and he advised that an alternative design was being worked 
on, with partner organisations, which would also address other issues, including 
accessibility.  The Chair expressed concern that there was no real strategy at a 
national level for delivering these improvements and reported that the wider capacity 
issues had been due to be addressed through the Northern Hub and other projects. 
 
In response to comments from the Chair, Christopher Coleman from Network Rail 
reported that decisions on Oxford Road Station were not being taken in isolation and 
that Network Rail was responsible for preparing strategic advice for the future of the 
network, which was continually reviewed and updated, including in light of the 
decision on HS2.  In response to a question from the Chair, he reported that 
discussions were taking place on the right way to communicate and engage with the 
Council and informed Members that the Council had been offered the opportunity to 
work with the Manchester & North West Transformation Programme (MNTP) on 
matters affecting Manchester.   
 

Page 34

Item 9



The Chair requested a briefing for City Centre Councillors on the Manchester and 
Salford Central Stations Prospectus, including the local impact on communities and 
the Council’s response.  Christopher Coleman from Network Rail explained the 
purpose of the Prospectus and how it was being developed with stakeholders.  He 
reported that it would be ready in the New Year and could be shared with Members.  
The Director of City Centre Growth and Infrastructure reported that she and 
Christopher Coleman would provide a briefing for the local Ward Councillors in the 
New Year. 
 
Decisions: 
 
1. To receive a report on the Strategic Rail Plan at an appropriate time. 

 
2. To note that a briefing on the Manchester and Salford Central Stations 

Prospectus will be arranged for local Ward Councillors in the New Year. 
 
[Councillor Taylor declared a disclosable pecuniary interest as her client, First 
Group, was referred to in the report and she left the room for this item.] 
[Councillor Johns declared a personal interest due to writing and speaking on the 
subject of rail.]  
 
ERSC/23/55  Information on the economic impacts of Social Value 
 
The Committee received a report of the Director of Inclusive Economy which 
provided an update on social value and provided examples of the social value 
opportunities generated as a direct result of Manchester City Council’s procurement 
policy. 
 
Key points and themes within the report included: 
 

• Background information; 

• Achievements so far and economic impacts, including Social Value delivered 
by suppliers to the Council through different contracts; and 

• Current focus and next steps. 
 
Paul Galloway from Morgan Sindall, the construction company which built Gorton 
Hub, outlined the Social Value activities his organisation had undertaken, including 
job creation, education activities, work with local unemployed people, community 
initiatives and work to reduce waste and carbon emissions. 
 
Katie Mowat from Biffa delivered a presentation about Biffa’s Social Value activities, 
including school engagement and community events, as well as colleague 
engagement and plans and priorities for 2024.  
 
Key points and queries that arose from the Committee’s discussions included: 
 

• To recognise the importance of Social Value and to thank the companies for 
fully engaging with it; 

• How Councillors could support the effective use of Social Value in their wards; 

Page 35

Item 9



• Monitoring to ensure companies met the Social Value elements of their 
contract;  

• Whether homeless families could be added as one of the targeted priority 
groups; 

• The variations in how well companies delivered Social Value activities and 
using learning to improve the use of Social Value and capturing and sharing 
good practice; and 

• Was data available on the extent to which the targeted priority groups were 
being reached. 

 
The Deputy Executive Member for Finance and Resources informed the Committee 
that there was support from Ward Councillors on Social Value but that this 
involvement could be improved and she would give further consideration to how local 
Members could be better communicated with and engaged in this work, advising that 
Ward Councillors understood local needs.  She informed Members about work taking 
place to gather case studies on Social Value and then communicate this work to 
external audiences and also to Members, so that they could see examples of best 
practice and use this as inspiration for identifying Social Value activities for their 
ward.  She informed Members that a Social Value Co-ordinator had recently been 
recruited who would work across all Directorates and have an overview of work 
taking place across the Council. 
 
In response to a Member’s question about ensuring that the Social Value 
opportunities relating to Wythenshawe Civic Centre were maximised, the Director of 
Inclusive Growth reported that Social Value was a built-in consideration in the 
procurement process for the development.  She outlined some of the investment into 
the area and reported that the approach to Social Value in Wythenshawe would be 
similar to, and take learning from, the approach in north Manchester.  She informed 
Members that Social Value was built into contracts and monitoring this was part of 
the contract management arrangements.  She reported that the Social Value Policy 
had been refreshed by Executive in March 2021, including amending the priority 
groups.  She reported that some young people who had experienced homelessness 
would be covered under the other priority groups and that some companies had 
undertaken Social Value work relating to homelessness.  The Executive Member for 
Finance and Resources offered to discuss reviewing the targeted priority groups with 
the Member who had raised this issue. 
 
The Strategic Lead (Commissioning) reported that, for the Town Hall Project, there 
were financial consequences for companies if they did not deliver on the Social 
Value element of their contract; however, the first step if the Social Value element of 
a contract was not being delivered was normally to discuss this with the company 
concerned.    
 
The Head of Integrated Commissioning and Procurement reported that there had 
been significant work in recent years to improve the Council’s contract management 
and that the new system which would be in place soon would provide better data to 
support this work.  
 
In response to a question on the Real Living Wage, the Strategic Lead 
(Commissioning) reported that this was a standard question on all procurements, as 

Page 36

Item 9



well as whether the organisation was a member of the Greater Manchester Good 
Employment Charter, or could demonstrate that it met the different aspects of the 
Charter.  He reported that there were challenges with gathering data on the extent to 
which targeted priority groups were being reached by Social Value activities but that 
working with Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise (VCSE) organisations 
could help with this.  In response to a Member’s question on small and medium-
sized enterprises (SMEs), he explained that, for larger-scale procurement, the 
Council was legally not allowed to differentiate between bidders, although they could 
support smaller organisations through training on how to bid for public sector 
contracts; however, smaller value procurements could be reserved for particular 
sectors, such as SMEs or VCSE organisations. 
 
Decision: 
 
To recommend that, when the Social Value Framework is next reviewed, children 
and families who have experienced homelessness be added as a priority group. 
 
ERSC/23/56  Evaluation of the Moss Side, Moston and Old Moat Selective 
Licensing Areas 
ERSC/23/57  Proposal for the Next Phase of Selective Licensing 
 
The Committee received a report of the Director of Development and the Strategic 
Director (Neighbourhoods) which provided the outcomes of the evaluation of the 
Moss Side, Moston and Old Moat Selective Licensing pilot areas. 
 
Key points and themes within the report included: 
 

• Implementation of the Scheme; 

• Housing Compliance and Enforcement; 

• Housing-related requests; 

• Waste management and fly tipping; 

• Victim-based crime, antisocial behaviour and domestic noise incidents; 

• Deprivation and the housing market impact; 

• Feedback from Neighbourhoods Teams and case studies; 

• Communication and engagement; and 

• Lessons learned and issues to consider. 
 
The Committee also received a report of the Strategic Director (Growth and 
Development) and the Strategic Director (Neighbourhoods) which identified nine 
potential areas across six wards that were experiencing issues which met the criteria 
to justify a Selective Licensing designation in the area. Officers were seeking 
approval to undertake a consultation exercise to establish whether the declaration of 
a Selective Licensing scheme was required within the identified areas. 
 
Key points and themes within the report included: 
 

• Process for identifying areas which would benefit from Selective Licensing; 

• Neighbourhood and Enforcement Teams engagement; 

• Local Member engagement; 

Page 37

Item 9



• Proposed Phase 4 Selective Licensing Areas – Criteria; and 

• Introducing Phase 4 of Selective Licensing - Consultation Plan. 
 
Key points and queries that arose from the Committee’s discussions included: 
 

• Noting that the evaluation of the Moss Side, Moston and Old Moat Selective 
Licensing areas had found that excess cold was the most common serious 
issue and discussing the reasons for this; 

• To welcome the level of data that had been gathered and to ask whether 
qualitative data from tenants had been gathered; and 

• How decisions were made on the final list for the next phase from the original 
longlist. 

 
In response to a Member’s question, the Executive Member for Housing and 
Development reported that at present the Council could have 20% of the city’s 
Private Rented Sector (PRS) licensed and that this sector represented approximately 
40% of housing stock in the city.  He informed Members that, as part of the 
Devolution Trailblazer deals, some of these housing decisions would be devolved 
from the Secretary of State to the Mayor of Greater Manchester and that discussions 
were taking place with the Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) about 
future implications. 
 
The Compliance and Enforcement Specialist reported that the energy crisis and 
cost-of-living crisis had contributed to the increase in excess cold issues.  She 
reported that qualitative feedback from residents had been obtained via residents’ 
groups and residents’ forums.  In response to a further question about the feedback 
received, she reported that this had been mixed.  She advised that some residents 
understood what Selective Licensing was, engaged with it and found it a positive 
experience; however, she reported that there was a need to manage expectations of 
some residents and also to raise awareness of the scheme, particularly as there was 
a turnover of residents during the time of the scheme.  She informed Members that 
the Council now had an Engagement Officer to work with residents’ group and 
landlords and to promote the schemes.   
 
The Executive Member for Housing and Development reported that lessons learnt 
about resident engagement would be taken forward.  In response to a Member’s 
question, he stated that the consultation exercise regarding the introduction of 
Selective Licensing in an area made everyone in the area aware of it and that local 
knowledge was used to identify properties which should be licensed but were not. 
 
The Housing Strategy Project Manager reported that areas had been ranked against 
the Selective Licensing criteria to arrive at a manageable list of areas which were the 
ones which would most benefit from Selective Licensing in the next phase.  He 
advised that Neighbourhood Teams had also been engaged with as part of the 
decision-making and consideration given to whether other ways of addressing issues 
had already been pursued.   
 
The Executive Member for Housing and Development reported that the proportion of 
PRS housing in an area was another factor taken into account, noting that this, and 
other factors, could change over time and that areas which had not been selected 

Page 38

Item 9



this time would be considered again in future.  He recognised a Member’s comments 
about tackling issues relating to flats above shops, through both Selective Licensing 
and other interventions. 
 
Decisions: 
 
1. To note the findings of the evaluation of the Moss Side, Moston and Old Moat 

Selective Licensing Areas. 
 
2. To commend the nine areas across six wards detailed in Maps 1 to 9 

(Appendix 1) to the Executive as the Phase 4 Selective Licensing areas. 
 

3. To commend the consultation plan outlined in Section 7 of this report to the 
Executive. 

 
[Councillor Richards declared a personal and prejudicial interest as she had been 
involved in the decision-making on Selective Licensing during her time as an 
Executive Member and she left the room for this item.] 
 
ERSC/23/58 Overview Report 
 
A report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit was submitted. The overview 
report contained key decisions within the Committee’s remit, responses to previous 
recommendations and the Committee’s work programme, which the Committee was 
asked to approve. 
   
Decision: 
  
That the Committee note the report and agree the work programme. 
 
 

 
 

Page 39

Item 9



Economy and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee 
 
Minutes of meeting held on Tuesday, 9 January 2024 
 
Present:  
Councillor Johns – in the Chair 
Councillors Benham, Hussain, Iqbal, Northwood, Richards, I Robinson, Shilton 
Godwin and Taylor 
 
Also present:  
Councillor Rawlins, Executive Member for Environment and Transport 
Councillor Reid, Chair of the Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 
 
ERSC/24/01 Minutes 
 
Decision 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 5 December 2023 be approved as a correct 
record.  
 
ERSC/24/02  Road Safety 
 
The Committee received a report of the Strategic Director (Neighbourhoods) which 
set out the Council’s approach to Road Safety. 
 
Key points and themes within the report included: 
 

• Examples of previous Road Safety Projects; 

• City Wide Speed Limit Reductions; 

• School Streets Schemes; 

• Controlled Pedestrian Crossings; 

• Cycle Training (Schools); 

• Vision Zero; 

• School Crossings and Park Entrances Audit; 

• Enforcement of Moving Traffic Offences; 

• Disabled access improvements; 

• Enforcement activities undertaken around schools including GMP (Greater 
Manchester Police); 

• Road Safety Strategy document; 

• Speed Cameras / Red Light Cameras; 

• Rights of Way Improvement Plan; 

• Road Safety Week; and 

• Road Safety Tool Kits for schools. 
 
The Chair of the Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee addressed the 
Committee in relation to schools and active travel.  She reported that, due to 
increases in pupil numbers, children were having to travel further to school, crossing 
main roads.  She reported that driving had got worse since the pandemic and 
expressed concern about issues on the main arterial routes into the city and cuts to 

Page 40

Item 9



traffic policing.  She referred to previous national campaigns to make drivers aware 
of the dangers of speeding.   
 
The Head of Network Management acknowledged the points raised.  He reported 
that, while investment was needed to make improvements on the roads network to 
improve safety, policing was also needed and the Council and Transport for Greater 
Manchester (TfGM) were working with Greater Manchester Police (GMP) in relation 
to enforcement and greater visibility, which would act as a deterrent.  He highlighted 
the importance of education, training and enforcement.  He recognised that road 
safety campaigns and messaging had not been as prominent in recent years as they 
had been previously and advised that this was something that the Council would 
pursue, including lobbying the Department for Transport regarding a national 
campaign.   He informed Members about the role of car manufacturers and the use 
of technology such as black boxes to reduce accidents.  He informed Members that 
the Council was developing a Road Safety Strategy to identify improvements that the 
Council could make and monitor progress against targets. 
 
The Director of Highways reported that an assessment of all school and park 
entrances had been carried out in the previous six months and that, on the basis of 
this, and subject to funding, improvement work would be planned to improve safety.  
He highlighted the additional powers that the Council had been granted to enforce 
moving traffic offences (MTOs) which would be important for tackling some of the 
poor driving behaviour referred to.  He reported that speed camera enforcement 
would be part of the Road Safety Programme which was being rolled out. 
 
The Chair of the Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee expressed concern 
about drug-driving and advised that more speed cameras were needed on main 
arterial roads.  She reported that Manchester did not currently have its fair share of 
school buses, compared to other Greater Manchester authorities, and informed the 
Committee about work she was involved in to address this. 
 
Key points and queries that arose from the Committee’s discussions included: 
 

• The importance of this issue and its connection to other key priorities such as 
being an Age Friendly City and a Child Friendly City and that this should be 
more strongly reflected in the report; 

• Concern that the percentage of collisions which resulted in death or serious 
injury had increased since 2011; 

• That in order to encourage parents to allow their children to travel to school 
independently there needed to be a focus on the whole journey from home to 
school, not just road safety in the immediate vicinity of the school; 

• The importance of the perception of safety; 

• Behaviour change and enforcement near schools, including in relation to 
dangerous and obstructive parking; 

• Questioning whether “accidents” was an appropriate term to use when 
collisions were often caused by the behaviour of the driver; 

• The use of evidence from citizens, such as cyclists’ cameras; 

• Sites selected for the enforcement of MTOs; 

• Improvements for pedestrians, including disabled people and parents with 
prams; 

Page 41

Item 9



• To request that future reports include more geographical context, for example 
hotspots and challenges in particular areas; 

• To request that the Road Safety Strategy be considered by the Committee 
once it was available; 

• Managing road safety in relation to temporary building works, when footpaths 
for closed; 

• Concern that the data did not fully reflect what was happening in some parts 
of the city; and 

• Whether, as part of the GM Camera Partnership, more innovative options 
could be considered, for example, portable cameras and cameras which 
showed a driver’s speed on a screen. 

 
The Director of Highways advised that, as school entrances were a very busy area at 
peak times, this had been identified as a particular risk but he recognised Members’ 
points about the whole journey to school.  He referenced work through schools to 
educate parents about road safety around drop-off and pick-up times and the role of 
enforcement.  He reported that the Council would consider what more could be done 
in relation to enforcement arounds schools as part of the Road Safety Strategy, while 
advising that consideration would need to be given to whether this would displace 
the problem onto neighbouring streets.  The Head of Network Management reported 
that a multi-faceted approach was needed, including ongoing work with schools, 
physical changes to the environment around schools and School Streets schemes. 
 
The Director of Highways reported that police forces were encouraging the public to 
submit dashcam footage to support the prosecution of offences and that the Council 
would support GMP in obtaining footage from the public.  In response to a Member’s 
question, he stated that he did not think that this type of information was being used 
as evidence in relation to civil offences but that he would check this with the relevant 
team and look into whether this could be changed.  
 
The Head of Network Management reported that he would circulate a website link to 
Members through which footage could be submitted and that they could share this 
link with residents.  In response to a Member’s question, he reported that an 
evaluation had taken place of the 20 miles per hour speed limits now in place on 
most residential streets, to ascertain how effective this had been in reducing 
collisions and their severity; however, he recognised that enforcement of the 20 
miles per hour zones was an issue.  He provided an update on the sites selected for 
the enforcement of MTOs and offered to share initial data from the first site, on 
Stockport Road, where enforcement was already taking place.  He outlined how the 
initial seven sites had been selected, using information from the public, Ward 
Councillors and GMP, as well as camera analysis surveys.  He advised that criteria 
was being developed for the selection of further sites and that Members would be 
invited to submit for consideration any further sites which they believed should be 
included.  He reported that there were many issues affecting the accessibility of 
pavements for disabled people, including pavement condition, drop crossings and 
street furniture, commenting that trials were currently taking place in the city centre 
to remove or re-position street furniture to make a clearer route for pedestrians.  He 
reported that the Council was continuing to lobby the Government on funding for 
highways maintenance.  He reported that the Council had a lot of data on accident 
analysis and he could provide ward-based data for any Members who were 

Page 42

Item 9



interested.  He informed Members that higher-level data was also available through 
the TfGM website.  He advised that, as part of the Road Safety Strategy, detailed 
monitoring and reporting would be put in place.   He acknowledged a Member’s point 
about the importance of benchmarking with comparator cities.  He assured Members 
that road safety and traffic management were fully considered in relation to 
temporary building works and outlined the process for this. 
 
The Executive Member for Environment and Transport reported that she and officers 
would review the terminology used, including in relation to “accidents” or “collisions”.  
She advised that it was important for the Council to use the levers available to it, for 
example, in relation to Social Value, to educate people on road safety and that this 
was already being done to improve signage around schools.  She reported that 
education on Road Safety was key and that the work that took place in Road Safety 
Week in November should be repeated throughout the year, advising that, while 
more resources were needed, she would be working with officers, Members, schools 
and other partners to improve education on this important issue.  She stated that she 
and officers would revisit the evaluation of the reduction in speed limits to 20 miles 
per hour on most residential roads in order to have the evidence base to roll this 
work out further.  She reported that she would circulate information to Members on 
undertaking more community speed watch trials. 
 
In response to a Member’s question, the Director of Highways clarified that the 
Network Management Duty on the expeditious movement of traffic included 
pedestrians and cyclists.  In response to a question about planning applications and 
Section 106 funds, he confirmed that this was routinely considered as part of the 
planning process.  He reported that, as part of the Road Safety Strategy, additional 
sources of data would be sought, for example, on incidents which had resulted in 
damage to street furniture but had not required police involvement.  In response to a 
question about utility companies and the positioning of street furniture such as 
broadband cabinets, he reported that his service worked to try to ensure that they 
were put in the most suitable locations but that the utility companies had statutory 
rights in relation to this which restricted what the Council could do.  He confirmed 
that the Council would look into different options for speed cameras and portable 
Variable Message Signs.  He acknowledged a Member’s point about engineering the 
environment to improve safety, using traffic calming measures. 
 
Decisions: 
 
1. To note the Road Safety work being planned. 
 
2. To request that the Committee scrutinise the Road Safety Strategy at a future 

meeting and that this be updated to reflect the points raised in the meeting, in 
particular the centrality of Road Safety to wider Council priorities, such as 
being a liveable, Age Friendly and Child Friendly City. 
 

3. To request that the Director of Highways check with the relevant team 
whether dashcam footage could be used for civil offences in future. 
 

4. To request that the Head of Network Management circulate the website link 
through which footage from members of the public can be submitted. 

Page 43

Item 9



 

5. To note that the Executive Member for Environment and Transport will 
circulate information to Members on undertaking more community speed 
watch trials. 

 
ERSC/24/03  Highways Condition of the City Annual Report 2022/23 
 
The Committee received a report of the Head of Network Management which 
highlighted the performance, key outcomes and successes achieved in 2022/23 
along with some of the challenges going forward. 
 
Key points and themes within the report included: 
 

• Investment in the city; 

• Social Value; 

• Street works; 

• Winter services; 

• Major projects; 

• Road safety and pedestrian crossings; 

• Network congestion; 

• Service performance and delivery; 

• Public satisfaction; 

• Key highway assets; 

• Cycleways; 

• Drainage, including Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems (SUDS); 

• Bridges and structures; and 

• Street lighting. 
 
Key points and queries that arose from the Committee’s discussions included: 
 

• Had an assessment taken place into whether the investment in highways was 
good value for money; 

• Succession planning and addressing staffing gaps; 

• Communication with residents on the work of the Highways Service as well as 
communication with residents who had reported problems and obtaining 
feedback from residents;  

• How would the condition of footpaths be improved, given the budget 
constraints; 

• Service performance targets and how Manchester compared to other Core 
Cities; 

• The quality and durability of thermal repairs; 

• Concerns about roads and pavements which were being dug up by 
broadband companies and reinstatement work being carried out in a timely 
manner and to a good standard; 

• Loose flagstones; 

• Noting that some information had been excluded from the report to keep it at 
a manageable size, suggesting that in future additional information could be 
included as an appendix; 

Page 44

Item 9



• That it was important to think about culture change, rather than behaviour 
change of individuals; 

• How non-responses were considered in consultations, given that those who 
felt most strongly on either side were the only ones likely to respond and 
concern that this could result in some schemes not going ahead on the basis 
of a vocal minority; 

• Learning from the Chorlton Cycleway consultation and other large projects; 
and 

• How success was defined in reports, requesting that in future it should be 
clear whether this referred to outputs or intended outcomes. 

 
The Director of Highways reported that a workforce plan was being developed for the 
Highways Service in addition to a proposed restructure to provide better succession 
planning; however, he advised that there was a national shortage of civil engineers 
and that local authorities across the country were struggling to recruit to some 
technical posts.  He informed Members about plans to build a graduate and 
apprenticeship programme and create career pathways to retain staff.  In response 
to a Member’s comments about the quality of street works carried out by broadband 
companies, he advised that part of the challenge was recruiting to roles to carry out 
inspections. 
 
The Head of Network Management drew Members’ attention to the information in the 
report on the Annual National Highways and Transport (NHT) Survey, stating that 
the data, including public satisfaction, was benchmarked against other Greater 
Manchester authorities and Core Cities.  He stated that value for money was 
assessed by central Government and that Manchester’s Highways Service 
performed well on this.  He reported that information on value for money was 
originally going to have been included in the report but was excluded due to the large 
amount of information already in the report.  He informed Members about the role of 
preventative maintenance of roads, which provided value for money by extending its 
life.  He informed Members that Manchester did more resident engagement and 
consultation on highways than most local authorities, although he acknowledged that 
still more could be done, and he offered to provide Members with further information 
on this work. He recognised Members’ concerns about footpath condition and the 
need for more funding.  He advised the Committee that the Council had worked hard 
to identify funding to protect and improve the condition of the city’s highways, which 
included more funding for footway maintenance, however, more funding was needed 
from central Government.  In response to a Member’s question, he offered to check 
with colleagues on targets for public behaviour change.  He reported that his service 
undertook a lot of evaluation of the performance of different types of repairs and that 
thermal repairs generally performed well.  He informed Members that his service 
worked with the Communications Team to inform residents about the work they were 
doing, including Highways Takeover Days or Weeks.  He reported that, when the 
new CRM system was introduced, Highways would be one of the first services to use 
it, advising that this would provide improved customer updates.  In response to a 
Member’s comments, he stated that work by broadband companies involving digging 
up roads and pavements had been causing a lot of issues for his team.  He stated 
that there had been a lot of poor-quality reinstatements by the broadband 
contractors, a lot of which would need to be redone.  He reported that utility 
companies had a statutory right to dig up the roads and had six months to put in 

Page 45

Item 9



place a permanent repair.  He stated that Highways Inspectors carried out checks 
around the city but that Members could contact him directly if they had concerns that 
a permanent repair had not been carried out within this timeframe.  He informed 
Members about challenges with pothole repairs, particularly on failed roads, where 
the repair might only last a few months, and advised that in these cases it was 
important for the road to be fully resurfaced. 
 
In response to a Member’s question about when the new CRM system would be in 
place for the Highways Service, the Director of Highways stated that he would check 
with ICT colleagues and respond to the Member. 
 
The Director of Highways confirmed that work would take place to identify lessons 
that could be learnt from the Chorlton Cycleway consultation, including on 
engagement with businesses, and that, on the basis of lessons learnt from a range 
of major projects, the Consultation and Engagement Guide would be reviewed, 
including consideration of how non-responses were interpreted.  
 
In response to a Member’s questions, the Head of Network Management reported 
that his service had a Development Control Team which worked closely with 
Planning and that his service was a statutory consultee on planning applications, 
identifying improvements that could be made to the road network through planning 
conditions or Section 106 funding, advising that the latter now had to be clearly 
linked to the impact of the development.  He reported that flagstones were now being 
laid on concrete or mortar rather than sand beds to address the problem of loose 
flagstones.  In response to a question from the Chair about gullies, he reported that 
the Council had invested significantly in highways drainage, although there was 
more work to be done.  He outlined how gullies were cleaned and tested and, if 
necessary, further investigations were carried out to identify the cause of the 
problem and the best solution.  In response to a question from the Chair, he outlined 
how his service worked with TfGM to better understand road congestion and good 
network management and advised that further information could be provided in a 
future report. 
 
Decisions: 
 
1. To request that the information on value for money that had been excluded 

from the report be circulated to Committee Members. 
 

2. To receive a report at a future meeting on lessons learnt from major 
projects. 

 
ERSC/24/04  Pavement Parking 
 
The Committee received a report of the Strategic Director (Neighbourhoods) which 
provided an overview of issues relating to pavement parking. 
 
Key points and themes within the report included: 
 

• Managing pavement parking, including physical prevention, accommodation 
and enforcement; 

Page 46

Item 9



• Consequential effects of preventing pavement parking; and 

• Pavement parking in Manchester. 
 
Key points and queries that arose from the Committee’s discussions included: 
 

• The problems that pavement parking caused in Members’ wards for 
pedestrians, particularly wheelchair users and those with pushchairs, and 
local residents and that the extent of the problem was not captured in the 
report; 

• That wards neighbouring the city centre were particularly badly affected due 
to commuters parking on their streets; 

• Concern about people driving on the pavement and that enforcement action 
should be taken; 

• Damage to pavements from vehicles, particularly Heavy Goods Vehicles;  

• To support action to address pavement parking, while recognising the 
challenges involved in this; 

• Concern that there was insufficient guidance from the Government on 
addressing this; 

• Questions about trials schemes and the need to communicate the changes to 
drivers; 

• That some drivers were not deterred by fines because it was not a lot of 
money to them; 

• To request a further report following a response from the Government or 
when data was available from the trial schemes; and 

• Noting that in some areas banning pavement parking would make a road 
effectively a one-lane road, due to the width of the roads; and 

• That the language in the report should demonstrate that other road users 
were being prioritised over car users. 

 
In response to Members’ questions about the trial project to prevent pavement 
parking, the Executive Member for Environment and Transport reported that there 
was no blueprint for this as yet due to the complexities involved.  She reported that 
they were looking across the whole city for trial areas, that consideration needed to 
be given to where the cars would go if they were not parked on the pavement and 
that part of the work was about behaviour change and reducing the number of cars 
in the city.  She advised that it was important not to just displace the problem into 
different areas.  In response to a Member’s comments about Operation Park Safe in 
Sheffield, she reported that GMP were looking to other areas for good practice which 
could be adopted in Manchester.  She informed Members that she was also 
engaging with local MPs to make progress on this issue. 
 
In response to a Member’s question, the Director of Highways reported that GMP 
was looking into using photographic evidence provided by members of the public to 
support enforcement but that clarification was needed on the definition of obstruction 
in relation to pavement parking offences.  He agreed with a point from the Chair 
about a minimum width of clear footpath being a useful measure, stating that this 
would be useful for defining obstruction and for prioritising areas for intervention.  In 
response to a further question, he confirmed that grass verges were included under 
the pavement parking powers in place in London.  He informed Members that, if 

Page 47

Item 9



similar powers were extended to Manchester, consultation and engagement with 
drivers and residents would take place before it was introduced.  In response to a 
question from the Chair, he stated that, if a vehicle caused damage, for example, to 
a bollard, the Council would try to recover the costs from the driver but that 
cumulative damage to pavements due to vehicles driving over them was difficult to 
attribute to an individual driver.  He advised that there would be a challenge in 
balancing the interests of pedestrians against the loss of on-street parking for 
residents. 
 
The Chair requested that a representative from GMP be invited to attend next time 
this item was considered. 
 
Decisions: 
 
1. To note: 
 

• The legislative position with regard to managing and enforcing parking on the 
pavement, with particular reference to the current issues relating to the 
definition of “obstruction” in law; 

• The challenges with respect to the consequences of displaced parking when 
implementing measures to prevent or enforce against pavement parking; 

• The ongoing work to identify suitable locations for the introduction of a trial 
project in Manchester to prevent pavement parking, in order to evaluate the 
consequential impacts of displaced parking and;  

• That the Executive Member for Transport and Environment will write to the 
Secretary of State for Transport to request clarity on the offence of 
“obstruction” in these circumstances, and to seek confirmation of a timeframe 
for the devolution of civil enforcement powers for obstruction 
offences/contraventions and the powers to introduce a ban on pavement 
parking to Local Authorities outside London 

 
2. To request a further report at an appropriate time, following a response from 

the Government or when data is available from the trials, and to invite a 
representative from GMP to attend this meeting. 
 

ERSC/24/05 Overview Report 
 
A report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit was submitted. The overview 
report contained key decisions within the Committee’s remit, responses to previous 
recommendations and the Committee’s work programme, which the Committee was 
asked to approve. 
 
The Chair informed Members that the report on the Cultural Strategy had been 
deferred to the next municipal year. 
   
Decision: 
  
That the Committee note the report and agree the work programme. 

Page 48

Item 9



Communities and Equalities Scrutiny Committee 
 

Minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday, 5 December 2023 
 
Present:  
Councillor Hitchen (Chair) – in the Chair 
Councillors Azra Ali, Doswell, Good, Ogunbambo, Rawson, Sheikh and Wills 
 
Also present:  
Councillor Rahman, Statutory Deputy Leader 
Councillor Midgley, Deputy Leader  
Councillor T Robinson, Executive Member (Healthy Manchester and Adult Social 
Care) 
 
CESC/23/51  Minutes 
 
Decision: That the minutes of the previous meeting, held on 7 November 2023, be 

approved as a correct record.  

 
CESC/23/52  Age Friendly Manchester Refreshed Strategy 2023-2028  

Draft Delivery Plan 
 
The committee considered a report of the Director of Public Health and the Age 

Friendly Manchester Programme Lead which outlined Manchester’s new age friendly 

strategy Manchester: a city for life 2023–2028 and associated draft delivery plan, 

which built on previous progress and provided a vision for Manchester over the next 

five years. This included a series of immediate and preventative responses to 

address the ongoing impact of the pandemic and the ensuing cost-of-living crisis on 

the over 50s.  

 

Key points and themes within the report included: 

 

• Providing an introduction to the new ageing strategy;  

• The development of the new strategy; 

• Governance arrangements for the Age Friendly Programme  

• A summary of the strategy, including its themes; and  

• The draft delivery plan, which set out the activities and collaborative work to be 

delivered across the city by the Council, its partners and with local 

communities. 

 

Some of the key points and queries that arose from the committee’s discussion 

included: 

 

• Welcoming the draft delivery plan and requesting that the committee receives 

progress updates every 6 months;  

• How the Council working with social housing providers to encourage and 

ensure adaptations are made to existing properties to enable residents to age 

in their homes; 

Page 49

Item 9



• If the Age Friendly Manchester Older People’s Board included a 

representative from the LGBTQIA+ community; 

• Highlighting that the experience of turning 50 years old is different for 

everybody;  

• How the city’s neighbourhoods can be made Age Friendly;  

• How many attended Assembly meetings and how geographically 

representative this was;  

• The rationale behind choosing Cheetham Hill, Crumpsall and Gorton to test 

the Age Friendly Neighbourhood Manchester model;  

• Expressing ongoing concerns about undertaking the Age Friendly 

Neighbourhood Manchester model pilot in areas with existing infrastructure, 

and querying the fairness of this; 

• Recognising the need for greater funding for VCSE organisations that support 

older people;  

• Why only the development of the North Manchester Healthy Neighbourhood 

was mentioned under theme 2; 

• What specific analysis had been undertaken into the health and care needs of 

different demographics; 

• Whether there was a helpline for residents to contact to discuss housing 

adaptations; 

• What consideration had been given to older people seeking undergraduate 

and postgraduate education opportunities; and 

• Recognising that residents in North Manchester were likely to suffer ill-health 

for longer than those in South Manchester. 

 

The Executive Member for Healthy Manchester and Adult Social Care stated that the 

Age Friendly Manchester Strategy was launched in the previous week and endorsed 

by Full Council at its meeting in November. He explained that the delivery plan for the 

strategy aimed to ensure that older people in Manchester felt heard and could see 

changes enacted as a result of using their voice and that the impact of the Covid-19 

pandemic and cost-of-living crisis were considered throughout the strategy and 

delivery plan. He confirmed that the delivery plan would be launched in January 

following consideration by the Older People’s Board.  

 

The Director of Public Health stated that there was a strong corporate ownership of 

the strategy across the Council with the Executive Director of Adult Social Services 

chairing the Age Friendly Manchester Executive, which included membership from 

across all Council directorates. He also explained that consultation with community 

groups would continue throughout December and any recommendations from the 

committee would be incorporated into the final delivery plan.  

 

In response to members’ queries, the Programme Lead – Age Friendly Manchester 

explained that the strategy aimed to identify economic inequalities as well as other 

characteristics and intersectionality. He noted that the health of a 50-year-old 

Bangladeshi person in Manchester was equivalent to that of an 80-year-old white 

woman and the wider Making Manchester Fairer programme sought to address this.  

Page 50

Item 9



 

It was also explained that work had been undertaken previously with the LGBT 

Foundation to support the Pride in Ageing initiative, which involved the Council 

providing funding to identify the experience of over-50s in the LGBTQ+ community 

and how this differed to younger LGBTQ+ people. The Programme Lead – Age 

Friendly Manchester advised that this initiative led to the establishment of a Greater 

Manchester advisory group of older LBGTQ+ people who provided detail on their 

lived experience and a Manchester resident had been recruited from this advisory 

group to sit on the Older People’s Board. This was also emulated through the Carer’s 

Network and the BAME Network to ensure representation from a range of 

communities.  

 

It was noted that more work was needed with regards to housing and the Age 

Friendly Manchester Executive was yet to meet to discuss this and to provide a 

strategic direction.  The Executive Member for Healthy Manchester and Adult Social 

advised that a review into this had been completed between his portfolio and the 

Housing and Development portfolio to identify how this work would be monitored 

going forwards. This was governed by the Adult Social Care service and he stated 

the ambition to ensure that housing providers had the suitable level of support to 

enable implementation and cited the Manchester Equipment and Adaptations 

Partnership as a good example of this.  

 

In response to a request for 6-month progress updates, the Director of Public Health 

confirmed that this could be provided.  

 

The Programme Lead – Age Friendly Manchester explained that a pilot would be 

undertaken in Cheetham Hill, Crumpsall and Gorton and Abbey Hey but the 

programme aimed to develop a neighbourhood model which would include the 

physical, social, and cultural features of an Age Friendly neighbourhood. It was 

important to understand local older populations as part of this work. The committee 

was informed that these areas were selected for the pilot because of work that had 

been undertaken in Gorton prior to the Covid-19 pandemic because of the extra care 

scheme, the neighbourhood hub, and plans for regeneration of the district centre. 

The Programme Lead – Age Friendly Manchester specifically noted opportunities 

around changing population, levels of deprivation and mixed housing use and 

opportunities to influence at a local and strategic level. Funding had also been 

received across GM to develop an Ageing in Place partnership model, who provided 

extra resources for work in Gorton and Abbey Hey. The committee was further 

advised that there was an aim to undertake this work somewhere within North 

Manchester with a mixed demographic and that the development of the hospital site 

and residential areas provided a clear opportunity for this.  The committee noted this 

response but continued to express concern over the practicality of this scheme and 

that this did not take into consideration areas without existing infrastructure.  

 

It was noted that the pilot areas faced particular challenges including poverty and 

poor health irrespective of existing infrastructure and the Programme Lead – Age 

Friendly Manchester explained that the pilot would help to identify ways in which local 

Page 51

Item 9



strategic partnerships, such as ward coordination, elected members and voluntary 

organisations, could be utilised to understand older people and how services could 

be delivered in an Age Friendly way across the city. The Executive Member for 

Healthy Manchester and Adult Social Care reiterated that the pilot areas were strong 

starting points for assessing and developing the model.  

 

In response to queries about the Assembly, the committee was informed that this 

consisted of 90 members who met once per quarter. There was a strong ethnic 

diversity on the Assembly but a need for more members aged between 50 and 70 

years old and from North Manchester was acknowledged.   

 

The Director of Public Health recognised the budget constraints facing VCSE 

organisations and stated that the Council was trying to provide resources where 

additional capacity was required through Our Manchester Funds.  

 

In response to a question regarding the specific analysis undertaken into the health 

and care needs of different demographics, the committee was informed of the Better 

Outcomes, Better Lives programme which aimed to meet the different needs of 

communities in Manchester. The Director of Public Health acknowledged the need for 

a responsive health and social care service and the inequalities between 

communities and that it was important not to make generalisations about need, 

particularly following the Covid-19 pandemic. He also informed members of Sounding 

Boards with Community Health Equity Manchester, which enabled collaborative 

working with partners across the sector.  

 

The Programme Lead – Age Friendly Manchester noted the specific work being 

undertaken in North Manchester and explained that the proposed International 

Centre for Action on Healthy Ageing would be a national site but located in North 

Manchester. He reiterated that the Council’s intention was to strategically influence 

developments like this to ensure the promotion of the Age Friendly Manchester 

principles and objectives.  The Director of Public Health also stated that the proposed 

International Centre for Action on Healthy Ageing would benefit the whole city.  

 

The Executive Member for Healthy Manchester and Adult Social Care stated that 

work around North Manchester General Hospital should not be viewed in isolation as 

this would be a model for work across the city.   

 

With regards to education opportunities for over 50s, it was acknowledged that these 

were typically around improving an individual's skillset, rather than university 

degrees, but this could be looked into further with the Council’s Work and Skills team.  

 

Officers also recognised the impact of geography and locality on health inequalities 

and stated that the long-term impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on mental health was 

still largely unknown, with poor health still felt more widely in certain ar4eas of the 

city. It was stated that further investigation into this would be undertaken through the 

medium-term plan for the strategy.  

 

Page 52

Item 9



The Executive Member for Healthy Manchester and Adult Social Care reiterated how 

the strategy encompassed much of the Council’s work and service areas and stated 

that the delivery plan was ambitious and in-depth. He commended the work of the 

officers involved and paid special tribute to the Programme Lead - Age Friendly 

Manchester who would be retiring in early 2024. 

 

In closing the item, the Chair also placed on record her thanks to officers for their 

work on the strategy and delivery plan.  

 

Decision: 

 

That  

 

1. the report be noted; 

2. the committee requests a progress update on the work of the Age Friendly 

Manchester Strategy Delivery Plan in 6 months, to include an update on 

recruitment to the Assembly; plans for transport improvements; and an update 

on communications; 

3. the committee requests to undertake an annual ‘deep-dive’ into the Age 

Friendly Manchester Strategy and Delivery Plan.  

 

CESC/23/53 Our Manchester Funds Programme Overview 

 

The committee considered a report of the Assistant Chief Executive which provided 

an overview of the current Our Manchester Funds programme, activities and priorities 

and brought together new information and information previously considered by the 

committee about individual aspects of the programme.  

 

Key points and themes within the report included: 

 

• Providing an introduction and background to the Voluntary, Community, Faith 

and Social Enterprise (VCFSE) sector and the Our Manchester Voluntary and 

Community Sector (OMVCS) fund;  

• The main priorities of the programme; 

• The Supporting Communities Fund;  

• The VCFSE Infrastructure Support Contract;  

• Other targeted support, including the Cost of Living Fund; 

• The Household Support Fund; 

• Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic VCSFE Organisations Support Fund;  

• Covid Recovery Fund;  

• Other partnerships and forums;  

• The OMVCS Programme Board and governance arrangements; and 

• How the Council’s wider priorities, such as Zero Carbon and the Real Living 

Wage, were reflected in the Programme. 

 

Page 53

Item 9



Some of the key points and queries that arose from the committee’s discussion 

included: 

 

• Welcoming the officer presentation;  

• Whether voluntary organisations had direct access to Household Support 

Funding (HSF) or if this had to be requested from Macc at the point of need;  

• How many community leaders attended Zero Carbon training sessions;  

• How due diligence was undertaken with regards to the distribution of HSF; 

• How equality, diversity and inclusivity were embedded in the programme to 

ensure funding helps marginalised communities;  

• Why the Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic VCFSE Organisations Support Fund 

had been reduced to £95k;  

• When an impact assessment on the programme would be undertaken and 

whether this would include data on the number of people supported;  

• Whether the Council had any influence over funding priorities, such as the 

cost-of-living crisis; and  

• Requesting more detail on the support provided by Conversation 2 Cash 

(C2C).  

 

In introducing the item, the Deputy Leader placed on record her appreciation for the 

work of the VCFSE sector given the challenging circumstances they operate in and 

the high levels of demand they face. 

 

The committee received a presentation which highlighted the Council’s substantial 

investment into the VCFSE sector, despite having limited funds available, and 

provided an overview of the different funds that had been awarded to community 

groups as well as feedback from service users and funded organisations.  

 

In response to members’ queries, the Policy and Programmes Manager 

(Communities and VCSE) explained that the objective of Macc’s distribution of HSF 

was to provide support directly to residents in need. He stated that Macc had referral 

partners across the VCFSE sector who could present to Macc with their support 

needs. A support request was then reviewed against specific criteria and the referring 

organisation would provide the support if approved, with Macc reimbursing the 

organisation within a fortnight. The committee was advised that this process had 

been in place previously to great success.  

 

In response to a question from the Chair, it was stated that Macc undertook due 

diligence on all prospective referral partners and produced monthly reports on the 

support provided by each organisation in receipt of HSF. This report also provided 

information on service users by locality and communities of identity. Officers agreed 

to confirm outside of the meeting whether there was a monitoring process for HSF 

funds issued by Macc and HSF funds issued by the Council to ensure there was no 

duplication.  

 

Page 54

Item 9



The committee was informed that there had been online and face-to-face training 

sessions with community leaders regarding the Zero Carbon agenda. A ‘train the 

trainer’ model was used to enable information to be shared widely across individual 

organisations and to ensure continuation of skills. Information on the amount of 

people who attended these sessions would be provided outside of the meeting.  

 

The Policy and Programmes Manager (Communities and VCSE) advised members 

that an Equality Impact Assessment underpinned the whole Our Manchester Funds 

Programme and noted that the Council had provided an uplift in funding to Black, 

Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME) community organisations through a specific 

Support Fund and this would continue to be a priority. He recognised, however, that 

the Our Manchester Funds Programme sought to provide assistance to a range of 

groups and organisations which supported a variety of communities of identity.  

 

It was stated that the Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic VCFSE Organisations Support 

Fund had been reduced to £95k following an exceptional payment that was made to 

an organisation in need. Collaborative conversations were currently underway to 

decide how best to use this fund and the Policy and Programmes Manager 

(Communities and VCSE) endeavoured to involve the member who raised this 

question in these discussions.  

 

In response to a query regarding an impact assessment, members were informed 

that one was completed in 2021 which reviewed every VCFSE organisation in receipt 

of Council funding and this could be repeated in the 2024/25 financial year to identify 

levels of funding, where funding streams came from and types of funding. The Policy 

and Programmes Manager (Communities and VCSE) noted that the funding 

landscape was complex with differing criteria between funds and that an Impact 

Assessment would provide a comprehensive picture of all VCFSE funding. Members 

were also advised that the annual report on the Our Manchester Voluntary and 

Community Sector Fund, which was last considered by the committee in March 2023, 

assessed the achievements of the Fund and was supported by information provided 

by funded organisations although the Assistant Chief Executive highlighted that it 

was important not to place a burdensome monitoring process on VCFSE groups.  

 

The Chair noted that there were great community groups in each area in the city but 

stated that there needed to be a greater focus on community reach within the 

monitoring process. The Policy and Programmes Manager (Communities and VCSE) 

confirmed that the current monitoring process was outcome-led and that groups were 

asked to identify their objectives and to provide metrics and indicators to demonstrate 

their progress. He explained that groups were asked to provide figures on the 

number of service users, their communities of identity and what part of the city they 

were from every 6 months, and he offered to provide a brief report to the committee 

after each monitoring period.  

 

It was also stated that the Council was reviewing a number of different funding 

opportunities to understand what an appropriate response to cost-of-living support 

Page 55

Item 9



should be in the next financial year, citing that £600k had been allocated for this in 

2023/24.  

 

In concluding the item, the Chair thanked each volunteer who provided their time and 

support to local communities and asked that officers pass this message on.  

 

 

Decision:  

 

That the committee 

 

1. notes the report; 

2. requests further information on the number of community leaders who have 

attended Zero Carbon training;  

3. requests confirmation on monitoring arrangements for the distribution of HSF 

between the Council and Macc;  

4. writes to the Chancellor of the Exchequer to express concerns about the 

possibility of Household Support Fund not being continued in 2024/25; 

5. welcomes the offer of 6-monthly update reports on the outcome of monitoring 

periods;  

6. requests more detail on the support provided by Conversation 2 Cash (C2C); 

and  

7. requests that the next update report on the Our Manchester Funds 

Programme references organisations which donate time and goods to their 

communities.  

 

CESC/23/54 Final Report and Recommendations of the Crime and 

Antisocial Behaviour Task and Finish Group 
 

The committee considered a report of the Crime and Antisocial Behaviour Task and 

Finish Group which presented the findings of the detailed investigation undertaken by 

the Task and Finish Group for endorsement by the Committee. 

 

Key points and themes within the report included: 

 

• Providing an introduction and background to antisocial behaviour (ASB) in 

Manchester and the work of the Task and Finish Group;  

• Membership of the Task and Finish Group; 

• Objectives and key lines of enquiry;  

• Methodology and evidence base;  

• Findings of the Task and Finish Group; and 

• Recommendations of the Task and Finish Group.  

 

The Statutory Deputy Leader thanked members involved in the Task and Finish 

Group for their work and comprehensive recommendations.  

 

Page 56

Item 9



An amendment was requested to recommendation 1 of the Task and Finish Group to 

include reference to antisocial behaviour occurring in Air BnBs and other short-term 

let properties.  

 

The committee was also informed that a report on responses to and progress on the 

recommendations would be considered by the committee in May 2024. 

 

On behalf of the Task and Finish Group, the Chair expressed thanks to the officers 

and partners who were involved in the review.  

 

Decision:  

 

That the committee endorses the recommendations made by the Crime and 

Antisocial Behaviour Task and Finish Group, subject to an amendment to 

recommendation 1.  

 

CESC/23/55  Overview Report 
 
The committee considered a report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit 

which contained a list of key decisions yet to be taken within the Committee’s remit, 

responses to previous recommendations and the Committee’s work programme, 

which the Committee was asked to approve.  

  

Decision: 

 

That the report be noted, and the work programme agreed. 

 

Page 57

Item 9



Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee  
 
Minutes of the meeting held on 6 December 2023 
 
Present: 
Councillor Reid – in the Chair 
Councillors N Ali, Alijah, Amin, Bano, Bell, Fletcher, Gartside, Lovecy, Marsh, Muse, 
Nunney, Sadler and Sharif Mahamed 
 
Co-opted Voting Members: 
Mr G Cleworth, Parent Governor Representative 
Mr Y Yonis, Parent Governor Representative 
 
Also present: 
Councillor Bridges, Executive Member for Early Years, Children and Young People 
Councillor Hacking, Executive Member for Skills, Employment and Leisure 
John Rowlands, Executive Principal and CEO, Greater Manchester Academy Trust 
(GMAT)  
 
Apologies: 
Councillors Hewitson, Judge, Ludford and McHale 
Canon S Mapledoram, Representative of the Diocese of Manchester 
Ms L Smith, Primary Sector Teacher Representative 
 
CYP/23/54  Minutes 
 
Decision 
 
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 8 November 2023.  
 
CYP/23/55  Attainment Headline outcomes 2023 (provisional) 
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Education which provided a 
summary of the 2023 provisional outcomes of statutory assessment at the end of the 
Early Years Foundation Stage, Key Stage 1, Key Stage 2, Key Stage 4 and Key 
Stage 5. It also provided a list of actions which were being progressed to address 
some of the gaps in learning. 
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
 

• Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS) outcomes; 

• Year 1 Phonic Test outcomes; 

• Key Stage 1 outcomes; 

• Key Stage 2 provisional results; 

• Key Stage 4 GCSE provisional headline results; 

• Stage 5 A Level provisional headline results; and 

• Next steps. 
 
 

Page 58

Item 9



 
The Committee heard from John Rowlands, Executive Principal and CEO, Greater 
Manchester Academy Trust (GMAT), which was a small multi-academy trust which 
provided nursery, primary and secondary education in north Manchester, as well as 
associate leadership and management support to a local authority-maintained 
nursery and Children’s Centres.  He outlined how the Trust provided a cradle to 
career approach within the area, supporting children, families and communities.  He 
reported that the area served had high levels of deprivation and that the Trust worked 
to understand the lived experience of the children and focused on both quality of 
teaching and mitigating the impact of social disadvantage, working with the Council 
and other partners.  He highlighted the importance of young people having not only 
good results but also developing the right character and a positive perception of their 
area.  He informed the Committee about the role of the Trust’s Manchester 
Communication Research School, whose role was to impart evidence-informed 
practice across the region and beyond.  He highlighted some of the work the Trust 
had been doing to secure improvements, including a focus on early years and on 
mental health, both in school and within families, supporting community cohesion and 
working with partners on issues such as housing.  He provided an overview of the 
current position, including the impact of the pandemic, particularly on younger 
children, which schools were working to address, and positive results at GCSE, 
highlighting the progress made by children from disadvantaged backgrounds.  He 
finished by emphasising the importance of investing in early years now in order to 
secure positive future outcomes for disadvantaged children. 
 
Some of the key points and themes that arose from the Committee’s discussions 
were: 
 

• To welcome the approach taken by GMAT, including work with the local 
community; 

• Competing pressures on headteachers and senior leadership teams; 

• School workforce; 

• International New Arrivals; 

• Children with Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND), including how 
children with Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder (FASD) and other additional 
needs were being accommodated, including in relation to Behaviour Policies; 
and 

• The impact of the pandemic and lessons learnt. 
 
John Rowlands outlined how his Trust recruited teachers, based not only on teaching 
ability but also on their alignment to the Trust’s values and highlighted the excellent 
teacher training centres in the region.  In response to a question on Continuing 
Professional Development (CPD), he reported that the Trust used a long-term model 
based on evidence-informed practice to address needs and gaps in the school 
workforce.   He informed Members how the Trust had responded to the arrival of 26 
pupils evacuated from Afghanistan, supporting them and their families.  He advised 
that there was a recruitment and retention challenge in schools in relation to both 
teachers and the wider school workforce and highlighted the Trust’s retention policy.  
In response to a question on advice for secondary headteachers in relation to 
supporting the transition of pupils into Year 7 where they had not come from a 
primary school within the same Trust, he reported that it was important to work with 

Page 59

Item 9



the Council on excellence in transition and to understand the context and lived 
experience of those children entering the school.  He reported that his Trust had put 
in place a pastoral tracker across 17 schools in north Manchester which helped with 
obtaining a full picture of a child and family’s circumstances and he advised that 
parents were key partners who were experts on their circumstances and it was 
important to work effectively with both the family and professional partners. 
 
The Assistant Director of Education reported that all schools were expected to make 
reasonable adjustments for children with SEND, including in relation to the 
application of behaviour policies, and she highlighted some of the support available 
to schools, including the Inclusion Toolkit, outreach support from special schools and 
the Autism in Schools Project.  In response to a Member’s question about children 
who had not yet received a diagnosis, she advised that the approach taken was to 
meet the presenting needs, rather than waiting for a diagnosis. 
 
The Executive Member for Early Years, Children and Young People highlighted the 
positive impact of Manchester schools on the city’s children and the impact that not 
being in school or early years settings during the pandemic had had, stating that 
more time should be spent as a country considering the impact of this and the 
mitigation needed to address it.  In response to a question about increasing numbers 
of children with SEND, he advised that there was a challenge in identifying whether 
some children had missed developmental milestones because of the pandemic or 
had longer-term additional needs.  He advised that further information on the work 
the Council was doing could be included in a future report on SEND. 
 
The Assistant Director of Education outlined some of the learning from the pandemic, 
including the importance of a holistic approach from schools, continuing education as 
much as possible while children were not in school, particularly in relation to literacy, 
and the disproportionate impact on young children from missing out on early 
socialisation and the importance of taking steps to address that quickly after that 
period. 
 
In response to a question about teaching children who had English as an Additional 
Language (EAL), the Director of Education reported that this was part of the routine 
work of some Manchester schools who had become experts in this but that in cases 
where children from, for example, Afghanistan, were placed in schools which did not 
have that experience, the schools were being paired up with more experienced 
schools which could share their expertise.  In response to a further question about 
EAL, John Rowlands reported that his Trust had five tiers to reflect the different levels 
of English that pupil might have with a separate approach for each tier, which could 
include enabling them to study their heritage language. 
 
The Chair advised that the Committee would receive a further report at a later date 
with a breakdown of the results including by gender and ethnicity and would then be 
able to look into these factors in more detail.  She highlighted the experience of white 
disadvantaged boys and the importance of parental support and expectations.  She 
welcomed the work that GMAT was doing, including working with children from their 
early years throughout their education as well as working with the community, and 
asked what more support the Council and Councillors could provide, for example, in 
relation to housing.  She highlighted the challenges families were experiencing in 

Page 60

Item 9



relation to housing and how the Council was working to address this.  She also asked 
how budget constraints impacted on the Trust’s ability to do this work. 
 
John Rowlands reported that GMAT had an effective partnership relationship with the 
Council and other organisations such as Shelter to address housing issues.  He 
acknowledged the Chair’s point about constraints on school budgets and advised 
that efficiencies could be achieved as part of a multi-academy trust as well as by 
sharing resources across the wider group of schools which were part of the Family 
Zone.  
 
Decision 
 
To note the report. 
 
CYP/23/56  A progress update on Childcare Sufficiency 2023 and the 
Early Years Capital Programme 
 
The Committee considered a report of the Strategic Director of Children and 
Education Services which provided an overview of the Manchester’s Childcare 
Sufficiency Report 2023 and a summary of progress to date on the capital investment 
made in the Council’s Early Years estate. 
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
 

• The Early Years National Context; 

• Sufficiency of childcare and early learning opportunities in Manchester; 

• New childcare entitlements from April 2024; 

• Provision for children with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND); 

• Capital improvements to the Early Years estate; 

• Phase 2 update; 

• Additional developments to the Early Years estate; and 

• Lease reviews. 
 
Some of the key points and themes that arose from the Committee’s discussions 
were: 
 

• To welcome the focus on training the workforce; 

• The decarbonisation bids for six Early Years buildings; 

• Concern that the funding to develop and expand wraparound childcare in 
Manchester for primary school aged children from working households only 
related to term-time; and 

• That some of the areas with insufficient 2-year-old places to meet potential 
demand were very close together (for example, Old Moat, Withington and 
Fallowfield) and what was being done to address this. 

 
The Lead for Statutory Area Early Year Access and Sufficiency reported that she 
would speak to officers in Capital Programmes to get an update on the 
decarbonisation bids.  In response to a Member’s question, she provided an 
overview of the Dingley’s Promise Inclusive Practice Training and stated that she 
would check how FASD was covered in the training and respond to the Member.  

Page 61

Item 9



She acknowledged the Member’s point about working parents needing wraparound 
childcare during school holidays and stated that it was hoped that developing 
sustainable wrapround provision during term-time, which included supporting families 
to claim all their entitlements, would help providers to extend the offer further.   
 
The Director of Education highlighted the Holiday Activities and Food (HAF) scheme 
which ran during the school holidays for children who were eligible for Free School 
Meals (FSM). 
 
The Executive Member for Early Years, Children and Young People reported that a 
lot of work was taking place on Early Years buildings which would have a 
demonstrable impact on the buildings’ carbon footprint, whether or not the bids 
referred to in the report were successful. 
 
The Chair expressed concern about changes in immigration rules, levels of pay and 
qualification requirements in the Early Years sector affecting recruitment and 
retention.  She highlighted that the new funding for wraparound care was for the set-
up costs and that parents would still have to pay for their children to attend breakfast 
clubs and after-school clubs under the current Government.  She informed Members 
about the difficulties some parents in her ward were experiencing in finding childcare 
places.  She asked what was being done to increase capacity in the Early Years 
sector as the free offer expanded, including the recruitment of additional 
childminders, advising that billboards could be used, as well as reaching out to black 
and ethnic minority communities.  She expressed concern that asbestos removal 
work to the Early Years estate in her area had been carried out during the day and 
advised that it should be carried out on evenings and weekends. 
 
The Lead for Statutory Area Early Year Access and Sufficiency confirmed that 
recruitment and retention of staff was the main issue affecting the sustainability of the 
Early Years sector.  She reported that the Council was working with Greater 
Manchester colleagues on strategies to address this, including training opportunities, 
as well as raising this issue through consultations.  She stated that this had included 
sending representation on the challenges being faced to the Education Select 
Committee, including highlighting that pay rates were low.  She acknowledged 
Members’ concerns about neighbouring wards which had sufficiency issues, advising 
that her team looked at this wider picture, and she provided an update on the areas 
Members had raised and work to improve sufficiency, including exploring options for 
existing providers to expand their provision and supporting providers with the 
recruitment and retention of staff.  In response to comments from the Chair about 
encouraging schools to increase their Early Years capacity, including taking children 
from the age of two, she confirmed that this was something which could be explored 
further in areas where more places were needed.  She informed Members about a 
consultation that the Council was currently undertaking with childminders in the city, 
including making them aware of the new funding streams.  She reported that due 
diligence was being carried out in relation to all asbestos removal work. 
 
The Executive Member for Early Years, Children and Young People expressed 
concern that the Government was expanding entitlement to free childcare without 
funding the sector properly.  He informed Members about plans to better recognise 

Page 62

Item 9



and reward the work of childcare providers, including an event at Gorton Monastery 
in February 2024.  
 
Decision 
 
To note the report. 
 
CYP/23/57  Post-16 Education Employment Training Strategic Plan 
2022- 25 - Progress Update 
 
The Committee considered a report of the Strategic Director of Children and 
Education Services which provided an update on work done by the Council which 
had had a positive impact on increasing the number of young people accessing 
Education Employment Training (EET) opportunities in the city over the last 2 years. 
It also outlined the plans for this work moving forward which aligned with the Our 
Manchester Forward to 2025 Strategy and Manchester Inclusion Strategy 2022-25. 
The report outlined how the cohort of young people post 16 was set to increase year 
on year which was causing significant pressure on places across the post 16 sector. 
It stated that plans were in place to expand existing provision and to open new 
provisions but there was no planned growth of places for technical courses.  It also 
stated that projected continued growth of the post 16 cohort in the next few years as 
well as the planned reform of Level 2 technical education might adversely impact on 
the numbers of young people not in education, employment or training going forward. 
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
 

• Background/context; 

• Progress to date in relation to; 
o Young people not in Education, Employment or Training (NEET); 
o Post-16 provision; 
o The Risk of NEET Indicator (RONI); and 
o Qualification reform; and 

• Business engagement and Skills for Life. 
 
Some of the key points and themes that arose from the Committee’s discussions 
were: 
 

• Tracking young people who had been identified through the RONI after they 
had entered college and supporting them beyond the first term; 

• That NEET prevention work needed to be FASD-, neurobehaviourally- and 
trauma-informed; 

• To request that a representative of Career Connect be invited when this item 
was considered again;   

• The approach to supporting young people with SEND who were at risk of 
becoming NEET; 

• The lack of clarity on post-16 technical pathways, which was making it difficult 
for schools and students to prepare; 

• Mentoring opportunities; 

• The need for additional sixth form provision in north Manchester; and 

• Challenges in finding work experience placements. 

Page 63

Item 9



 
The Executive Member for Skills, Employment and Leisure emphasised the 
importance of urgently addressing the pressure on post-16 technical and vocational 
places, highlighting the impact on the quality of the post-16 offer and on the number 
of young people who were NEET and he reported that the Council was working 
closely with partners on this. 
 
The Post-16 Lead outlined how young people who had been identified in Year 11 as 
at risk of becoming NEET were supported, stating that this continued over the 
summer period.  He reported that checks were then carried out early in the new 
academic year on whether they had started at their planned destination and, if not, 
further support was quickly put into place.  He informed Members that in the last 
academic year, schools had been encouraged to identify young people earlier, in 
Year 10.  He informed Members that work took place with partners to provide 
appropriate support for young people with SEND who were at risk of becoming 
NEET.  He also informed Members about work to provide a range of opportunities for 
young people, beyond traditional college places, including providers who could 
provide appropriate opportunities for targeted groups of young people. 
 
The Director of Education informed Members that a member of staff from Career 
Connect was co-located in special schools for children with social, emotional and 
mental health needs and the Pupil Referral Unit (PRU) so they would have a good 
understanding of and relationship with the young people they were supporting.  She 
reported that a lot of other special schools had sixth forms so would continue to work 
with and support their young people.  She advised that, for young people with SEND 
in mainstream schools, the SENCO (Special Educational Needs Co-ordinator) in the 
school would work with the SENCO in the college on their transition.   She informed 
Members that all secondary schools had access to a mentoring programme.  She 
acknowledged the Member’s point about the need for more sixth form provision in 
north Manchester, advising that the Council was working hard in exploring options to 
address this gap. 
 
In response to a Member’s comments about supporting young people who had been 
identified through RONI beyond their first term at college, the Director of Education 
reported that post-16 settings had pastoral departments to support students.  The 
Post-16 Lead reported that there was also a transition period and that, if a young 
person left their course or training provision, they could receive support from Career 
Connect. 
 
The Director of Education reported that the specification for the technical pathway 
was still unclear.  She reported that the T-Level was an equivalent level to A-Levels 
and a pathway to university but could be too difficult for some 16-year-olds wanting to 
take a technical route, who needed another qualification as a stepping stone, such as 
a BTEC qualification; however, she advised, that the Government planned to abolish 
BTEC qualifications for subjects which had a T-Level. 
 
The Chair reported that some schools wanted to provide a sixth form but were unable 
to obtain the funding for this.  She asked about student places at Manchester 
College, following the closure of some of its sites.  She commented on the changes 
in the approach to supporting young people with learning disabilities, enabling 

Page 64

Item 9



greater independence.  She reported that, following the abolition of Connexions and 
Aim Higher, a lot of support for students was now provided by colleges themselves 
but that this impacted on their budgets.  She expressed concern at the gap between 
Level 2 qualifications and Level 3 T-Levels.  She highlighted the role Social Value 
could play in providing apprenticeships and supporting young people. 
 
In response to comments from Members about funding to expand post-16 places, the 
Executive Member for Early Years, Children and Young People advised that the 
Council had duties for sufficiency at post-16 without having the funding but had been 
working creatively to try to address sufficiency issues as well as lobbying the 
Government.  He acknowledged the importance of work experience placements, 
advising that this had been raised through the Our Year engagement and that 
addressing this would be a priority within the work to become a UNICEF Child-
Friendly City. 
 
The Director of Education reported that Manchester College had rationalised its 
estate, closing some of its sites while installing state-of-the-art facilities at the city 
centre and Openshaw campuses, in order to deliver technical qualifications, and that 
this had not been a reduction in student places. 
 
Decision 
 
To request that a representative of Career Connect be invited when this item is 
considered again. 
 
[Councillor Bridges declared a personal interest as a Board Member of the 
Manchester College and Governor of the LTE Group.] 
 
CYP/23/58  Overview Report 
 
A report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit was submitted. The overview 
report contained key decisions within the Committee’s remit, responses to previous 
recommendations and the Committee’s work programme, which the Committee was 
asked to approve. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the report and agree the work programme. 

Page 65

Item 9



 

 

Health Scrutiny Committee 
 
Minutes of the meeting held on 6 December 2023 
 
Present: 
Councillor Green – in the Chair 
Councillors Bayunu, Cooley, Curley, Hilal, Karney, Muse and Wilson 
 
Apologies: Councillor Reeves 
 
Also present:  
Councillor T. Robinson, Executive Member for Healthy Manchester and Adult Social 
Care 
Councillor Chambers, Deputy Executive Member for Healthy Manchester and Adult 
Social Care 
Councillor Midgley, Deputy Leader 
Councillor Rawlins, Executive Member for Environment and Transport 
Councillor Shilton Godwin, Chair of Environment, Climate Change and 
Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Committee 
Karin Connell, Strategic Lead, Health Equity and Inclusion, Manchester Integrated 
Care Partnership 
Darren Parsonage, Head of Operations (Vaccination/Designated Clinical Officer) 
SEND, NHS Greater Manchester (Manchester) 
Jo Walby, Chief Executive, Mustard Tree 
Dr Shaun Jackson, General Practitioner, Urban Village Medical Practice 
Liz Thomas, Homeless Health Nurse, Urban Village Medical Practice 
Jackie McVan, Head of Services Greater Manchester, CGL (Change Grow Live) 
Kevin, Service User, CGL  
Jay, Service User, CGL  
Dave, Service User, CGL  
Dr Fiona Watson, General Practitioner, Hawthorn Medical Centre 
Dr James Adams, General Practitioner, Hawthorn Medical Centre 
Dr Laura Parker, Specialist Trainee Registrar in Public Health 
Anna Bond, Deputy Director Manchester Climate Change Agency  
 
HSC/23/53 Minutes 
 
Decision 
 
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 8 November 2023. 
 
HSC/23/54 Health and Homelessness 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Public Health and the 
Executive Director of Adult Social Services that provided an overview of the work on 
health and homelessness in Manchester.   
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
 

Page 66

Item 9



 

 

• Describing that work was co-ordinated through the Manchester Health and 
Homelessness Task Group which had been established in 2016 under the 
leadership of the Director of Public Health; 

• Reporting that the Health and Homelessness Task Group had been established 
as part of the Manchester Homelessness Partnership (MHP) and launched with 
the Manchester Homelessness Charter in 2016; 

• Many people with lived experience of homelessness were involved in co-writing 
the Manchester Homelessness Charter which was an integral part of the current 
MHP Homelessness Strategy 2018-2023;   

• Reporting that to support and accelerate the successes of the MHP, and 
collaboration with the Greater Manchester Combined Authority, the Council had 
begun a refreshed transformation programme, A Place Called Home, in 2022; 

• An update on relevant local and national strategies; 

• Key statistics and epidemiological information; 

• Key health statistics from the National Health Needs Audit Report; 

• Describing the work of the various partners on the Task Group; and 

• Conclusion and next steps. 
 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were:  
 
• The Committee paid tribute to all partners working across the city to support 

homeless people; 

• Stating that the government had failed to respond to the issue of homelessness; 

• Noting that this failure placed a significant pressure on already depleted public 
services; 

• Did the Urban Village Medical Practice track homeless people to ensure they 
maintained contact with health services and attended health appointments; 

• Commenting that racism also needed to be considered as a health issue; 

• What was the criteria for an individual to access support from Mustard Tree; 

• Noting that when an asylum seeker was granted Leave to Remain they would 
often then present as homeless as they would lose any accommodation provided 
by the Home Office; and 

• What were the challenges to the Transformation Programme, A Place Called 
Home. 

 
Dr Shaun Jackson, General Practitioner, Urban Village Medical Practice described 
that the Practice had been supporting homeless people for approximately 25 years, 
servicing 14,0000 patients with an integrated homelessness provision. He described 
that the approach to this work had evolved over the years by working in partnership 
with commissioners. He described that the pillars on which they approached this 
homeless work was delivering primary care; providing in-reach work for homeless 
people admitted to Manchester Royal Infirmary; providing out-reach services; and 
advocating on the issue of homelessness and health across the wider health system, 
both locally and nationally. He commented that the NHS needed to invest in 
homelessness health services reiterating the point that homelessness needed to be 
considered as a health problem and that early deaths amongst homeless people was 
as a result of unmet medical need. In terms of gaps in health provision for homeless 
people he stated that he would identify appropriate care and support for homeless 
people with complex needs, particularly older homeless people. He said there was a 

Page 67

Item 9



 

 

lack of the correct specialist support in the correct care environment for such 
individuals. He also commented on the challenge in accessing mental health services 
and substance misuse services for homeless people. 
 
Dr Shaun Jackson, General Practitioner, Urban Village Medical Practice said that 
they did attempt to maintain continuity of care for homeless people, recognising that 
an individual could be temporarily housed in another area of the city or another 
borough. He said that they would have individual conversations on how to access the 
most appropriate health care, recognising that travelling to the Urban Village Medical 
Practice would often not be appropriate for an individual. In terms of supporting 
homeless people to attend appointments at other settings, he described that 
homeless people would use the Practice as a Care of Address so they became 
aware of appointments and the Practice could proactively support individuals.  
 
Liz Thomas, Homeless Health Nurse, Urban Village Medical Practice described that 
the informal tracking of homeless individuals was undertaken by partnership working 
and dialogue across a range of agencies. 
 
Reflecting on the comments from Dr Jackson, the Chair noted that the Committee 
would be considering a report on palliative care at the 7 February 2024 meeting and 
Dr Jackson would be invited to the meeting to contribute to the discussions.   
 
Jo Walby, Chief Executive, Mustard Tree addressed the Committee and said that she 
represented the non-statutory (i.e. voluntary) sector across the city who were working 
in partnership to support homeless people. She commented that the criteria for 
accessing support from Mustard Tree was anyone experiencing hardship. She said 
that Mustard Tree could not refer or allocate accommodation for homeless people, 
adding that the Homeless Team within the Council dealt with allocations. She said 
that they supported homeless people to access services, including health services, 
by helping people register with a GP and access addiction services. In addition, they 
would case manage more complex cases to support individuals attend appointments 
etc. She stated that they were recognised as a trusted voice who would advocate on 
behalf of homeless people. She paid tribute to the work undertaken by the Director of 
Public Health and the Executive Director of Adult Social Services for the work they 
had undertaken to bring partners and Council services together in Manchester to 
respond to this complex and challenging issue. 
 
Jo Walby, Chief Executive, Mustard Tree acknowledged the comments raised 
regarding Home Office decisions and the granting of Leave to Remain for asylum 
seekers. She described that there was little or no communication from the Home 
Office in regard to asylum seekers being housed in hotels in the city and referred to 
the increased demand on their services when this had happened. 
 
In response to a specific question asked regarding the data provided in relation to old 
age in the demographic characteristics of people owed a statutory homelessness 
duty by Manchester City Council, the Director of Public Health stated that further 
information would be circulated following the meeting. He further commented that the 
issue of structural racism and discrimination was understood and was a key stream 
of work as part of the Making Manchester Fairer work that was regularly reported to 
the Committee.  

Page 68

Item 9



 

 

The Deputy Leader described that the Transformation Programme (A Place Called 
Home) operated in a challenging context with the cumulative impact of austerity, 
Covid-19, the cost-of-living crisis, and the impact of national decisions on the asylum 
and migration process continuing to impact and exacerbate hardship for local 
communities, more often those with the least resources. She further reiterated the 
call for an end to Section 21 (no fault evictions) and for the immediate unfreezing of 
the Local Housing Allowance. She stated that despite these challenges the 
Homelessness Team was working hard to reduce the number of homeless families 
being accommodated in Bed and Breakfast settings. In response to the comments 
made regarding asylum seekers, she said that Manchester displayed a humane and 
compassionate response. 
 
The Director of Public Health commented that the action plan for the Transformation 
Programme was provided as an appendix to the report and that the Joint Strategic 
Needs Assessment would also inform this activity.  
 
Jackie McVan, Head of Services Greater Manchester, CGL (Change Grow Live) 
stated that one positive outcome from the pandemic had been strengthened 
relationships between CGL and Mustard Tree. She also stated that another legacy of 
the pandemic had been the adoption of on-line support services that some people 
found more appropriate for their circumstances and needs. She described the 
increasing demand on services, particularly for substance misuse services. She also 
emphasised the issue of social isolation and loneliness experienced by homeless 
people placed in accommodation. She commented on the need to challenge the 
stigma associated with homelessness and substance misuse. 
 
The Committee then heard from Kevin, Dave and Jay who spoke of their individual 
lived experiences of homelessness. The Committee thanked them for attending and 
sharing their powerful testimonies.  
 
The Committee expressed their gratitude to all guests for attending and contributing 
to the meeting. 
 
Decision 
 
That a delegation from Manchester, comprising of partners working to support 
homeless people across the city visit the Secretary of State for Health and Social 
Care to highlight the situation in Manchester and to lobby for additional resources to 
address homelessness. 
 
HSC/23/55 Health Provision For Asylum Seeker Contingency Hotels 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Public Health and the  
Deputy Place Based Lead, NHS Greater Manchester (Manchester Locality) 
that provided an overview of health provision for Asylum Seeker Contingency (ASC) 
hotels in the city of Manchester. 
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
 

Page 69

Item 9



 

 

• Providing an introduction and background, noting that in July 2020, Manchester 
Health and Care Commissioning (MHCC), the Clinical Commissioning Group for 
the city of Manchester at the time, was directed by NHS England (NHSE) to work 
with the Home Office, their provider Serco and other stakeholders such as 
Manchester City Council to commission primary care services for people placed in 
the ASC hotels. 

• Listing what primary care providers were expected to deliver as a minimum; 

• Discussion of the main issues and mitigating actions, including information on the 
NHS Greater Manchester Migrant Health Group that had been established; 

• Describing the approach to commissioning primary care services to meet the 
needs of people seeking asylum living in the hotels; 

• Highlighting some of the opportunities identified to build on the learning and 
expertise developed through this work, to better meet the needs of people 
seeking asylum, refugees and other migrants in the future; and 

• Noting that the work described supported Manchester City Council’s commitment 
to ensure that Manchester was a city of sanctuary for people seeking asylum. 

 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were:  
 

• Further information on the migrant health passport; 

• Information was sought on the NHS Greater Manchester Migrant Health Group, 
noting that issues experienced by asylum seekers were not confined to those 
accommodated in ASC hotels; 

• Did asylum seekers have a choice as to which GP they registered with; and 

• An update on Manchester becoming a City of Sanctuary. 
 
Dr Fiona Watson, General Practitioner, Hawthorn Medical Centre described the work 
delivered to support asylum seekers housed in ASC hotels. She referred to a 
particular hotel that housed approximately 150 men. She described the integrated 
approach to help individuals access primary care services. She said that the team 
comprised of a multidisciplinary team, including GPs, Health Care Assistants and 
Nurses who would be present at the hotel once a week. She described that having a 
physical presence in the hotel helped foster positive relationships with both Serco, 
who had responsibility to provide properties for initial and dispersed accommodation 
requirements to support the welfare of asylum seekers, and the residents. She 
advised that the clinical priorities were infection screening, particularly for 
Tuberculosis; safeguarding; mental health and wellbeing work.  
 
Darren Parsonage, Head of Operations (Vaccination/Designated Clinical Officer) 
SEND, NHS Greater Manchester (Manchester) stated that the intention was to 
standardise the good work described by Dr Watson across all ASC hotels. He 
commented that, due to the nature of the asylum system and the fact that some hotel 
residents would move to different accommodation during their asylum-seeking 
journey, one of the providers had been developing a “migrant health passport” for 
residents who had longer term health needs to support continuity of care should the 
resident move on. In response to a specific question, he said that an individual could 
choose to register with any GP. He added that the priorities of the GM Migrant Health 
Group were access to primary care; infectious diseases screening and transition.  
 

Page 70

Item 9



 

 

The Director of Public Health stated that a lot of learning had been obtained over the 
previous five years in relation to this area of activity. He added that the GM Migrant 
Health Group recognised that the health issues experienced by asylum seekers were 
not confined to residents of ASC hotels and would be experienced by asylum 
seekers in the wider community. 
 
The Deputy Leader described that a steering group had been established to agree 
the Terms of Reference and progress the strategy for Manchester to enable it to 
become accredited as a City of Sanctuary. She said this steering group included 
people with lived experience. She said that a commitment to becoming a City of 
Sanctuary had been agreed at full Council in July 2023. She said this meant that the 
City Council, health organisations, other public bodies, as well as the voluntary and 
faith sector, would work together to improve services for those seeking sanctuary in 
Manchester. The Deputy Leader concluded by stating that Manchester stood in 
solidarity with all people seeking asylum. 
 
The Executive Member for Healthy Manchester and Adult Social Care paid tribute to 
all partners working across the city to support asylum seekers. He paid particular 
tribute to Sarah Doran, Assistant Director of Public Health for her work and continued 
dedication in this area of work.  
 
The Committee expressed their gratitude to all guests for attending and contributing 
to the meeting. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the report. 
 
HSC/23/56 The Impact of Climate Change on Health 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Public Health that built upon 
previous health scrutiny reports “An Introduction to the Impact of Climate Change on 
Health and Healthcare in Manchester” (February 2022) and “Climate Change - The 
Impact of the Recent Heatwave” (December 2022). 
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
 
• Providing a brief overview of how and why climate change impacted the health of 

Manchester residents and what activities were underway to monitor and mitigate 
these impacts; 

• Discussion of the impact of climate change on NHS Organisations in Manchester; 

• Discussion of the impact of climate change on the food system; 

• Discussion of the impact of climate change on migration;   

• Mitigation, adaptation and emergency response; 

• Activities to reduce carbon emissions; 

• Activities to reduce air pollution;  

• Discussion of adaptation to climate change; 

• Adaptation to air pollution; 

• Heatwave Plan, noting the importance of having robust emergency response 
plans in case of severe adverse weather events; 

Page 71

Item 9



 

 

• Recognising the co-benefits to health from climate action, such as the increased 
provision of greenspace and/or the promotion of active travel;  

• Describing how work undertaken as part of the Making Manchester Fairer 
strategy helped to recognise and minimise health inequalities exacerbated by 
climate change; and 

• Next steps. 
 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were:  
 
• What was being done to communicate climate change activities with residents; 
• Paying tribute to the work undertaken by staff to support and assist residents in 

receipt of Adult Social Care in the Didsbury East Ward during the evacuation of 
homes as a result of flooding; 

• Did the introduction of the 30mph speed limit on Princess Road / Princess 
Parkway improve air quality;  

• Noting the cost of living crisis and the pressures experienced by residents and 
how this impacted on their ability to make informed choices, such as purchasing 
an electric car to reduce their carbon emissions; and 

• Noting the impact of housing and the ability to regulate temperature during 
extreme weather events and the impact this had on health. 

 
The Committee heard from Councillor Shilton Godwin, Chair of Environment, Climate 
Change and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Committee. She provided a testimony that 
had been provided by a medical practitioner that described the detrimental health 
impacts poor air quality had on young people. She concluded by emphasising the 
need to consider climate change as a health issue. 
 
Dr Laura Parker, Specialist Trainee Registrar in Public Health stated that car idling 
was a particular issue that contributed to poor air quality. In regard to the specific 
question raised regarding the impact of reducing speed limits to 30mph and air 
quality, she advised that any analysis of this would be circulated. 
 
Anna Bond, Deputy Director Manchester Climate Change Agency responded to the 
discussion regarding housing during extreme weather events. She said that the 
refreshed Climate Change Framework included a number of work streams that 
included retrofitting of domestic properties and net zero building standards. She also 
stated that the importance of access to green space was recognised and all the work 
was devised through the lens of Making Manchester Fairer.  
 
The Executive Member for Environment and Transport emphasised the need for a 
just transition in relation to climate change. She emphasised the need to deliver 
reliable, affordable and connected public transport system to provide a viable 
alternative to the car. She said that the ongoing delivery and roll out of the Bee 
Network would help deliver this ambition. She informed the Committee that the 
Environment, Climate Change and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Committee would be 
considering a suite of reports at their December meeting that include 
communications and resident engagement. 
 
The Director of Public noted the comments made regarding damp and mould and 
advised that work was ongoing with local Housing Providers to address this. He also 

Page 72

Item 9



 

 

commented that the learning from the recent heatwaves was ongoing and referred to 
the weather alerts that were monitored throughout the year and forwarded to the 
weather alert group via an automated process, in addition to the key public health 
messaging at such times.  
 
The Executive Member for Healthy Manchester and Adult Social Care paid tribute to 
the Public Health Team for their work during periods of extreme weather events. He 
described that this work continued to be delivered in the absence of government 
leadership on the important issue of climate change. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the report. 
 
HSC/23/57 Overview Report 
 
The report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit which contained key 
decisions within the Committee’s remit and responses to previous recommendations 
was submitted for comment. Members were also invited to agree the Committee’s 
future work programme.  
 
Decision 
 
The Committee notes the report and agrees the work programme. 
 

Page 73

Item 9



 

 

Health Scrutiny Committee 
 
Minutes of the meeting held on 10 January 2024 
 
Present: 
Councillor Green – in the Chair 
Councillors Bayunu, Cooley, Curley, Hilal, Karney, Muse, Reeves and Wilson 
 
Also present:  
Councillor T. Robinson, Executive Member for Healthy Manchester and Adult Social 
Care 
Councillor Chambers, Deputy Executive Member for Healthy Manchester and Adult 
Social Care 
Councillor White, Executive Member for Housing and Development 
Tom Hinchcliffe, Deputy Place Based Lead for Health and Social Care Integration, 
NHS Greater Manchester Integrated Care 
Sam Bradbury, Deputy Director of Integrated Commissioning, Manchester Local 
Care Organisation 
Julie Taylor, Locality Director of Strategy/Provider Collaboration (Manchester) 
NHS Greater Manchester 
Dr Sohail Munshi, Chief Medical Officer, Manchester Local Care Organisation 
Coral Higgins, Cancer Reform Manager, NHS Greater Manchester 
Graham Mellors, Strategic Lead for Population Health Management, Manchester 
Local Care Organisation 
 
HSC/24/01 Minutes 
 
Decision 
 
1. To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 6 December 2023. 
 
2. To receive the minutes of the Greater Manchester Mental Health NHS Foundation 
Trust: Improvement Plan Task and Finish Group meeting held on 19 December 
2023. 
 
HSC/24/02 Support For People With Complex Needs And The Role Of 

Social Workers & Tackling Alcohol Harm in Manchester 
 
The Committee considered the two-part report of the Executive Director of Adult 
Social Services and the Director of Public Health. The first report provided a full 
description of the services provided by the Manchester social work teams, who 
supported adults with complex needs; the second report focused on efforts to tackle 
alcohol harm in Manchester and Greater Manchester.  
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
 

• Information relating to the Substance Misuse Teams, including a description of 
their key areas of work; 

• Information relating to the work of the Entrenched Rough Sleepers Social Work 
Team; 

Page 74

Item 9



 

 

• Discussion of the approach to the continuous development of services, noting the 
commitment to research and evidence-based practice; 

• Discussion of the meaning of alcohol harm; 

• Consideration of alcohol harm and inequalities, noting that increased levels of 
deprivation were associated with increased levels of alcohol related harm; 

• Data relating to the levels of alcohol harm in Manchester; 

• Current activities to tackle alcohol harm in Manchester; and 

• Next steps both at a Manchester and Greater Manchester level. 
 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were:  
 
• Noting the proliferation of 24/7 alcohol delivery services and the detrimental 

impact this had on health outcomes; 
• Noting increased levels of alcohol consumption during the pandemic; 
• A Member described her personal family experience of alcohol harm; 
• In a similar way that the tobacco industry was challenged, Manchester needed to 

tackle the alcohol industry to reduce alcohol-related harm; 
• What was the process for a family member or carer to access support as a carer; 
• Recognising the need to not demonise or curtail people for enjoying alcohol 

responsibly; 
• A Member commented that in his ward every application for any new off-licence 

was vigorously opposed; 
• Public Health should be formally recognised as a licensing objective;  

• Welcoming the reported Family Centred rehabilitation initiative and requesting 
that a report on this be submitted to the relevant scrutiny committee at an 
appropriate time; 

• Noting the impact of foetal alcohol spectrum disorder (FASD) and noting the 
motion on this specific issue at the meeting of Council held 29 November 2023, 
and requesting that a report on this be submitted to the relevant scrutiny 
committee at an appropriate time; 

• Noting the challenge presented by grant funding of services; and 

• Requestion an update on the impact of the “Communities in Charge of Alcohol” 
pilot that had been launched in Miles Platting and Newton Heath in 2017.   

 
The Director of Public Health welcomed the comments from the Committee and 
stated that the views expressed in regard to the alcohol industry and the 24/7 
availability of alcohol were shared by the Association of Directors of Public Health.  
 
The Registrar in Public Health described the multi-agency approach to consider all 
licensing applications submitted and where appropriate submit objections for 
consideration by Licensing Panels. She made reference to conditions and 
modifications to licences as a result of this approach. 
 
The Director of Public Health stated that a round table discussion would be convened 
in February 2024 with practitioners and experts participating to develop actions to 
progress the work on FASD, noting the motion that had been passed by Council. 
 
The Executive Director of Adult Social Services informed the Committee that anyone 
could refer themselves for an assessment under the Care Act. She acknowledged 
that consideration needed to be given to promote this more widely. 

Page 75

Item 9



 

 

The Service Manager (Complex Needs), Adult Social Care commented that the 
Family Centred rehabilitation model had been developed by the staff working within 
the Alcohol Team. She said that this model utilised a number of therapies, including 
Trauma Informed Therapy, to best meet the needs of the individual. She commented 
that the intention was to build upon this model and work with Children’s Services, 
adding that an update on this work could be provided to the relevant scrutiny 
committee at the appropriate time. 
 
The Director of Public Health said that NHS England funding for Alcohol Care Teams 
was due to end in March 2024 and discussions were currently underway to look at 
transitional funding arrangements so the services could be sustained in 2024/25. He 
added that Wythenshawe Hospital had mainstreamed this service and options to 
adopt a similar approach would be explored at the other two hospital sites, noting 
that this changed its funding status and arrangements.   
 
The Director of Public Health said that the formal evaluation of the Communities in 
Charge of Alcohol pilot had not been undertaken due to the pandemic, however the 
lessons learnt from this pilot would be used, along with the underlying principles to 
roll this programme out more widely. 
 
The Executive Member for Healthy Manchester and Adult Social Care stated that 
despite the failure of government to tackle the issue of alcohol harm it remained a 
priority for Manchester. He paid tribute to the staff working in the Substance Misuse 
Team. He further commented that FASD was considered by the Children and Young 
People Scrutiny Committee. 
 
Decision 
 
The Committee recommends that the Executive Member for Healthy Manchester and 
Adult Social Care and the Chair of the Health Scrutiny Committee engage with the 
Mayor of Greater Manchester with the view to establishing a Manchester Manifesto 
to tackle the alcohol industry on the issue of alcohol-related harm. 
 
HSC/24/03 Cancer Screening Update 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Public Health and the Chief 
Medical Officer, Manchester Local Care Organisation that provided the latest position 
in relation to cancer screening programmes for the population of Manchester. 
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
 

• The latest available screening uptake figures for Manchester in relation to the 
national cancer screening programmes, noting that there were currently three 
screening programmes for the prevention or early detection of cancer, namely 
Breast, Bowel and Cervical screening; 

• The role of the Manchester Population Health Management Board within the 
Manchester Local Care Organisation; 

• Information on the actions that were being taken across Manchester to address 
low uptake and coverage, with a greater focus on health inequalities; and 

Page 76

Item 9



 

 

• Describing the Greater Manchester targeted lung health check programme, and 
the plan for Manchester. 

 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were:  
 
• Stating that the key message was that screening saved lives; 
• What was the process for following up on bowel cancer testing kits that were not 

returned; 
• What was the current advice in relation to prostate cancer; 

• More information was requested in relation to the Equality Impact Assessments 
undertaken in relation to cancer screening; 

• What were the ages of people accessing screening services; 

• Welcoming the mobile mammogram unit at North Manchester General Hospital; 
and 

• Noting the reported issues and limitations to gynae services at Manchester 
University NHS Foundation Trust (MFT) as a result of staff shortages, recruitment 
processes and training for new staff. 

 
The Chief Medical Officer, Manchester Local Care Organisation addressed the 
discussions in relation to the data presented in the report and stated that it was 
important to differentiate between the rates of screening rather and incidents of 
cancer diagnosis. He made reference to the Health Development Coordinators and 
the Manchester Population Health Management Board (PHM). He said that PHM 
plans were built on their work in communities, building positive relationships with 
local communities and local partners in the VCSE and, importantly, primary care. He 
commented that all this work was data led and evidence based. In terms of the age 
of cohorts and screening he commented that this was in accordance with national 
clinical guidance.   
 
The Chief Medical Officer, Manchester Local Care Organisation discussed the need 
to consider health literacy adding that this could be a barrier to people accessing 
screening services, making reference to his own experience when receiving a testing 
kit. He commented that consideration needed to be given to the language used to 
ensure it was appropriate. He commented on the issue of trust amongst some 
communities and health services and the need to work to tackle these barriers to 
screening and health services more generally, noting that it was recognised that a 
‘one size fits all’ approach was not appropriate. 
 
The Chief Medical Officer, Manchester Local Care Organisation said that the national 
advice in relation to prostate cancer was to contact your GP if you experienced any 
change when passing urine and/or noticed blood in your urine. The Cancer Reform 
Manager (Manchester), NHS Greater Manchester made reference to the 2023 ‘This 
Van Can’ prostate cancer awareness roadshow. The roadshow had visited sites 
across Greater Manchester between May and October 2023 as part of an NHS pilot. 
It was targeted at black men aged over 45 who were at greater risk of getting 
prostate cancer.  
 
The Chief Medical Officer, Manchester Local Care Organisation advised that the 
issues reported at MFT in relation to gynae services were being addressed, noting 
that the issue of staff recruitment and retention was a national issue. He added that 

Page 77

Item 9



 

 

the impact of the pandemic on NHS backlogs of work remained an issue. The Cancer 
Reform Manager (Manchester), NHS Greater Manchester informed the Committee 
that MFT had established a cervical screening facility for their staff in an attempt to 
increase the take up rates of screening. 
 
The Cancer Reform Manager (Manchester), NHS Greater Manchester said that if a 
bowel testing kit was not returned, a second kit was issued. If this was not returned 
the patient was classed as a non-responder. She said that an individual could 
request a kit at any time if they had missed the initial invitation. With regard to the 
question asked in relation to the Equality Impact Assessments she advised that these 
were undertaken by commissioners and that Health Equality Audits were also 
undertaken. 
 
The Executive Member for Healthy Manchester and Adult Social Care welcomed the 
report and paid tribute to the collaborative approach of the cancer alliance. He further 
recognised the important work of the Population Health Management Board, chaired 
by the Chief Medical Officer, Manchester Local Care Organisation, noting this was 
responsive to address the needs of residents. He further made reference to the good 
practice demonstrated by the exercise undertaken by the Miles Platting, Newton 
Heath and Moston Primary Care Network, who between June and early December 
2023 had called more than 400 eligible patients who had not returned their screening 
kits to discuss the importance of screening and identify any barriers, noting that as a 
result, 220 screening kits were reissued. 
 
Decisions 
 
The Committee recommend; 
 
1. That the Director of Public Health, in consultation with relevant partners review 

the letters issued with bowel screening kits to ensure the language and 
terminology used is appropriate. 
 

2. That the Director of Public Health, in consultation with relevant partners, give 
consideration to the use of videos as a visual medium to promote the importance 
of cancer screening.      

 
HSC/24/04 Enabling Independence Accommodation Strategy Update 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Executive Director of Adult Social 
Services & Strategic Director (Growth and Development) that provided an update on 
the delivery of the Enabling Independence Accommodation Strategy for Manchester 
(2022-2032) which was considered and supported by the Committee on 12 October 
2022, prior to its approval at Executive in November 2022.  
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
 

• Noting that the key aim of the strategy was to improve housing with care and 
support options to meet people's needs and better enable their independence; 

Page 78

Item 9



 

 

• Describing that it was a partnership strategy, developed between Adults, 
Children’s, Homelessness, Strategic Housing, Property Development, and the 
Manchester Housing Providers Partnership;  

• Reporting progress to date, noting the progress made in the first year of this 10-
year strategy; 

• Describing the four key objectives of the strategy; 

• Reporting the key stages of delivery of the strategy; 

• Discussion of the assessment of current provision; 

• Discussion of future demand and how this need would be addressed; 

• Consideration of the building upon our care and support at home services; 

• Case studies; and 

• Next steps. 
 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were:  
 
• Welcoming the report and recognising the importance of supporting people to 

remain living safely in their communities, close to their families and support 
network; 

• Recognising that this important work was integral and important for individuals 
and communities;  

• Welcoming the scale of work delivered by the Manchester Equipment and 
Adaptations Partnership and Community Alarm and Technology Enabled Care 
service; 

• Recognising the importance of adaptations to support people to remain living 
safely in their own homes; 

• The need to promote widely the positive and important initiatives described within 
the report; 

• Welcoming the inclusion of the case studies;  
• Did the work and ambitions described meet the needs of the population; 
• Noting the Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) funding was not sufficient to keep up 

with increased demand and construction cost and calling for adequate funding 
from government; and 

• Commenting that investment in these initiatives saved money in the longer term 
as individuals were not accessing costly acute or care settings. 

 
The Commissioning Manager Strategic Housing stated that the service was 
continually exploring all opportunities to deliver future schemes. She commented that 
the Housing Needs Assessment would inform future commissioning considerations, 
noting that future schemes would consider the housing needs of young disabled 
people. 
 
The Executive Director of Adult Social Services acknowledged the discussion relating 
to the DFG, adding that it was not sufficient to meet the demand. She described that 
despite the challenges the service remained committed to being innovative and 
suggested that Members undertake a visit to the Smart Suite, a new facility that had 
opened in Manchester that allowed people to see and try out the equipment and 
adaptations that could keep them independent at home. The Members welcomed this 
invitation. 
 

Page 79

Item 9



 

 

The Assistant Director Adult Social Services (Commissioning) welcomed the 
recognition of the work of the Manchester Equipment and Adaptations Partnership 
and Community Alarm and Technology Enabled Care service, adding that it was 
important to record and report these activities as it supported independent living and 
helped support the case for an increase in the DFG. She further paid tribute to the 
partnership work and positive relationship established with housing providers to 
deliver these interventions to support residents.    
 
The Executive Member for Housing and Development paid tribute to the partnership 
approach to deliver the strategy. He commented that the relationship between 
housing and health outcomes was understood and the ongoing stated commitment to 
partnership working would help deliver the best outcomes for Manchester residents. 
 
The Executive Member for Healthy Manchester and Adult Social Care stated that he 
welcomed the many positive comments from the Committee adding that the report 
clearly articulated the ambitions for the city. He stated that the strategy recognised 
the nature and importance of place. He said that despite the government’s failure to 
adequately fund and acknowledge the importance of this work, Manchester had 
taken the lead nationally on this issue. 
 
The Chair in concluding this item of business paid tribute to the work described and 
requested that an update report be provided to the Committee at an appropriate time. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the report and that a visit to the Smart Suite be arranged for Members.  
 
HSC/24/05  Community Health Transformation Programme: Community 

Podiatry Service Change 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Deputy Director of Integrated 
Commissioning, Community Health that provided the recommendations made by 
Manchester Local Care Organisation Executive to reduce variation in community 
health podiatry services as part of the Community Health Transformation 
Programme. 
 
The Committee was asked to note the Manchester Local Care Organisation 
recommendation to remove the variation in the community health service podiatry 
offer; and to endorse the view that this action did not constitute a substantial 
variation. 
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
 

• Describing the context and rationale to standardise provision for podiatry services 
across Manchester;  

• To amend the service offer to ensure consistent access criteria; and 

• To align budgets to the size and need of people in the neighbourhoods. 
 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were:  
 

Page 80

Item 9



 

 

• A Member described his personal experience of accessing this service and stated 
that the service he had received had been very positive; and 

• What was the criteria used for patients to access the service. 
 
Officers in attendance stated that a risk matrix was used to assess the criteria for 
accessing the podiatry service, adding that if a person did not meet the criteria they 
would be signposted to alternative offers. She added that the majority of 
appointments were delivered in local health centres. Officers also commented that it 
was the intention to deliver training to staff working in residential and care homes so 
they could assist individuals with nail cutting.  
 
Decision 
 
To note the report.  
 
HSC/24/06 Overview Report 
 
The report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit which contained key 
decisions within the Committee’s remit and responses to previous recommendations 
was submitted for comment. Members were also invited to agree the Committee’s 
future work programme.  
 
Decision 
 
The Committee notes the report and agrees the work programme. 
 

Page 81

Item 9



Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee 

 

Minutes of the meeting held on Thursday, 7 December 2023 

 
Present:  

Councillor Simcock (Chair) – in the Chair 

Councillors Andrews, Brickell, Kilpatrick, Kirkpatrick, Lanchbury, Rowles, Stogia and 

Wheeler 

 

Also present:  

Councillor Rahman, Statutory Deputy Leader 

Councillor Akbar, Executive Member for Finance and Resources 

Councillor White, Executive Member for Housing and Development 

 

Apologies: Councillors Connolly, Davies and Evans 

 

RGSC/23/66  Interests 

 

Councillors Kilpatrick, Lanchbury and Stogia declared personal interests in item 5 – 

Annual Property Report. 

 

RGSC/23/67  Minutes 

 

Decision:  

 

That the minutes of the meeting held on 9 November 2023 be approved as a correct 

record. 

 

RGSC/23/68 Annual Property Report 

 

The committee considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer 

and the Strategic Director (Growth and Development) which provided an update on 

property activity since the previous update to the committee in September 2022.  

 

Key points and themes within the report included: 

 

• Progress made and initial activity of the Strategic Asset Management Plan 
(SAMP) including the Asset Review and governance; 

• The work of the Council’s Development Team and Investment Estate in 
delivering against the Council’s objectives for residential and employment 
growth;  

• A decision not to retender the contract for property management of the 
Council’s investment estate to Jacobs UK Ltd.;  

• Significant developments across the city;  
• An update on the Council’s operational estate, comprised of approximately 

350 assets used by the Council to deliver services;  

Page 82

Item 9



• The work of the Facilities Management service;  
• The Zero Carbon Estates Programme;  
• The Council’s Property Asset Database (CPAD); 
• An update on the Our Town Hall project; and 
• The use of agency staff.  

 

Some of the key points and queries that arose from the committee’s discussions 

included: 

 

• Welcoming the redevelopment of the Church Street car park, and querying 

whether the disposal of this meant that the Council would no longer have 

ownership for this land;  

• Highlighting the need for member involvement in the redevelopment of 

Church Street car park and the importance of retaining the war memorial 

there;  

• If there would be enough car parking in the city centre if the Church Street car 

park was redeveloped;  

• Requesting further information on the Parks Buildings Strategic Group and 

potential opportunities for buildings in parks;  

• The need to understand the implications on the Council’s financial position of 

the return in investment from Manchester Airport;  

• Welcoming changing places in parks and the social value work across the 

property service;  

• How much priority was given to maintaining council-owned land;  

• What was meant by ‘surplus assets’; 

• How members were involved in the use and purchase of Council-owned land 

in their wards;  

• If the SAMP Board members had the right skills and knowledge in estates 

management to ensure a maximum return on investments;  

• Recognising the Council was awarded Levelling Up funding for Wythenshawe 

and commending those involved in this;  

• Requesting more information on the 1,800 peppercorn leases in the Council’s 

investment portfolio and how these could be viewed on CPAD; 

• The vacancy rate amongst council-owned land and properties; 

• Whether banks could use surplus space in local libraries across the city;  

• Noting that several projects started when interest rates were low, and how 

viable these schemes were now given the increase in interest rates;  

• The quality of early years buildings;  

• Whether the Council’s website should be amended to reflect that the Town 

Hall would not reopen in 2024; and  

• Why officers were confident in their ability to reduce the requirement for 

agency staff and to recruit full-time staff.  

 

The Statutory Deputy Leader introduced the report and emphasised the 

establishment of the SAMP Board, which provided a cohesive and coordinated 

approach to the Council’s estates and developments. He stated that the Council was 

Page 83

Item 9



trying to address issues around climate change and reducing carbon emissions 

within the corporate estate.  

 

The Executive Member for Housing and Development stated that the report 

highlighted the extent of development in the city, with particular reference to 

affordable housing, district centre investment and other regeneration schemes.  

 

In response to queries regarding Church Street car park, the Assistant Director of 

Development and Investment Estate explained that a decision on the redevelopment 

of this site had not yet been made and was subject to an assessment by the SAMP 

Board but that it was likely to cease being a car park. He explained that a planning 

brief was being created in consultation with planning officers and noted that heritage 

was an important assessment factor and that consultation with local members would 

be undertaken. It was also stated that car parking capacity fell under the remit of the 

Parking Strategy, which was currently in development and would include a mapping 

exercise of car parks to understand capacity and utilisation of spaces and to model 

the impact of redeveloping Church Street car park, which would help to inform the 

SAMP Board’s decision.  

 

The Head of Corporate Estate and Facilities explained that the Parks Buildings 

Strategic Group was established by the Parks service to ensure that the Council’s 

property function could support the delivery of the Parks Strategy.  The estates 

service provided support in the form of investments, carbon works and occupation 

agreements, for example.  

 

The Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer committed to providing a report on 

the Council’s investment in Manchester Airport under a Part B session and stated 

that she could not speculate on future dividend income or distributable returns.  

 

The committee was advised that a thorough, long-term piece of work was underway 

to identify the current conditions of all Council-owned land. Work was also underway 

with colleagues in Neighbourhoods where a different approach to clearing land was 

needed and it was anticipated that new arrangements would be in place at the 

committee’s next annual update. The Statutory Deputy Leader stated that the SAMP 

Board allowed for a more cohesive approach to centralise work with one point of 

contact responsible for maintaining pieces of land. Members were also informed that 

the 2024/25 budget proposals included a small amount of investment for reactive 

works such as addressing flytipping and clearing land to tackle barriers to completing 

work where land was owned by an organisation other than the Council.  

 

It was clarified that the term ‘surplus’ was meant in regard to operational 

requirements and sites which could be reviewed for alternative use.  

 

The Assistant Director of Development and Investment Estate explained that the 

Estates service had recently been successful in employing staff with new skillsets 

and a commercial focus in the last 12 months to recognise the wider remit of the 

Page 84

Item 9



service. Specific expertise would be commissioned externally where required but the 

Assistant Director of Development and Investment Estate remained confident in the 

skillset and commercial awareness within the service.  

 

In response to a query regarding member involvement in the use and purchase of 

Council-owned land in their wards, it was explained that there was a two-stage 

process which involved surveyors identifying assets in consultation with colleagues 

in Growth and Development to determine an appropriate set of future options for a 

site, such as redevelopment, reinvestment, or refurbishment.  These options were 

then considered by the SAMP Board to provide more detail and a financial appraisal 

at which point members would be formally engaged with. The Statutory Deputy 

Leader also confirmed that three Executive Members were appointed to the SAMP 

Board and reiterated a commitment to ensuring meaningful and timely consultation 

with members.  

 

The Statutory Deputy Leader offered to provide a report on peppercorn leases and 

the Head of Corporate Estate and Facilities endeavoured to write to Councillor 

Andrews with further information on training and how to access CPAD.  

 

The committee was informed that the vacancy rate of the Council’s estate and 

properties was not reported by square meterage or percentage, although it was 

acknowledged as being possible. The Head of Corporate Estate and Facilities noted 

that the SAMP Board was being used to review the vacant property list and to 

ensure that those assets were being considered for use. Use of space in libraries or 

community centres was actively encouraged and there was an example of a bank 

delivering services from a local library in Longsight.  

 

The Head of Corporate Estate and Facilities stated that the Council had recently 

committed capital funding investment into the early years estate and that the market 

had changed significantly since 2010 when it had been hoped that the assets would 

generate a sufficient profit to reinvest in the buildings. He stated that one tranche of 

capital activity had been delivered this year with significant improvements made and 

a second phase would take place in 2024.  

 

In response to a question regarding interest rates, the Director of Development 

explained that the property estate was a long-term portfolio which enabled strategic 

mapping and weathering of economic cycles. He stated that the Council had been 

able to bolster the viability and deliverability of some of the schemes listed in the 

report by leveraging them as investable propositions and by leveraging GAP funding. 

He explained that many projects were in receipt of Levelling Up funding and were 

joint schemes with central government agencies such as Homes England. The 

Devolution Brownfield Housing Grant was also being used in residential 

developments.  

 

It was also acknowledged that the error on the Council’s website with regards to the 

Town Hall reopening date had been flagged and that this would be amended.  

Page 85

Item 9



 

The Head of Corporate Estate and Facilities stated that there had been a recent 

recruitment drive, noting the success of the Growth and Development team in 

attracting surveyors, and that further recruitment for surveyors would take place in 

the New Year.   

 

Decision:  

 

That the report be noted.  

 

RGSC/23/69  Capital Programme – Impact of Recent Market Changes and  

Budget Process 

 

The committee considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer 

which provided an update on the impact of recent changes in financial and 

construction markets on the capital programme and an update on the proposed 

capital budget process for 2024/25. It also highlighted the increased Government 

and public scrutiny of Council capital programmes and borrowing approaches, 

following the issuing of several Section 114 notices as a result of poor capital 

investment decisions. 

 

Key points and themes within the report included: 

 

• Providing an introduction and background to the capital budget update;  

• The Council’s current balance sheet position, including external debt and 

capital financing requirement;  

• A renewed focus across the local government sector on financial 

sustainability; 

• The current approved Capital Programme and its capacity;  

• How the Programme was being financed; and 

• The proposed financing and budget approaches.  

 

Some of the key points and queries that arose from the committee’s discussions 

included: 

 

• If the increased scrutiny of local authorities was driven by the publication of 

Section 114 notices by some local councils;  

• The support provided by the Office for Local Government (OFLOG);  

• The probability of having to end capital programme projects and how this is 

monitored;  

• How the drawdown of reserves and being cautious would impact the CRF and 

future capital investment;  

• Whether the current forecast for the approved capital programme table would 

be updated to reflect budget increases for the Town Hall refurbishment and 

any other programme; and 

Page 86

Item 9



• The approach to the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) and how this would 

sustain unforeseen increases in borrowing. 

 

The Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer introduced the report and highlighted 

the increased scrutiny of local authorities’ borrowing activity and that this would be 

looked at in more detail following the establishment of OFLOG. She also assured the 

committee that work was underway on the shape of the capital programme for the 

next 5 years and how this would balance investment in infrastructure, external 

funding and the scope for new investment priorities.  

 

In response to a query from the Chair, the Deputy Chief Executive and City 

Treasurer stated that the increased scrutiny of local government recognised 

concerns over the high levels of borrowing and Joint Ventures in some local 

authorities which did not necessarily have the resources or expertise to correctly 

manage risk.  

 

The committee was advised that OFLOG was still developing their approach and 

capacity to provide support, but it would try to encourage a culture of early 

intervention to identify warning signs and signpost authorities to expertise and 

support. OFLOG would identify a suite of metrics, such as levels of borrowing, to 

highlight areas for further discussion.  

 

The Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer stated that the Council would only 

take on new borrowing if it was clear and strategically aligned to a Council priority 

and an invest-to-save approach was currently being assessed. She provided 

assurances that none of the capital programme projects would be cancelled currently 

as all schemes were affordable and officers continued to review the capital 

programme.  

 

It was stated that the relationship between reserves and borrowing was two-fold, and 

that the capital financing requirement remained the same irrespective of internal 

borrowing against reserves. It was recognised that significant additional borrowing 

was required for programmes such as the Town Hall refurbishment and provision 

within reserves to cover this had been ensured. The Deputy Chief Executive and City 

Treasurer acknowledged that additional borrowing would need to result in additional 

increases in the capital financing budget.  

 

The Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer explained that the 2022/23 capital 

programme was continuously changing and updated on a quarterly basis when new 

schemes were added. She noted that projections also changed and that the most 

up-to-date forecast would include the latest approved funding increases. 

 

Members were also informed that the MRP was in lieu of accounting for depreciation 

or repayment of principle in the same way as the private sector. The Commercial 

Finance Lead explained that, under the CIPFA Financial Management Code, the 

Council had to repay debt through revenue budget. He stated that the use of 

Page 87

Item 9



reserves did not impact the capital financing requirement but resulted in the Council 

incurring extra borrowing costs as this externalised debt which had been previously 

internalised through using reserves and not keeping these cash backed. He 

explained that quarterly reviews of the capital and revenue budgets modelled the use 

of reserves and what this meant for the Council’s balance sheet, levels of reserves 

and required borrowing to assess whether the capital financing budget was 

sufficient.  

 

The Executive Member for Finance and Resources stated that Manchester was an 
aspirational and growing city with an important pipeline of schemes in the capital 
programme. He recognised that the construction market had experienced inflation at 
levels which had not been seen in decades and stated that the government under Liz 
Truss had caused a spike in interest rates, rising mortgage costs and impacted the 
council’s capacity for borrowing.  
 

Decision:  

 

That the report be noted.  

 

RGSC/23/69 Autumn Statement - Budget Impact  
 

The committee considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer 

which highlighted the announcements from the Government’s Autumn Statement 

which have a direct implication for local government funding next year and future 

years.  
 

Key points and themes within the report included: 

 

• The Chancellor of the Exchequer, Jeremy Hunt MP, delivered the 

Government’s Autumn Statement (mini budget) to the House of Commons on 

22 November 2023 and this was structured around reducing debt; cutting tax 

and rewarding hard work; and backing British business; 
• The Autumn Statement and main Spring Budget announcements do not 

provide exact funding updates for Local Government, but provide important 

indicators as to the outlook for council funding and allow this information to be 

used to inform the medium-term financial plan and budget process; 
• Further detail on the Local Government position was expected in early 

December when a policy document will be released by the Department for 

Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC), and in late December 

when the provisional settlement with LA allocations would be published; 
• The economic and fiscal forecasts published by the Office for Budget 

Responsibility alongside the Autumn Statement;  

• There would be no increase in the overall funding envelope over the Spending 

Review period and no additional funding was announced for local authorities 

beyond the increases already expected; 
• Announcements indirectly affecting residents included a rise in National Living 

Wage; the unfreezing of Local Housing Allowance (LHA); a rise in benefits; 

Page 88

Item 9



protection of the pensions ‘triple-lock’; a decrease in the rate of National 

Insurance; and changes to national insurance for self-employed people; 

• The continuation of business rates retention arrangements for Greater 

Manchester under the Devolution Trailblazer; 

• Medium-term implications; and  

• The provisional settlement outcome and revised position will be reported to 

the committee and the Executive in January to consider the longer-term 

position. 
 

Some of the key points and queries that arose from the committee’s discussion 

included: 

 

• Whether it had been confirmed that the Household Support Fund (HSF) would 

not continue in 2024/25;  

• If HSF funded free school meals and the Holiday Activity Fund scheme, and 

how these schemes would be funded if HSF ended;  

• Noting that the Council received £12.9m in HSF, and querying whether any 

representations had been made to government to ask that this be continued;   

• Noting the rise in National Living Wage in April 2024, and querying whether 

this increase would be implemented regardless of any other staff pay deal;  

• Noting the importance of communicating any changes in Local Housing 

Allowance and the relevant Universal Credit aspect of housing support;  

• The possibility of there being a period where employees would need to 

receive a pay uplift to meet the Real Living Wage whilst an agreed pay award 

was being implemented; and 

• Most residents in Manchester would not feel the benefit of tax cuts set out in 

the Autumn Statement due to the freezing of the income tax threshold and the 

cost-of-living crisis. 

 

The Executive Member for Finance and Resources stated that the Chancellor’s 

Autumn Statement made no reference to local government and failed to recognise 

the cumulative effect that budget cuts have had on council finances. He stated that 

the Council was not anticipating an uplift in funding in the next spending review 

period, but the government had indicated that a robust and resilient Local 

Government Finance Settlement would be provided in December. He informed the 

committee that there had been no decision on the continuation of the Household 

Support Fund (HSF) and that there would be no additional funding for the Homeless 

Prevention Grant. He also expressed his belief that a change of government was 

needed.  

 

In response to queries regarding HSF, the Deputy Chief Executive and City 

Treasurer stated that figures in a previously published document showed that 

funding would end. However, a parliamentary question was asked after the Autumn 

Statement about future provision of HSF, and it was stated that this would continue 

into the next year but it was still being reviewed by government. It was further 

explained that c. £6.7m of HSF was used to fund free school meals during school 

Page 89

Item 9



holidays and that most of the Holiday Activity Fund was funded separately with a top-

up contribution from the Council to enable this to run during half-term holidays as 

well as the summer holidays. The remainder of HSF funds were used for support 

payments to residents who were eligible and to carers.  

 

It was clarified that HSF would run to the end of the current financial year and, whilst 

the loss of this funding could not be mitigated, officers were looking at how best to 

use all funding.  

 

The Deputy Chief Executive advised that the committee would receive a report in 

January 2024 on welfare support funding provided by the Council and how this could 

be best used. A member requested that this report include information on any 

changes to Local Housing Allowance rates, whether this would affect the eligibility 

criteria for Council Tax Support and if it would increase the workload of the Council’s 

Revenue and Benefits Unit.  

 

In response to queries regarding the National Living Wage, the Deputy Chief 

Executive and City Treasurer explained that employers were obliged to pay the 

National Minimum Wage and the Council was committed to paying the Real Living 

Wage, which would be factored into discussions with providers around funding. She 

stated that these discussions were separate to any pay-negotiating bodies which 

looked at broader pay settlements across the public sector.  

 

Members were informed that the process of managing local authority pay and the 

impacts of this were complex and it was difficult to undertake a differential pay award 

increase. The Executive Member for Finance and Resources echoed members’ 

points but emphasised the need to be thorough in pay negotiations and to come to a 

mutually agreeable resolution.   

 

The Executive Member for Finance and Resources echoed a comment made that 

Most residents in Manchester would not feel the benefit of tax cuts set out in the 

Autumn Statement.  

 

Decision:  

 

That the report be noted.  

 

RGSC/23/70  Housing Revenue Account 2024/25 to 2026/27 

 

The committee considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City 

Treasurer, the Strategic Director (Neighbourhoods) and the Strategic Director 

(Growth and Development) which presented an update on the proposed Housing 

Revenue Account (HRA) budget for 2024/25 and set out the key assumptions being 

used in developing the next year’s budget and the outlook for the 30-year HRA 

business plan in light of the budget proposals. 

 

Page 90

Item 9



Key points and themes within the report included: 

 

• The proposed rent increase for 2024/25 was 7.7%; 

• The current budget position for the HRA as at period 6, with a forecasted 

overspend of £2.879m; 

• The current budget assumptions for 2023/24, including rental income; 

• There was no indication in the government’s recent Autumn Statement that a 

rent cap would be applied as it had for 2023/24;  

• Management of housing stock and property numbers;  

• Other income and Private Finance Initiative (PFI) schemes;  

• Communal heating and a proposal to increase the tariffs to residents in line 
with the price cap as set by Ofgem from 1 January 2024 which would be 
reviewed in April 2024 when the next price cap announcement was due; 

• Debt financing and borrowing costs;  
• Capital investment; 
• The overall reserves position forecast; and 
• Recognising the difficulties faced by tenants in light of the current cost of living 

crisis, whilst seeking to balance the need to have a balanced HRA business 
plan. 

 
Some of the key points and queries that arose from the committee’s discussions 

included: 

 

• If consideration had been given to lengthening the business plan to 35 or 40 

years, as a result of increased interest rates; 

• Whether a rent increase cap would be implemented for 2024/25 as it had 

been for the current year and, if so, how this would affect the HRA budget; 

• Whether planning changes announced in the Autumn Statement would impact 

retrofitting and the installation of heat pumps;  

• Challenges with access to properties and how this affected the project repairs 

percentage;  

• How future risk and changes, such as in fire safety measures, were factored 

into the business plan; 

• The assessment undertaken in the decision not to bring the housing repairs 

contact in-house;  

• Welcoming the reduction in the number of void properties; 

• The cap on the number of properties the Council could purchase; 

• If Private Finance Initiative (PFI) housing stock was subject to Right-to-Buy, 

and whether this was excluded from current assumptions of the Council’s 

future housing stock;  

• Whether there would be any communication with residents in communal 

heating schemes about proposed increases to tariffs in line with the price cap 

as set by Ofgem from 1st January 2024;  

• Whether any consideration had been given to moving to individual heating 

schemes, as opposed to communal schemes, to give residents more control 

over their usage and bills; and  

Page 91

Item 9



• If there were any issues with non-payment of communal heating charges.  

 

The Executive Member for Housing and Development introduced the item and 

explained that the HRA was a ringfenced account for the Council’s housing services 

and the report outlined the long-term 30-year business plan and the immediate 

budget and rent-setting decisions. He stated that there was an ongoing commitment 

to housing retrofit, fire safety, tackling damp and mould and capital investment to 

improve housing stock across the city.  

 

In response to queries, the Head of Finance (Corporate Core and Strategic 

Development) explained that the business plan was a rolling plan with the 30-year 

timeframe set as part of the financing, but it did look beyond 30 years in reality.  

 

The Director of Housing Services advised that the government would consult on rent 

policy from 2025 and changes to the current arrangements were not expected before 

then. He also acknowledged challenges with gaining access to properties to 

undertake necessary repairs and this differed between schemes and jobs but that 

this impacted around 10-15% of repairs. He also advised that there were different 

powers for repairs relating to health and safety and gas. Members were informed 

that this was a key feature of resident bulletins and the Executive Member for 

Housing and Development stated that the Housing Advisory Board had recently 

discussed this. He noted that the Council’s responsibility was to communicate 

appropriately and in a coherent way to engage with residents on the importance of 

providing access where necessary.  

 

In response to a query regarding heat pumps, the Executive Member for Housing 

and Development explained that the recently announced changes to planning policy 

would provide a greater degree of flexibility regarding where air source heat pumps 

were sited. He noted that there was a wider issue around opportunities to work with 

residents to transition homes to more efficient heat sources.  

 

The Head of Finance (Corporate Core and Strategic Development) stated that the 

business plan included long-term assumptions and that there was a programme of 

short- and medium-term assumptions. He advised that there was a projected 

estimate of £23m which covered the business plan for certain amount of time, but 

work was ongoing in Housing Services to commission an asset management plan to 

provide condition surveys and would help to create an estimate of cost requirements 

for the future and whether the projected £23m was sufficient.   

 

The Director of Housing Services explained that the Major Contracts Oversight 

Board would consider the delivery model assessment for the Council’s housing 

repairs and maintenance contract in December. This assessed the current market 

and opportunities to recommission, but the Director of Housing Services 

acknowledged a motion passed previously by the Council to insource contracts.  

 

Page 92

Item 9



In response to a question regarding the cap on the number of properties the Council 

could purchase, the Head of Finance (Corporate Core and Strategic Development) 

informed members that this was introduced in the 2022/23 financial year and aimed 

to encourage increased supply within the housing market through new building as 

opposed to acquiring existing homes. He stated that the cap would be phased in 

over a number of years and amounted to 50% of the Council’s capital receipts for 

properties sold under Right-to-Buy in 2022/23 and would reduce to 30% over time. 

 

The Executive Member for Housing and Development highlighted that the HRA 30-

year business plan was predicated on the ability for housing stock to grow. He 

expressed his vision to bolster the HRA through increased Council-owned housing 

stock and cited developments in Collyhurst and Silk Street as examples of this.  

 

The Executive Member for Housing and Development also confirmed that Right-to-

Buy did apply to PFI properties.  

 

Regarding questions around communal heating schemes, the Executive Member for 

Housing and Development reiterated a member’s comment on the importance of 

communicating any tariff changes. He noted that around 2000 tenants were part of a 

communal heating scheme and stated that any communications would signpost any 

resident who might struggle financially as a result of the increase to the Community 

Living Fund. This Fund amounted to £1m this year and it was hoped that this would 

be repeated in 2024/25 to support those most in need.  

 

The Executive Member for Housing and Development stated that individual heating 

schemes was being reviewed through capital funding to ensure that the Council’s 

housing stock was energy efficient and had appropriate heating arrangements. He 

reiterated work to implement ground source heat pumps and other measures across 

Council housing in the city.  

 

In concluding the item, the Executive Member for Housing and Development 

welcomed the committee’s comments and advised that rent-setting for Council-

owned properties would be included in the budget process in February 2024.  

 

Decision: 

 

That the report be noted.  

 

RGSC/23/71 Setting of the Council Tax Base and Business Rates Shares 

for Budget Setting Purposes 

 

The committee considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer 

which advised on the methodology of calculating the council tax base and business 

rates income for budget setting purposes for 2024/25 and detailed the timing of 

related payments and the decision on business rates pool membership. 

 

Page 93

Item 9



Key points and themes within the report included: 

 

• The Council has a statutory duty to agree the 2023/24 estimated council tax 

surplus or deficit by 15 January 2024; set the 2024/25 council tax base by the 

31 January 2024; agree the 2023/24 estimated business rates surplus or 

deficit by 31 January 2024; and set the 2024/25 business rates base by the 

31 January 2024; 

• The calculation of the council tax base is the number of dwellings within the 

Council’s boundary presented as ‘Band D equivalent’; 
• Under the Levelling Up and Regeneration Bill, from 1 April 2024 authorities 

can apply a 100% premium on unoccupied, empty and unfurnished properties 

after one year. This will be included in the 2024/25 tax base calculation and is 

estimated to generate an additional £0.8m; 
• Retained business rates income remains protected and all Greater 

Manchester authorities, under the 100% Trailblazer Deal, are guaranteed 

97.0% of their baseline funding level; and  

• Requesting that the Chair of Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee 

approves the exemption of various related Key Decisions from the call-in 

process.  

 

Decision: 

 

That the committee 

 

1. notes that the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer, in consultation 

with the Executive Member for Finance and Resources, has delegated 

powers to:  
• agree the estimated council tax surplus or deficit for 2023/24; 
• set the 2024/25 council tax base for tax setting purposes in 

accordance with the Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax 

Base) (England) Regulations 2013; 
• agree the estimated business rates surplus or deficit for 2023/24; 
• calculate the 2024/25 business rates income for budget setting 

purposes in accordance with the Non-Domestic Rating (Rates 

Retention) Regulations;  
• determine whether the Council should be part of a business rate 

pooling arrangements with other Greater Manchester local 

authorities in 2024/25; 
• set the dates of precept payments to the Greater Manchester 

Combined Authority in 2024/25. 
2. notes that the Chair of the Resources and Governance Scrutiny 

Committee will be requested to exempt various key decisions from the 

call-in procedure. 
 

RGSC/23/72  Overview Report 

 

Page 94

Item 9



The committee received a report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit which 

provided details of key decisions that fell within the Committee’s remit and items for 

information previously requested by the Committee. The report also included the 

Committee’s work programme, which the Committee was asked to amend as 

appropriate and agree.  

 

A query was raised regarding an outstanding recommendation that a more 

substantial report on Major Contracts be provided at the next update and that this 

included an appendix with more detailed information on each major contract and 

whether insourcing would be viable. Officers endeavoured to bring a report on this in 

March 2024.  

 

Decision:  

 

That  

 

1. the report be noted, and  
2. the work programme agreed with an update report on major contracts 

considered by the committee in March 2024. 

Page 95

Item 9



Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee 
 

Minutes of the meeting held on Thursday, 11 January 2024 

 
Present:  

Councillor Simcock (Chair) – in the Chair 

Councillors Andrews, Connolly, Davies, Evans, Kilpatrick, Kirkpatrick, Lanchbury, 

Rowles and Wheeler 

 

Also present:  

Councillor Midgley, Deputy Leader 

Councillor Akbar, Executive Member for Finance and Resources 

Councillor White, Executive Member for Housing and Development 

Richard Dunbar, Debt Justice 

Alison Aitken, ACORN 

 

Apologies: Councillors Brickell and Stogia 

 

RGSC/24/1  Interests 

 

Councillor Connolly declared a personal interest in item 14 – Commercial Activity, 

Investments and Governance (Part B). 

 

RGSC/24/2  Minutes 

 

In approving the minutes, a member requested further information on the number of 

council-owned properties which were undergoing work or refurbishment and not 

officially classed as empty.  

 

It was also clarified under minute RGSC/23/70 that a member had highlighted that 

there would be a discrepancy between the Real Living Wage and the National Living 

Wage once the latter was increased in April 2024 and that the Council needed to 

explore this in order to retain its accreditation as a Real Living Wage employer. 

 

Decision:  

 

That the minutes of the meeting held on 7 December 2023 be approved as a correct 

record and that the clarification above be noted. 

 

RGSC/24/3 Increasing Council Tax Premiums on Empty Properties 

 

The committee considered a report of the Head of Corporate Revenues which 

provided an overview of and update on new powers provided by legislation to 

increase the Council Tax on empty properties. 

 

Key points and themes within the report included: 

Page 96

Item 9



 

• New powers under the Levelling Up and Regeneration Act 2023 stipulated 

that: 

o Empty, unfurnished properties would pay the 100% long term empty 

premium after one year instead of two years from 1 April 2024. 
o Empty, furnished properties would pay up to a 100% premium from the 

date that they became empty from 1 April 2025. 
• Consultation on these proposals was undertaken as part of the 2023 budget 

consultation;  

• The financial implications of applying the premium; 

• Safeguards in place, such as the Discretionary Council Tax Payment scheme; 

and 

• A further report would be brought to Resources and Governance Scrutiny 

Committee and Executive in advance of introducing the new policy for empty 

and furnished properties from 1 April 2025. 

 

Some of the key points and queries that arose from the committee’s discussions 

included: 

 

• If the Council collected council tax on properties that were empty whilst under 

probate and, if so, whether any discretion could be applied in such 

circumstances;  

• Whether modelling had been undertaken of the anticipated savings as a result 

of increasing the premium; and  

• How the new powers would drive behaviour change from owners of empty 

properties.  

 

The Executive Member for Finance and Resources introduced the report and 

explained that the Levelling Up and Regeneration Act 2023 had been delayed and 

was passed in late October 2023. He stated that the increased premiums would 

bring in much-needed revenue for Manchester and that it enabled the Council to 

encourage homeowners to bring empty properties onto the market much sooner 

which would help to address the challenge of the housing crisis.  

 

The Head of Corporate Revenues advised the committee that the changes would 

hopefully lead to behavioural change from owners of empty properties and explained 

that these premiums did not apply to empty properties of Registered Social 

Landlords.  He also explained that guidelines were expected from the government 

which could inform the approach to empty properties which were for sale and rental 

properties vacant between tenancies.  The committee was also informed that the 

New Homes Bonus applied to each empty, unfurnished property that was brought 

back onto the market.  

 

In response to members’ queries regarding empty properties under probate, the 

Head of Corporate Revenues advised that there were specific rules in these 

circumstances and that these tended to be exempt from the premium until probate 

Page 97

Item 9



was awarded. Further information on this would be shared with members following 

the meeting.  

 

The Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer reiterated the importance of 

behaviour change as a result of the increased premium and the number of empty 

properties brought back into use would be monitored.  

 

The Head of Corporate Revenues clarified that a behaviour change would involve 

empty property owners reletting properties and reducing the small number of 

‘phantom tenancies’.  

 

Decision: 

 

That the committee endorse the recommendations to the Executive.  

 

RGSC/24/4  Anti-Poverty Budget Options 

 

The committee considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer 

which identified the current budgets and support that the Council provided in 

delivering its Anti-Poverty measures, offered options for future Anti-Poverty provision 

and provided a suggested framework for describing ongoing Anti-Poverty provision 

and expected outcomes. 

 

Key points and themes within the report included: 

 

• Providing an introduction and background to anti-poverty support measures;  

• The work of Making Manchester Fairer and the Anti-Poverty Strategy; 

• Anti-poverty budgets for 2023/24; 

• Measures such as Council Tax Support, the Household Support Fund (HSF) 

and the Residents at Risk Cost of Living Group; 

• Framework and options for 2024/25; 

• Recommendations for the anti-poverty budget allocation; and 

• The range of households supported by HSF and the projected spend at 31 

March 2024. 
 

Some of the key points and queries that arose from the committee’s discussions 

included: 

 

• Noting the likely end of HSF and the importance of communicating this to 

residents in a timely manner; 

• When an announcement on Local Housing Allowance was expected; 

• Querying the £968k underspend in the Cost-of-Living budget for 2023/24 and 

why residents were not presenting for support when needed; 

• Whether more work was needed with sector organisations to promote the 

Discretionary Council Tax Support Payment scheme; and  

Page 98

Item 9



• Whether targeted support could be provided to those in receipt of free school 

meals and the holiday activities programme in the event that HSF did not 

continue.  

 

The Deputy Leader introduced the report and explained that it highlighted the 

Council’s current anti-poverty spending and options for the future. She stated that 

this was a complex area and thanked officers for their work. She recognised that the 

cost-of-living crisis was ongoing and that residents were still feeling the impacts of 

this, with the Council prioritising support for residents whilst facing its own budgetary 

pressures. She expressed her concern that the government had not provided any 

indication that HSF would continue after March 2024, noting that this fund was vital 

to residents and in funding the Council’s free school meals and holiday activities 

programme.  

 

The Head of Revenues, Benefits and Customer Services echoed concerns over the 

end of HSF and explained that 50% of the HSF budget was maintained for free 

school meal provisions in school holidays. He informed the committee that the 

Council would face a reduction of around £4.9m in resources if HSF was 

discontinued.  

 

In response to members’ points and queries on HSF, the Executive Member for 

Finance and Resources stated that the Leader of the Council was working with the 

Local Government Association (LGA) on this, and that Manchester MPs were going 

to table an item in Parliament to encourage the continuation of support. The Deputy 

Chief Executive and City Treasurer recognised the significant impact of the 

discontinuation of HSF and stated that officers had begun to look at budget options 

in the event that HSF was continued.  

 

The Head of Revenues, Benefits and Customer Services emphasised that officers 

had started to model the impact of receiving a similar or reduced level of HSF and 

that they would continue to work closely with colleagues in the Communications 

team to inform residents of the support available.  

 

The Head of Corporate Assessments informed the committee that indicative figures 

on the Local Housing Allowance had been received that week which suggested 

substantial increases. He stated that this was encouraging and had been welcomed 

by the Homelessness service as a move in the right direction. He noted that there 

would remain a gap between the LHA and rent prices but stated that the rise would 

moderate demand for Discretionary Housing Payments.  

 

The Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer explained that indicative LHA rates 

had increased to the thirtieth percentile of market rent prices and that further 

information would be shared when available.  

 

The Head of Corporate Assessments explained that a lot of work had been 

undertaken in the previous 12 months to ensure an effective focus on the private 

Page 99

Item 9



rented sector. He explained that there had been an increase in demand for 

Discretionary Housing Payments (DHP) within the social landlord and private rented 

sectors over a number of years. He stated that DHP was designed to provide short-

term support for residents and that the Council sought to be creative in finding ways 

to maximise support. He recognised that communications would not reach every 

resident but that there was clear communication about the scheme. The committee 

was informed that the move to Universal Credit provided an added complexity, and it 

was recognised that more work was needed, particularly with colleagues in 

Neighbourhoods to raise awareness of the support available.  

 

It was also acknowledged that communications about Discretionary Council Tax 

Payments would need to be shared imminently.  

 

In response to a query regarding the possibility of providing targeted support to those 

in receipt of free school meals and the holiday activities programme, the Head of 

Corporate Assessments advised that the free school meals programme included a 

significant number of children and that providing targeted individual support would 

result in small payments that would have minimal impact. He emphasised that there 

were a number of support schemes available to those presenting in need, such as 

the Welfare Provision Fund and Section 17 payments. The committee was also 

advised that the Council would continue to provide free school meals during the 

Easter 2024 holiday because of when it fell in the calendar year. 

 

Members were informed that any additional funding would be announced on 6 March 

2024 in the Chancellor’s next financial statement.  

 

In summarising, the Executive Member thanked officers for their work, particularly 

those who delivered the HSF programmes, and the Chair echoed these sentiments 

on behalf of the committee.   

 

Decision:  

 

That the report be noted.  

 

RGSC/24/5 Changes to Council Tax Support Scheme from April 2024  
 

The committee considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer 

which proposed changes to the Council’s Council Tax Support Scheme for Executive 

approval. 

 

Key points and themes within the report included: 

 

• The proposed change would mean that the Council Tax Support Scheme 

would pay up to 85% of the Council Tax bill leaving 15% to pay, compared to 

the current scheme of which paid up to 82.5% of the Council Tax bill leaving 

17.5% to pay; 

Page 100

Item 9



• It was also proposed to extend the CTS backdating period for working-age 

claims from 6 months to 12 months; 

• A background to council tax in Manchester, including current and previous 

schemes; 

• Costs of the proposed changes; and 

• The approach, content and outcome of the consultation with precepting 

authorities.  

  

Some of the key points and queries that arose from the committee’s discussion 

included: 

 

• Welcoming the proposals and recognising the positive outcomes of the public 

consultation;  

• Whether there was any aspirations to amend the CTSS to pay up to 100% of 

council tax;  

• Whether costs of backdating council tax arrears were factored into the new 

proposals; 

• That CTSS only applied to the Council’s portion of council tax and not 

precepting authorities and whether residents would still benefit; and  

• The need for communication to make new Universal Credit claimants aware 

that they can apply for CTS.  

 

The Executive Member for Finance and Resources introduced the report and 

highlighted that the Council had committed to supporting residents through the cost-

of-living crisis. He recognised that, whilst inflation rates were easing, residents 

continued to feel the impact of this.  He explained that extending the backdating 

period would help to clear more council tax arrears for those facing financial 

difficulty.  

 

The Head of Corporate Assessments reiterated that the proposals had been subject 

to a public consultation and an Equality Impact Assessment, which supported the 

recommendations of the report.  

 

The Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer advised that the service had many 

aspirations but there was a need to balance affordability. There was a current focus 

on increasing investment into council tax support whilst protecting measures such as 

breathing space and debt collection.  

 

With regards the backdating, the Head of Corporate Assessment explained that a 

review of backdating spend in the previous year had been undertaken but noted that 

it was difficult to model this with confidence because many cases did not require 

backdating for a full 12 months. He stated that the biggest benefit would be the 

ability to respond to cases where a resident had not claimed CTS when it was 

needed.  

 

Page 101

Item 9



The Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer explained that the Council had not 

modelled the wider impact of CTS as it did not want to pre-empt any preceptor 

decisions of other authorities, such as Greater Manchester Combined Authority. It 

was confirmed that the Budget report for consideration in February would include a 

breakdown of council tax by precept and what this would mean for residents, 

including those on CTS.  

 

In response to a point about communication, the Head of Corporate Assessments 

recognised the importance of ensuring that eligible residents received CTS and 

stated that this would be raised with the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) 

as the first point of contact for Universal Credit claimants.  

 

Decision:  

 

That the committee endorses the recommendations to the Executive.  

 

RGSC/24/6 Feasibility Study into Ending the Use of Enforcement 

Agents 

 

The committee considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer 

which presented a feasibility study into whether the use of Enforcement Agents 

(EAs), also known as bailiffs, was an effective or proportionate method of collecting 

debt, following representations made by ACORN and Debt Justice at the 

committee’s meeting on 7 September 2024. 

 

Key points and themes within the report included: 

 

• The use of EAs remained widespread across the UK, with all of the five most 

deprived Council areas in England, of which Manchester was one, referring 

cases to EAs where residents do not engage and all Greater Manchester 

Councils using EAs to recover Council Tax debt, with two GM authorities 

having an in-house team for this; 

• Improved regulation of the EA industry since 2014; 

• Considerable investment and improvements into debt collection practice and 

engagement with residents;  

• Recovery processes prior to an EA visit;  

• The importance of Council Tax to the Council; 

• Representations from ACORN, with a response from the Council, and Debt 

Justice;  

• Representation from the Civil Enforcement Association (CIVEA) in response 

to ACORN and Debt Justice; 

• Representation from Citizens Advice Manchester; and 

• Examples of the revised reminder and recovery letters sent to residents. 

 

Page 102

Item 9



Some of the key points and queries that arose from the committee’s discussions 

included: 

 

• Welcoming the recommendations;  

• Recognising the impact that losing 1% of council tax had on the Council’s 

overall budget, but also recognising the cost of stress and health concerns 

arising from an EA visit; 

• Acknowledging the dialogue between the Council, ACORN and Debt Justice; 

and  

• If residents were still able to apply for Discretionary Council Tax Payments if 

they had a case passed to EAs in the past.  

 

The Executive Member for Finance and Resources introduced the report and 

explained that the use of EAs was a last resort. He stated that the report highlighted 

the Council’s work over the last 18 years to ensure a reduction in the number of 

cases passed onto EAs and that the feasibility study had provided an opportunity to 

learn the experiences of other authorities and to examine the code of conduct for 

EAs. He thanked the organisations that provided representations and stated that 

council tax amounted to 30% of the Council’s revenue budget and funded key 

services such as Children’s and Adults Social Care. He stated that a 1% reduction in 

the amount of council tax collected would equate to a loss of £2.73m in revenue, 

which the Council could not afford against a backdrop of government budget cuts.   

 

The Chair acknowledged the cooperation of ACORN, Debt Justice and Citizens' 

Advice in the preparation of the report and stated that their contributions had 

influenced the Council's approach to the collection of Council Tax, for example, in 

the rewording of the various letters that were sent to residents where Council Tax 

was overdue.  

 

The Head of Revenues, Benefits and Customer Services echoed thanks to ACORN 

and Debt Justice and stated that reducing the number of cases passed to EAs was a 

key priority and achievement of the service. He highlighted policy changes and work 

to encourage residents to contact the Council as soon as possible if they struggled to 

pay their council tax. This included writing off costs for those who engaged with the 

Council, creating longer payment arrangements, allowing breathing space for arrears 

payment and the Discretionary Council Tax Payment scheme.  

 

The Chair invited Richard Dunbar of Debt Justice to address the committee. Richard 

advised that his organisation welcomed the recommendation before the committee 

and acknowledged the financial challenges facing local authorities like Manchester. 

However, he stated that the knock-on effect of receiving a visit from an enforcement 

agent equated to costs of £6m to mental health services. He stated that the Ministry 

of Justice planned to increase enforcement fees by 5% which he believed would 

create a commercial incentive for EAs to collect debt to the detriment of residents. 

He called on the committee to amend the motion before them to recommend that it 

was not appropriate for any case where the resident was eligible for any level CTS to 

Page 103

Item 9



be referred to EAs and agrees that recovery via an attachment of benefits is more 

appropriate, including for those currently in receipt of maximum CTS. 

 

The Chair sought officers’ views on the suggested recommendation. The Head of 

Corporate Revenues stated that he was largely in agreement with the amendment 

but that it would need to be looked at in more detail. The Deputy Chief Executive and 

City Treasurer concurred with this and stated that a final approval could be sought 

through the budget-setting.  

 

The committee also received a verbal representation from Alison Aitken of ACORN.  

 

In response to a comment regarding the lateness of the report, the City Solicitor 

agreed that it was important for reports to be received promptly and she advised that 

this report was being finalised up until the point of publication. The Executive 

Member for Finance and Resources highlighted that late reports were not out of the 

ordinary and that this report had been impacted by the lateness of the Provisional 

Local Government Finance Settlement, which meant that additional work was 

required to ensure the figures in the report were accurate. 

 

Confirmation was also provided that a person was still able to apply for Discretionary 

Council Tax Payments if they had a case passed to EAs against them in the past. 

 

The Head of Corporate Revenues emphasised the need for residents who may be 

struggling to pay to engage with the Council, who could signpost to any available 

support. He stated that leaflets had been created to promote this and were available 

for members of the committee to take away and share with their communities.  

 

The committee was also advised that the Council monitored complaints about EAs 

closely and a mapping exercise of enforcement agents’ behaviour against the 

Council’s code of practice had been implemented. The Head of Corporate Revenues 

also asked ACORN to encourage their members to report any instances of poor 

conduct amongst EAs as this would drive improvement.  

 

In response to comments regarding rising enforcement fees, members were 

informed that fees were to be increased for the first time since 2014.  

 

The Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer welcomed the ongoing dialogue with 

ACORN and Debt Justice and expressed her thanks to officers for their valuable 

work. She emphasised the importance of revenue generated through council tax and 

highlighted that some of those refusing to pay council tax could afford to do so.  

 

The Chair stated the recommendation before the Committee was to continue with 

the use of EAs, which he felt only fair to the vast majority of Manchester residents 

who paid their Council Tax bills without the need for any enforcement. He highlighted 

that the Council's use of enforcement agents had reduced significantly over the last 

few years and that there was extensive support available for those least able to pay. 

Page 104

Item 9



He also stated that EAs mainly focused on those residents who simply refused to 

engage in any discussion regarding payment of their Council Tax, which included a 

significant number of residents on salaries in excess of £40k per annum.  

 

Decision: 

 

That the committee 

 

1. notes the contents of the report and thanks ACORN, Debt Justice and 

Citizens Advice Manchester (CAM) for their challenge and contributions; 

2. notes 1% drop in the in-year collection rate of Council Tax represents a 

reduction of £2.73 million in the Council’s revenue; 

3. recommends that the City Council continues to use EAs in the collection of 

Council Tax against individual residents; 

4. recommends that it is not appropriate for any case where the resident is 

eligible for CTS to be referred to EAs and agrees that recovery via an 

attachment of benefits is more appropriate, including for those currently in 

receipt of maximum CTS; 

5. recommends that further consideration is given to implementing the 

recommendations made by CAM; 
6. That the Council continues to review its use of Enforcement Agents in the 

recovery of Council Tax debt and monitors any other solutions employed by 

other authorities 

7. That the Council continues to participate in any consultation undertaken with 

regards to the regulations governing Council Tax 

 

RGSC/24/7 Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement 2024/25 

and Budget Assumptions 

 

The committee considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer 

which provided an update on the main announcements from the Provisional Local 

Government Finance Settlement 2023/24 which was announced on 18 December 

2023.  
 

Key points and themes within the report included: 

 

• Providing an introduction and background to the Finance Settlement;  

• Manchester’s Core Spending Power (CSP) would increase by £41million;  

• Changes to business rates, including the introduction of a standard business 

rating multiplier;  

• Retail, Hospitality and Leisure Relief and the New Homes Bonus would 

continue for a further year;  

• Social Care grants were largely in line with expectations;  

• The Services Grant had been cut by 84%; 

• Implications of these announcements on the Council’s budget; and  

• Next steps and conclusions.  

Page 105

Item 9



 

The Executive Member for Finance and Resources introduced the item and 

explained that the Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement was received 

late and worse than the Council had anticipated. He stated that the potential budget 

gap for 2024/25 had increased to c. £5million, compared to a £1.6m gap which was 

previously expected. He noted that in-year pressures, particularly around Adult 

Social Care, meant that the Council was increasingly reliant on the use of reserves. 

He highlighted that the Provisional Finance Settlement allocated some extra monies 

for adult social care and public health but that this did not go far enough to 

compensate for the reduction of the Service Grant.  

 

He recognised that several local authorities in England had served Section 114 

notices and stated that the Local Government Association was monitoring other 

authorities at risk of this due to pressures felt by councils nationally and in the 

context of 14 years of government-imposed austerity. He stated that the Council 

would continue to lobby government and identify the most efficient way to maximise 

resources and he expressed his desire for a change in government.  

 

The Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer reiterated the disappointing outcome 

of the Settlement but stated that officers were focused on next steps in the budget 

process. She advised that some funding rebates were expected from GMCA and 

work was ongoing to identify ways to close the budget gap. She expressed her 

confidence that a balanced budget for 2024/25 would be proposed for consideration 

by the committee in February.   

 

In discussing the item, a member highlighted the cumulative budget cuts to the 

Council since the beginning of austerity measures and the impact of this.  

 

Decision: 

 

That the committee endorses the recommendations to the Executive.  

 

RGSC/24/8  Sales, Fees and Charges – Budget 2024/25 

 

The committee considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer 

which provided an update on the current work being undertaken to review all sales, 

fees and charges as part of the 2024/25 budget process to ensure that charges were 

correct, that the costs of providing the services were recovered, and to identify 

opportunities for increasing existing budgets in order to support the overall Council 

2024/25 budget.  
 

Key points and themes within the report included: 

 

• Providing an overview of sales, fees and charges in the current financial year; 

• The review process and proposed price increases for 2024/25 by service;  

Page 106

Item 9



• £1m of additional income budgets as a result of this exercise would contribute 

to achieving a balanced budget; and  
• Future opportunities and risks. 

 

Some of the key points and queries that arose from the committee’s discussions 

included: 

 

• Noting that some charges, particularly in bereavement services, were to be 

confirmed but should not be increased significantly; 

• Charges to residents who sell a property of which the Council was the 

freeholder; 

• Suggesting that the £0.674m shortfall from off street car park charges should 

not be marked as green in the RAG rating in the budget papers; and  

• The waste and pest control fees, which were still to be agreed, and whether 

these would be increased by 5%. 

 

The Deputy City Treasurer explained that the report aimed to provide greater 

transparency and visibility of the Council’s sales, fees and charges. He stated that 

these fees were increased to support service delivery and this was important given 

the financial pressures facing the authority.  

 

The Head of Finance (Corporate Core, Neighbourhoods, Growth and Development) 

explained that a review of sales, fees and charges formed part of the overall budget-

setting process and highlighted that income generation could be variable and 

impacted by factors outside of the Council’s control. He stated that the review had 

assessed the Council’s income budget in addition to existing prices and activity 

levels and tried to identify future prices against a backdrop of the ongoing cost-of-

living crisis. He advised that work was ongoing in some services to assess the 

impact of fee increases and that this would form part of the final budget proposals for 

consideration in February.  

 

In response to members’ queries, the Head of Finance (Corporate Core, 

Neighbourhoods, Growth and Development) reiterated that work on fee increases for 

bereavement services was ongoing and that the service was assessing the 

implications of activity levels and demand in addition to prices. This would be 

confirmed in the budget paper in February.  

 

The Head of Finance (Corporate Core, Neighbourhoods, Growth and Development) 

confirmed that charges for buying a freehold from the Council were included under 

the wider investment estate. He stated that the Growth and Development directorate 

had a wider Estates service with a wide-reaching remit over building leases, rentals, 

assets and freehold payments. The Strategic Lead (Development) explained that 

these payments related to consent or fees for profession work and no income was 

derived from the sale of a property.  

 

Page 107

Item 9



In response to a comment about the RAG rating for car park underspends, the 

Deputy City Treasurer acknowledged this and explained that car park usage had 

increased in recent months despite changes in working habits.  

 

The Head of Finance (Corporate Core, Neighbourhoods, Growth and Development) 

confirmed that a decision was still to be made on waste and pest control fees but this 

would be increased up to a maximum of 5%.  

 

The committee was also advised that, going forwards, a detailed report on sales, 

fees and charges would be provided on annual basis as part of the budget-setting 

process, which members welcomed. 
 

Decision: 

 

That the report be noted.  

 

RGSC/24/9  Overview Report 

 

The committee received a report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit which 

provided details of key decisions that fell within the Committee’s remit and items for 

information previously requested by the Committee. The report also included the 

Committee’s work programme, which the Committee was asked to amend as 

appropriate and agree.  

 

Decision:  

 

That the report be noted. 

 

RGSC/24/10  Commercial Activity, Investments and Governance (Part A) 

 

The committee considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer 

which provided an overview of the governance and assurance activity which took 

place before, during and post completion of the Council’s commercial transactions. 

 

Key points and themes within the report included: 

 

• Providing an introduction and background to the Council’s commercial activity;  

• The work of the Commercial Board, including directorship training and the 

Due Diligence Framework;  

• The regulation of commercial activity;  

• Public Interest and Best Value Reports; and 

• Risk management. 

 
The Head of Commercial Governance, Assurance and Initiatives stated that 

commercial governance was more important than ever given the budgetary and 

regulatory context that local authorities were operating in. She stated that 

Page 108

Item 9



Manchester City Council had established a robust, transparent and accountable 

structure to ensure appropriate oversight, monitoring and reporting of its commercial 

portfolio.  

 

In response to a member’s query regarding reported high energy costs facing the 

Council, the Head of Commercial Governance, Assurance and Initiatives explained 

that steps had recently been taken to provide security through green energy and 

budgetary benefits through the Power Purchase Agreement, which was approved by 

Executive in December 2023. She also confirmed that a full response had been 

provided to Manchester Evening News’ enquiry about high energy costs.  

 

The Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer explained that figures on energy 

costs initially included VAT which had been claimed back. She highlighted that the 

Council had retendered its energy contracts at the start of the war in Ukraine and 

that the budget proposals showed significant savings as a result of the retendered 

electricity contract and the gas contracts would be in a similar position soon.  

 

Decision: 

 

That the report be noted.  

 

RGSC/24/11  Exclusion of Press and Public 

 

Decision: 

 

That the press and public be excluded during consideration of the following item 

which involved consideration of exempt information relating to the financial or 

business affairs of particular persons and public interest in maintaining the 

exemption outweighed the public interest in disclosing the information. 

 

RGSC/24/12  Commercial Activity, Investments and Governance (Part B) 

 

The committee considered a confidential report of the Deputy Chief Executive and 

City Treasurer which provided further detail to the Part A report on the Council’s 

commercial activities, including, but not limited to, provision of loans to third parties, 

Joint Ventures, investments into a range of initiatives and property transactions. 

 

The committee discussed the structure, financing, and terms of these arrangements. 

As part of these discussions, a further report on Manchester Life was requested and 

officers endeavoured to bring this to the committee in the new municipal year.  

 

Decision: 

 

That the report be noted.  

 

 

Page 109

Item 9



 

 

Environment, Climate Change and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny 
Committee 
 
Minutes of the meeting held on 7 December 2023 
 
Present: 
Councillor Shilton Godwin – in the Chair 
Councillors Chohan, Collins, Holt, Ilyas, McCaul, Razaq, Wiest and Wright  
 
Also present:  
Councillor Rawlins, Executive Member for Environment and Transport 
Councillor Foley, Deputy Executive Member for Environment and Transport 
Councillor Igbon, Executive Member for Vibrant Neighbourhoods 
Councillor Ahmed Ali, Deputy Executive Member for Vibrant Neighbourhoods 
Councillor Simcock, Chair of the Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee 
Councillor Kilpatrick, Member of the Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee 
Samantha Nicholson, Director, Manchester Climate Change Agency 
 
ECCNSC/23/65 Minutes 
 
Decision 
 
To approve the minutes of the Environment and Climate Change Scrutiny Committee 
meeting held on 9 November 2023 as a correct record. 
 
ECCNSC/23/66  Climate Change Communications 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Head of Strategic Communications that 
provided an update on the Council’s Climate Change Communications approach and 
supporting activity. 
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
  

• Providing an introduction and background, noting the four-pronged approach to 
climate change communications and engagement activity; 

• Reporting that the communications team worked with members of the Zero 
Carbon Coordination Group (ZCCG) and workstream members to communicate 
climate change messages on a regular and ongoing basis; 

• An update on behavioural change campaigns; 

• Discussion on the approach to evaluating climate change communications; 

• Climate change research and key findings; and 

• Citywide climate change campaign.   
 

Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were:  
 

• How had the participants of the focus groups referred to in the report been 
selected, and was socio-economic background taken into consideration; 

• Welcoming and supporting the identification of ‘a call for action’ as a key finding of 
the focus groups; 

Page 110

Item 9



 

 

• The importance of promotion of Council activities on the issue of climate change; 

• Welcoming the development of the communications group and the range of 
partners involved in this work, and requesting that future update reports include 
discussion of this work;  

• Were communication campaigns delivered in different languages; 

• The need to acknowledge and reflect consideration of the impact of the cost of 
living crisis across all communications campaigns; and 

• The importance of utilising social media to maximise and extend the reach of 
campaigns and awareness on the issue of climate change. 

 
The Head of Strategic Communications said that the focus groups were drawn upon 
from participants from survey work that had been undertaken with people being 
invited to participate. He said that communications campaigns were tailored and 
targeted to be the most appropriate for the intended audience. He commented that 
consideration was given to utilising other campaigns to reiterate the climate change 
message and promote relevant activities and events. He said that communications 
were not routinely translated, however when appropriate to do so they would be and 
using trusted community networks assisted in the delivery of information and advice. 
He acknowledged the comments made regarding the cost of living crisis and said 
that it was never the intention to shame people into action but rather to support and 
promote viable actions, such as the price cap on bus fares as part of the wider 
promotion of the Bee Network.   
 
The Chair commented that within the report it referred to a detailed report on the 
analysis of subgroups and asked that this be circulated to all members of the 
Committee for information. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the report. 
 
ECCNSC/23/67  Update on the role of Neighbourhood Teams in engaging 

Manchester residents on Climate Change 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Strategic Director (Neighbourhoods) that 
described 12 months of activity to engage, support and activate Manchester 
residents to engage in local climate change activity and reduce their carbon footprint.  
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 

 

• Providing updated information summarising activity delivered by the 
Neighbourhood Teams across the city to influence behaviour and support 
communities to implement local climate action at ward and neighbourhood level in 
the last 12 months; 

• An update on the development of Ward Climate Change Action Plans, including 
consideration of the recommendations of the Ward Climate Change Action Plans 
Task and Finish Group and publication of those plans to promote engagement 
and behaviour change; 

• Information on the development of the monitoring framework to assess impact of 
those Ward Climate Change Action Plans; 

Page 111

Item 9



 

 

• Examples of developing best practice in engagement at a local level contributing 
to the ambition of Manchester becoming a zero carbon city by 2038;  

• Updates on the progress towards ward plans containing specific, measurable, 
achievable targets; and  

• Summary and next steps. 
 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were:  
 

• The Committee paid tribute to the staff working in Neighbourhood Teams, 
acknowledging the integral role they played in supporting residents and delivering 
climate change activities;  

• Welcoming the development of Ward Climate Change Action Plans and 
suggesting that an event should be arranged to review these at an appropriate 
time;  

• Would training that had been delivered to officers on Ward Climate Change Action 
Plans be extended to Councillors;  

• What was the relationship between Ward Climate Change Action Plans and ward 
coordination; 

• Was climate resilience acknowledged; 

• Consideration needed to be given to the format of the Council’s webpage where 
Ward Climate Change Action Plans were located as the landing page was not 
very engaging; 

• The need to share best practice and learning across Neighbourhood Teams on 
the delivery of Ward Climate Change Action Plans; 

• The importance of identifying key advocates and trusted networks in 
neighbourhoods to act as peer to peer coordinators on climate action; and 

• Noting the importance of intergenerational work and activities on the subject of 
climate change. 

 
The Strategic Lead, Neighbourhoods said that training could be arranged for 
Councillors. She informed the Committee that officers within the Neighbourhood  
Teams would be attending a first workshop on the issue of risk and resilience on 
Friday 15 December 2023. The intention was to build upon and enhance this 
learning. She descried that Neighbourhood Managers were responsible for ward 
coordination and Climate Change Action Plans were an element of the wider ward 
plans. With regard to the webpage, she advised that she would review this but 
commented that there were restrictions as to what could be displayed on the 
Council’s website as the site must be Disability Discrimination Act compliant.   
 
The Executive Member for Vibrant Neighbourhoods stated that a review of ward 
coordination would be undertaken, noting that a ‘one size fits all’ approach was not 
appropriate as it needed to be fluid to reflect and respond to the needs and 
aspirations of the local neighbourhood. She further paid tribute to the work 
undertaken by the Neighbourhood Teams especially in the context of their wider role 
and responsibilities. She stated that good practice and learning was shared across 
the different Neighbourhood Teams. 
 
The Executive Member for Environment and Transport acknowledged the discussion 
regarding the Council's website and commented that a wider review of this would be 

Page 112

Item 9



 

 

undertaken to ensure that key messaging and information on climate change was 
reflected across all Council activities. 
 
In concluding this item of business, the Chair commented on the positive progress 
reported to date and acknowledged the work undertaken by the Ward Climate 
Change Action Plans Task and Finish Group. 
 
Decision 
 
The Committee recommend that the Executive Member for Environment and 
Transport and the Executive Member for Vibrant Neighbourhoods consider options 
for reviewing Ward Climate Change Action Plans, and this process to involve the 
voice of residents. 
 
ECCNSC/23/68  Manchester Climate Change Agency In Our Nature Progress 

and Wider Community Engagement Update 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director, Manchester Climate Change 
Agency that provided an overview of Manchester Climate Change Agency’s 
(MCCA’s) community engagement activity over the past 12-months.  
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
  

• An update on the In Our Nature Programme, noting that to date the programme 
had engaged directly with over 650 Manchester residents in 15 Wards and was 
helping them to deliver 26 climate projects that included tackling energy efficiency 
at home, increasing use of public transport, local food growing, reducing textile 
waste and more. 

• Information on the Manchester Climate Change Youth Partnership, noting that 
this Partnership was for 16–28-year-olds in Manchester who wanted to be part of 
climate change decision-making and action in the city. In 2021 the Youth 
Partnership produced its own Youth Manifesto which contains 7 key priorities for 
young people in Manchester; and 

• Information on the EU FoodWave Project, noting that this project worked to build 
an international community of young people (aged 15-35) who were active 
across 17 countries worldwide. It aimed to create awareness of sustainable 
approaches to consuming and producing food in cities in support of climate 
change mitigation and adaptation efforts, and to have an influential voice in city-
level decision making. 
 

Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were:  
 

• Reiterating the invitation to the Manchester Climate Change Youth Partnership to 
engage with the Committee; 

• The need to focus activities on those highest emitters of carbon; and 

• Asking the Director of the Manchester Climate Change Agency if she was 
satisfied with the progress to date in relation to In Our Nature. 

 
The Director, Manchester Climate Change Agency stated that she was pleased with 
the In Our Nature progress to date, she described that there was activity across 15 

Page 113

Item 9



 

 

wards, delivering a range of projects that were all aligned to the Framework. She said 
that they had very good relationships with the local Neighbourhood Teams that had 
resulted in a lot of synergy. She described that the range of engagement was good 
and balanced, and that good practice and learning was shared. She stated that the 
Local Area Carbon Footprints were a useful tool to identify those larger carbon 
emitting wards and could be used to inform local activities. She said that all levers 
and spheres of influence would continue to be utilised to inform and deliver 
campaigns on the issue of climate change. 
 
In regard to the invitation to the Manchester Climate Change Youth Partnership, the 
Director, Manchester Climate Change Agency stated that she would pass this on 
again, adding that the Youth Partnership determined their own work programme. 
 
Going forward, the Director, Manchester Climate Change Agency said the intention 
was to build on the positive work and experience to date to maximise impact and 
meet or exceed all milestones. She stated that it was an implicit understanding of the 
programme to reach and engage with new people on the issue of climate change, 
adding that this would form part of the overall evaluation.     
 
Decision 
 
To note the report. 
 
ECCNSC/23/69  Embedding Carbon Literacy within the Council 
 
The Committee considered the report of Human Resources, Organisational 
Development and Transformation that provided information on the progress being 
made towards embedding a zero-carbon culture within the Council. 
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
  

• Providing an introduction and background, noting the embedding zero-carbon in 
the workforce formed part of Workstream 5 ‘Catalysing Change and Behaviour 
Change’ of the Manchester City Council Climate Change Action Plan Work Plan; 
and 

• Providing an update and narrative describing progress against identified actions. 
 

Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were:  
 

• Was individual feedback obtained from participants who had undertaken the 
carbon literacy training; 

• A member reported that he had attended the carbon literacy training and had 
found it very interesting and informative; 

• Was there any consideration being given to delivering carbon literacy training to 
community groups and other relevant stakeholders outside of the Council; and 

• Was there any capacity for teams working across the Council to discuss 
opportunities to take actions to reduce and if so was there a mechanism to 
measure impact and outcomes. 

 

Page 114

Item 9



 

 

The Strategic Head of Organisational Development & Transformation welcomed the 
positive feedback from the Member of his experience when undertaking the training. 
She paid tribute to the team of trainers who were delivering this programme, adding 
that they were committed to delivering this training and that those staff had been 
formally accredited and was an opportunity for staff to undertake professional 
development. In response to a specific question, she confirmed that the training was 
extended to Manchester Active staff.   
 
The Strategic Head of Organisational Development & Transformation responded by 
saying that individual feedback following training was obtained and this was 
reviewed. She said that this feedback had informed changes as to how the training 
was delivered following feedback on the issue of accessibility. She said that it was 
acknowledged that teams working across different Directorates had competing 
demands and working patterns so the training had been adapted so as to target 
teams so as to maximise take up. She said that all new staff were required to attend 
the carbon literacy training as part of their formal induction training.  
 
She said that as part of Service Planning, teams were being asked to consider and 
embed carbon reduction and establish specific actions. Consideration would be given 
as to how this activity could be tracked and reported.  
 
The Deputy Executive Member for Environment and Transport made reference to a 
recent event at Central Library that she had attended where Community Leaders had 
undertaken Carbon Literacy training. She described this event as being very positive. 
She further commented that Manchester Council was leading on the issue of carbon 
literacy training for staff and that other authorities were seeking to replicate the 
Manchester model as it was recognised as good practice. 
 
The Executive Member for Environment and Transport noted the comments 
regarding extending the carbon literacy training to people outside of the Council, 
noting the issue of capacity that would be required to deliver this at scale. She said 
that options to deliver this were being discussed the Climate Change Agency. The 
Deputy Executive Member for Environment and Transport commented that 
Manchester Metropolitan University had committed to delivering carbon literacy 
training to all their staff and students. 
 
The Executive Member for Environment and Transport concluded that positive 
progress had been made on the delivery of carbon literacy training for Council staff 
and this could be evidenced.  
 
Decision 
 
To note the report. 
 
ECCNSC/23/70  Weed Pilot (Streets) 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Strategic Director (Neighbourhoods) that 
provided an update on the findings of a project undertaken during 2023 to trial an 
alternative weed control methodology (hot foam) to assess its effectiveness and 
viability as a potential alternative to glyphosate for weed control on streets. 

Page 115

Item 9



 

 

 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
  

• Providing an introduction and background, noting that the report did not include 
information about the approach to weed control for other land types maintained by 
the Council; 

• The Council had adapted a service across different land types in-line with 
guidelines published by the Pesticide Action Network (PAN), to support the 
reduction of the use of glyphosate and utilising alternative approaches; 

• Describing steps taken to reduce glyphosate use; 

• Reporting that in March 2023, officers had undertaken a detailed look at whether 
hot foam could be utilised as a non-herbicide weed control treatment on streets in 
Manchester and providing an analysis of these trials; 

• Conclusions of the trials undertaken with hot foam as a method of weed control, 
noting that hot foam did not yet represent a viable alternative; 

• Describing that the trial had demonstrated the importance of testing alternative 
weed control methodology as part of the strategy to reduce dependency on 
glyphosate; and  

• The Council would continue to horizon scan developments in alternative weed 
control methodologies and working practices within the sector, and the Council 
should seek to test other alternative methods as appropriate. 

 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were:  
 

• Welcoming the reduction of the use of glyphosate; 

• What would be the level of use of glyphosate in a blended model of weed control; 

• Noting the cost analysis provided in relation to the use of hot foam, why was this 
still being considered as an option; 

• Noting that the report referred to the use of different options as a method of weed 
control, what were they; 

• Was there an opportunity for electric vehicles to be used for the delivery of hot 
foam;  

• The need to engage and educate residents on the subject of weeds, noting that 
there were competing views on this issue and how residents regarded them; 

• Noting the importance of consideration of biodiversity when considering the 
approach to weed control; and 

• What was the feedback from residents in those pilot wards. 
 

The Strategic Lead, Waste, Recycling & Street Cleansing stated that there were a 
range of factors to consider when deciding which approach was the most appropriate 
method of weed control, and that the intention was to strike the correct balance with 
due consideration given to all alternatives. She said that the use of hot foam would 
be one tool in a suite of options, noting that it had proven to be an effective method 
and consideration could be given as to modifying the model of delivery and 
responding to technological improvements. She stated that they were keenly alive to 
the discussions regarding the use of glyphosate and reiterated that the use of this 
had reduced over the years with due regard given to best practice and the 
recommendations from the Pesticide Action Network. Noting the need to balance an 
effective programme of weed control in the context of Council budgets and 

Page 116

Item 9



 

 

environment considerations and the Council remained committed to trialling different 
alternative options of weed control. 
 
The Strategic Lead, Waste, Recycling & Street Cleansing noted the comments from 
Members and stated that the intention was to establish a policy on the subject of 
weed control. The Committee welcomed this as a positive development, commenting 
that this would provide helpful clarification as to the Council’s approach to this 
activity.  
 
The Strategic Lead, Waste, Recycling & Street Cleansing acknowledged the 
discussion regarding engagement and education on the topic of weeds and the 
opposing views, adding that this would be included in future resident 
communications. 
 
The Chair stated that local Councillors had been active in promoting and engaging 
with local residents in the selected pilot wards. She commented that the experience 
had been very positive. 
 
The Executive Member for Vibrant Neighbourhoods stated that further research 
needed to be undertaken in regard to weed removal. She said that it was important to 
understand this activity in the context of the restraints on Council budgets and the 
ambition for the city to be clean and green and it was important to strike the correct 
balance. She further commented that it was important to manage resident 
expectations in regards to weed removal. 
 
Decision 
 
The Committee agree; 
 
1. The Council’s approach to reduce dependency on glyphosate in a phased 

approach, looking at a suite of herbicide free treatments to support this and build 
on success achieved to date. 

 
2. To receive future updates on the approach in the annual waste and recycling 

report. 
 
[Councillors Razaq, Shilton Godwin and Wright declared a personal and non-
prejudicial interest in this item as they are residents of the Chorlton Park ward that 
was referred to in the pilot scheme.]  
 
ECCNSC/23/71  Overview Report 
 
The report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit which contained key 
decisions within the Committee’s remit and responses to previous recommendations 
was submitted for comment. Members were also invited to agree the Committee’s 
future work programme. 
 
Decision 
 
The Committee notes the report and agrees the work programme. 

Page 117

Item 9



 

 

ECCNSC/23/72  Large Scale Renewable Energy Generation – Power 
Purchase Agreement (Part A) 

 
The Committee considered the report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City 
Treasurer that provided an update on the progress of the City Council’s proposal to 
purchase renewable energy supplies via a Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) to 
ensure the Council has a long-term, cost-effective supply of renewable energy to 
meet its energy needs and achieve its Zero Carbon objectives to reduce the 
Council’s CO2 emissions. 
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
  

• Providing an introduction and background, noting that the Council’s Climate 
Change Action Plan included a commitment to research and identify options for 
large scale renewable energy generation to deliver either a solar asset and / or 
suitable Power Purchase Agreements (PPAs) to achieve a traceable, renewable 
energy source to deliver CO2 savings and maximise long-term benefits for the 
Council;  

• Describing the background to the work undertaken to date, including an 
assessment of the Council’s energy demand and relevant details of progress 
made to purchase a PPA for supply of energy to the Council; 

• Information on the Council Energy Purchasing Policy and Integration with PPA 
Product; and 

• Describing that the process of securing a Power Purchase Agreement, noting that 
following conclusion of the mandatory standstill period and subject to Council 
approval, the Council would formally announce the bidder which it would be 
contracting with on the PPA arrangement in January 2024. 
 

The Chair had invited Councillor Simcock, Chair of the Resources and Governance 
Scrutiny Committee and Councillor Kilpatrick, member of the Resources and 
Governance Scrutiny Committee to participate in this agenda item. 

 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were:  
 

• Reiterating the position previously expressed by the Committee that the 
government had failed to decarbonise the national grid, adding that this abdication 
of leadership had placed an unfair burden on local authorities and set a 
dangerous precedent; 

• This message needed be explicit in any future communications with residents on 
this issue;  

• Had cooperative or mutual models of delivery been considered; 

• Further information was sought on the procurement process and the due diligence 
process; 

• Noting that these arrangements were not uncommon within the commercial 
sector; and 

• What facilities would the electricity generated from the PPA service. 
 

The Head of Commercial Governance, Assurance and Initiatives noted the 
comments expressed by the Committee in relation to the decarbonisation of the 
national grid and stated the delivery of a PPA would help the city achieve its carbon 

Page 118

Item 9



 

 

reduction ambitions. With regard to cooperative and mutual models, she said options 
for this had been considered however they were not currently viable. In response to 
the historical decisions taken in relation to PPA she stated that those decisions were 
correct at that time. She confirmed that the electricity purchased through any PPA 
would service Council buildings, street lighting and the fleet. She acknowledged that 
this model was tried and tested in the private sector and commented that there was 
growing interest across the public sector in these arrangements. 
 
The Head of Commercial Governance, Assurance stated that answers and detailed 
responses to Members questions and comments in relation to the procurement 
process would be addressed under the Part B confidential section of the meeting. 
 
The Executive Member for Environment and Transport stated that she would 
continue to lobby the government on this issue of decarbonisation of the national 
grid. She sated the approach to the PPA had been rigorously tested by the Tyndall 
Centre and they were supportive of the proposals to support the Council achieve it’s 
carbon budget ambitions. She concluded by paying tribute to the officers involved in 
progressing this detailed, complex and important work on behalf of the Council. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the report. 
 
ECCNSC/23/73 Exclusion of Press and Public 

 

Decision 

 

That the press and public be excluded during consideration of the following item 

which involved consideration of exempt information relating to the financial or 

business affairs of particular persons and public interest in maintaining the exemption 

outweighed the public interest in disclosing the information. 

 
ECCNSC/23/74  Large Scale Renewable Energy Generation – Power 

Purchase Agreement (Part B - Press and Public Excluded) 
 
The Committee considered the confidential report of the Deputy Chief Executive and 
City Treasurer that provided details around the commercial, financial and legal 
arrangements in respect of the purchase of a Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) as 
part of the Large-Scale Renewable Energy Generation Project to act as a key 
contributor to enable the Council to meet the Zero Carbon targets.  
 
Officers were present to respond to Member’s questions. 
 
The Committee was invited to comment on the report before its submission to the 

Executive on 13 December 2023. 

 
Decision 
 

Page 119

Item 9



 

 

The Committee endorse the recommendations being asked of Executive, as set out 
in the report. 

Page 120

Item 9



 

 

Environment, Climate Change and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny 
Committee 
 
Minutes of the meeting held on 11 January 2024 
 
Present: 
Councillor Shilton Godwin – in the Chair 
Councillors Holt, Ilyas, McCaul, Wiest and Wright  
 
Apologies: Councillor Chohan, Collins and Razaq 
 
Also present:  
Councillor Rawlins, Executive Member for Environment and Transport 
Councillor Foley, Deputy Executive Member for Environment and Transport 
Councillor Igbon, Executive Member for Vibrant Neighbourhoods 
Councillor Ahmed Ali, Deputy Executive Member for Vibrant Neighbourhoods 
Councillor White, Executive Member for Housing and Development 
Neil Robinson, Corporate Social Responsibility & Future Airspace Director, MAG 
(Manchester Airports Group) 
Dr Bethan Owen, Research Fellow at Centre for Aviation, Transport and the 
Environment  
Samantha Nicholson, Director Manchester Climate Agency  
Megan Black, Head of Logistics & Environment TfGM 
 
ECCNSC/24/01 Minutes 
 
Decision 
 
To approve the minutes of the Environment and Climate Change Scrutiny Committee 
meeting held on 7 December 2023 as a correct record. 
 
ECCNSC/24/02  Compliance and Enforcement Services - Performance in 

2022/23 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Strategic Director (Neighbourhoods) that 
provided an update on demand for and performance of the Compliance and 
Enforcement service during 2022/23. The report also provided a forward look at on- 
going and new challenges as a result of changes to legislation, policy and areas of 
growth that would have an impact on the work carried out by Compliance and 
Enforcement teams.  
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
  

• Providing an introduction and background to the service; 

• Describing the variety of teams that make up the Compliance and Enforcement 
services and their remits; 

• Information on the demand on service with comparative data; 

• Case studies across a range of activities; 

• Information on proactive work across a range of activities; 

• Information on programmed work across a range of activities; 

Page 121

Item 9



 

 

• Information and data relating to formal enforcement action; 

• Discussion of ongoing and emerging challenges; and 

• An update on the introduction of the new case management system. 
 

Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were:  
 

• Welcoming the informative report and suggesting that this report be circulated to 
all Councillors for information; 

• Recognising the work undertaken by the staff in the various teams to improve the 
environment for the residents of Manchester; 

• Were there enough resources across the teams to deliver the scale of work 
described; 

• Noting that benchmarking and comparative data would be useful in future update 
reports with consideration given to population change; 

• Noting that in the future the Committee may wish to consider receiving reports on 
specific activities of interest so that deeper consideration could be given to a 
specific area; 

• What was the approach to removing graffiti from private land; 

• Had there been any analysis undertaken as to the impact of using CCTV to tackle 
environmental crimes; 

• What was the approach taken to fly-tipping incidents when legal action was not 
pursued;  

• Were fines secured as a result of legal action ringfenced for the respective service 
area taking enforcement action; 

• Noting the proliferation of vape shops on the high street, often selling illegal 
products and the public health risk these posed to specifically to young people; 

• The issue of damp and mould in housing was an issue for many residents across 
the city; 

• Illegal evictions and the use of Section 21 Notice to Quit needed to end; 

• Calling for more enforced sales of empty properties to bring more houses back 
into the market; 

• Who would enforce any breaches of a Construction Management Plan; and 

• More Selective Licensing Schemes needed to be established to ensure greater 
control of the Private Rented Sector and to raise housing conditions within the 
Private Rented Sector.  

 

The Head of Compliance, Enforcement and Community Safety welcomed the 
positive comments from the Committee and said that this would be relayed to the 
staff. She further paid tribute to her colleagues who had collated all of the information 
to publish in the report. She addressed the issue of benchmarking and said that this 
would be difficult to meaningfully do as Manchester did more than many other Local 
Authorities and different Local Authorities organised their services differently which 
made comparing like with like challenging. She stated that they did use statistics 
published at a national level, where these were available, and liaised with other core 
cities to share learning and good practice. She said that the Compliance and 
Performance Team did monitor trends and were alive to the issue of population 
trends. She commented that the new case management system that would replace 
the current FLARE system would strengthen this work.  
 

Page 122

Item 9



 

 

The Head of Compliance, Enforcement and Community Safety said that it was the 
responsibility of the land / property owner to remove graffiti. She said that information 
was available on the Council’s website to advise people as to where responsibilities 
rested depending on the tenure of land/property. She said that they would work with 
landowners to encourage them to remove graffiti and ultimately the Council could 
undertake enforcement action and remove graffiti, however she added that this would 
be at a cost to the public purse. She did clarify that any racist or hate crime related 
graffiti would be removed. She said that where fly-tipping cases were not pursued for 
legal action due to a lack of evidence this would be removed, adding that all 
Requests for Service were looked into by officers.   
 
The Head of Compliance, Enforcement and Community Safety stated that additional 
resources for teams would always be welcomed. She said that all available 
resources were deployed to deliver the work and respond to changes in legislation. 
She stated that when considered necessary, a business case would be prepared for 
additional resources.   
 
The Head of Compliance, Enforcement and Community Safety said that CCTV was a 
useful tool to identify vehicles that were responsible for fly-tipping and other 
environmental crimes. She added that any prosecutions were publicised via press 
releases. In reply to the question relating to Construction Management Plans she 
commented that this would be the responsibility of Planning. 
 
In response to the discussion regarding the selling of vapes, the Head of 
Compliance, Enforcement and Community Safety said that this was an issue that cut 
across a number of services. She said that Trading Standards did undertake test 
purchasing exercises and that Trading Standards worked closely with Greater 
Manchester Police (GMP). She said that local intelligence from residents and 
Councillors helped to inform how work was targeted and all powers available were 
used to address the issue of illegal vapes and the selling to minors. She said that 
currently this was a significant area of work for the service and work was ongoing 
with Public Health colleagues to reiterate and articulate the key messaging on this 
issue. 
 
In response to a question regarding people trafficking, the Head of Compliance, 
Enforcement and Community Safety said that this crime fell within the remit of GMP, 
however if staff became aware of any suspected cases when undertaking their 
routine activities they would make the appropriate referral, in a similar way any 
safeguarding referrals would be made if officers had any concerns. 
 
The Head of Compliance, Enforcement and Community Safety said that the 
allocation of money resulting from enforcement action and fines depended on the 
legislation under which the action was taken. She said that, for example, receipts 
from Fixed Penalty Notices and Civil Penalties would be retained by the Council and 
ringfenced, however, some fines issued by the Courts would be paid to the Treasury. 
 
The Executive Member for Housing and Development said that Manchester was alert 
to the issue of damp and mould, illegal evictions and continued the call for an end to 
Section 21 evictions. He said that any tenant could make a Request for Service for 
issues related to damp and mould, adding that they did not have to live within a 

Page 123

Item 9



 

 

designated Selective Licensing area. He commented that everyone was entitled to 
live in safe accommodation and Manchester would continue to support residents. He 
said that the intention was to extend the Selective Licensing Scheme and progress 
against this ambition was reported to the Economy and Regeneration Scrutiny 
Committee. 
 
The Executive Member for Housing and Development said that the legal process to 
secure and enforce the sale of an empty property was complex and could be lengthy, 
however it was the intention to increase the exercising of a range of powers to bring 
more empty properties back into use. 
 
The Executive Member for Vibrant Neighbourhoods paid tribute to the staff working 
across the various teams who worked hard, with many competing pressures on 
behalf of the residents of the city. She stated that the service was understaffed due to 
the ongoing budget restrictions that had been imposed on the Council over the 
previous years that had seen cuts to Neighbourhood Services. She made a call for 
action by residents, businesses and partners to make changes and take action to 
improve the physical environment of the city and neighbourhoods. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the report. 
 
[Councillor Wright declared a personal and non-prejudicial interest as she is an 
employee at His Majesty’s Revenue and Customs] 
 
ECCNSC/24/03  Climate Change Action Plan Quarterly Progress Report: 

Quarter 3 Update report 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City 
Treasurer that provided provides an update and overview of progress made in 
delivering the Council’s refreshed Climate Change Action Plan (CCAP) during 
Quarter 3 2023-24 (October – December 2023) 
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
  

• Providing an introduction and background, noting that the refreshed CCAP was 
endorsed by the Environment and Climate Change Scrutiny Committee and 
approved by the Council’s Executive Committee in September 2022; 

• Proving an update on carbon emissions and noting that emissions reported as 
part of the Quarter 3 report covered the previous quarter (Q2), in this case July to 
September 2023 due to energy billing being quarterly in arrears; 

• Reporting that as a result of the National Grid increasing the amount of natural 
gas and coal in the production of electricity over the last year, this had increased 
the carbon intensity of the national electricity system by 7%, which in turn 
impacted our own emissions, via the conversion factor; and 

• Information relating to the key messages for Quarter 3 across a range of 
activities, noting that since 2020 the Council had remained within its carbon 
budget each year and the Quarter 3 report showed continued progress was being 
made with the Council being on track to meet its 2025 target. 

Page 124

Item 9



 

 

 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were:  
 

• Welcoming the report and the progress reported to date; 

• Was there any risk to the Active Travel Plans for the city as a result of national 
government funding arrangements; 

• Noting the lack of government funding to support the ambitions of the city, 
particularly in relation to the important issue of housing retrofit; 

• Welcoming the production of the ‘Developer Design Guide’ and the review of the 
‘Manchester Build Standard’ planned for 2024; 

• Welcoming the information provided on the full stock condition survey that had 
been undertaken across the whole Council owned housing stock as part of the 
Housing Carbon Reduction workstream; 

• Welcoming the information provided in relation to Sustainable Urban Drainage 
Systems; and 

• Supporting the proposal for Manchester to become a Carbon Literate City. 
 
The Zero Carbon Manager commented that progress on the delivery of the Active 
Travel Plan was periodically reported to the Committee and any relevant updates 
would be included in the next update report. She said that the Highways Department 
had been significantly involved in drafting the Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems 
Guide. She commented an issue was in relation to the ongoing maintenance of these 
and consideration was being given to this. She commented that the stock condition 
survey had been a useful exercise as this would inform the work around the issue of 
Housing Carbon Reduction. 
 
The Zero Carbon Manager stated that there was planned projection of the carbon 
budget towards 2038, noting that the impact on this by such initiatives such as the 
Power Purchase Arrangements would need to be reported, adding that it was 
important to recognise that some initiatives would contribute to Manchester’s zero 
carbon ambition but impact may not be realised immediately and consideration would 
be given as to how best to articulate this trajectory and report to Committee. She also 
stated that consideration was also been given to the next reiteration of the Council’s 
Climate Change Action Plan and this would be considered by the Committee at the 
appropriate time.  
 
In response to a question asked in relation to housing retrofit the Zero Carbon 
Manager noted that a substantive report on this topic was scheduled for 
consideration by the Committee at the March meeting. 
 
The Head of City Policy commented that a full review of the Manchester Build 
Standard was planned for 2024. Once the review was completed, the work would be 
considered for inclusion in the new Manchester Local Plan along with other policy 
proposals. 
 
The Executive Member for Environment and Transport responded to the discussion 
relating to government funding and stated that the continued lobbying for additional 
funding was undertaken and all available resources were used to support the 
activities described. 
 

Page 125

Item 9



 

 

Decision 
 
To note the report. 
 
ECCNSC/24/04  Manchester Airport and Aviation Emissions 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Manchester City Council, Manchester 
Airports Group, Centre for Aviation and Transport and Environment, Manchester 
Climate Change Agency that provided an update on emissions from Manchester 
Airport and aviation. 
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
  

• Discussion of the Council’s role in relation to reducing aviation emissions via its 
shareholder relationship to Manchester Airports Group (MAG) who own and 
operate three UK airports including Manchester Airport, its membership of 
Manchester Climate Change Partnership and as an employer; 

• An update from MAG which provided information on their work to decarbonise 
their ground operations and flights to and from Manchester Airport; 

• A report from the Centre for Aviation, Transport and Environment (CATE) based 
at Manchester Metropolitan University on estimating the scale and impact of non-
CO2 aviation emissions on climate; and  

• A report from the University of Manchester who had been commissioned by the 
Manchester Climate Change Agency and Partnership which sought to estimate 
the aviation related CO2 emissions from flights taken by Manchester residents.   
 

Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were:  
 

• Challenging the continued narrative that the economic benefits of the airport 
outweighed the need to take immediate action to address the climate emergency; 

• Challenging the assertion that aviation emissions could be reduced by 
technology, asserting that this was largely untested and unproven; 

• There was no accompany carbon reduction action plan to report progress and key 
milestones; 

• Noting that there was a contradiction between using agricultural land and 
domestic waste to manufacture Sustainable Aviation Fuel when the wider 
message and intention was to reduce waste; 

• The need to reduce the number of flights taken, adding that the report appeared 
to celebrate an increase in passenger numbers; 

• The number of domestic flights needed to reduce, and people should use other 
forms of sustainable transport; 

• Criticising the cancellation of HS2 to Manchester; and 

• Challenging the assertion that an increase in the costs of flights due to the 
introduction of new technologies would reduce passenger numbers, adding that 
affluent people would continue to fly and the less well-off would be excluded.  

 
Neil Robinson, CSR & Future Airspace Director, MAG stated that industry initiatives, 
such as increased efficiency in the use of aircraft and airspace would contribute to 
reducing emissions associated with the aviation industry. He said that Sustainable 
Aviation Fuel (SAF) was a proven technology, and the challenge was now to produce 

Page 126

Item 9



 

 

this at scale to service the aviation industry. He said that there were plans to 
establish five production plants across the UK, with one of the servicing Manchester 
Airport directly. He further commented that existing generation of aircraft could use a 
minimum of 10% SAF. In terms of carbon savings, he said that this would be realised 
through the life cycle of SAF, namely in the manufacturing of SAF as opposed to 
kerosene. He further commented that the approach was consistent with the 
government’s Jet Zero strategy, the framework and plan for achieving net zero 
aviation by 2050 and was consistent with the national carbon budget. He commented 
that support of this strategy was reflected across the industry nationally. He also 
referred to hydrogen and electric technology, adding that this had previously not 
been included in plans, however as technological advances had been made these 
were now included. He further reiterated the economic impact of the airport for the 
city, noting that a report on this subject had been considered by the Economy and 
Regeneration Scrutiny Committee at their recent December meeting. 
 
In response to the discussion relating to domestic flights, Neil Robinson, CSR & 
Future Airspace Director, MAG stated that analysis of these indicated that the 
majority of these journeys included crossing a body of water and would require an 
alternative journey in excess of four hours. 
 
Dr Bethan Owen, Research Fellow at Centre for Aviation, Transport and the 
Environment (CATE) stated that that the aviation industry was a global industry, and 
it was important to consider this topic in terms of an international context and that 
global action was the best way to address aviation emissions. 
 
The Head of City Policy stated that MAG was a member of the Climate Change 
Partnership and MAG were leading on the issue aviation emissions at a national and 
international level. He further commented that the 10 Greater Manchester Local 
Authorities shareholding resulted in places on the Board at MAG which facilitated 
challenge and conversations on this issue. He further commented that it was 
important to acknowledge that the airport was carbon neutral in in relation to its 
ground operations and has committed to being zero carbon by 2038. 
 
The Director of Manchester Climate Change Agency reiterated the role of the 
Partnership to bring stakeholders together to encourage and facilitate action to tackle 
the climate emergency. 
 
The Executive Member for Environment and Transport acknowledged the strength of 
feeling expressed by the Committee and said that consideration would be given as to 
how best to present and report this topic to future meetings of the Committee. 
   
Decision 
 
To note the report. 
 
ECCNSC/24/05  Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan Update 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Strategic Director, Growth and 
Development that provided information on the Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan 

Page 127

Item 9



 

 

(GM CAP) as submitted to the Joint Air Quality Unit for consideration, December 
2023. 
 
Appended to the report for reference was the complete report that had been 
considered by the Greater Manchester Air Quality Administration Committee at their 
meeting of 20 December 2023. 
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
  

• Providing an introduction and background; 

• Noting that the 10 GM local authorities were committed to delivering an 
investment-led, non-charging GM Clean Air Plan; 

• Discussion on the development of an investment-led Clean Air Plan for Greater 
Manchester; 

• Consideration of the bus investment of £51.2 million; 

• The approach to taxis and associated taxi licensing conditions to reduce 
associated emissions; and 

• Targeted Local Traffic Management Measures. 
 

Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were:  
 

• Whilst recognising the approach of Greater Manchester to improve air quality, 
Manchester should develop a bespoke, Manchester specific strategy to improve 
air quality that exceeds the national minimum standard; 

• Noting that poor air quality represented a significant public health risk to all 
residents of the city; 

• Was wind conditions and the impact of high building factored into modelling’ 

• The need to articulate a collective message on the issue of air quality; 

• A member commented that he was not confident that the modelling in relation to 
Quay Street would improve air quality and this needed to be considered in the 
context of the wider road network; and 

• The need to consider wood burners and the impact these had on air quality. 
 
The Head of Logistics & Environment TfGM sated that Greater Manchester was now 
dependent on the government to provide a response to the submission. 
 
The Head of Network Management described the modelling that had been 
undertaken to inform the plans for Quay Street and adjacent streets to allow access 
and address issues of through traffic. Officers also stated that high buildings and the 
impact these had on air quality was factored into any modelling, however accepted 
that this needed to be strengthened. Members were advised that any schemes would 
be monitored and evaluated following their introduction. 
 
The Executive Member for Environment and Transport stated that conversations had 
already commenced to develop a Manchester specific clean air plan, and this would 
be reported to the Committee at an appropriate time. The Committee were further 
advised that a GM campaign in relation to wood burners had been recently launched 
and information would be circulated to the Committee. 
 
 

Page 128

Item 9



 

 

Decision 
 
To note the report. 
 
ECCNSC/24/06  Overview Report 
 
The report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit which contained key 
decisions within the Committee’s remit and responses to previous recommendations 
was submitted for comment. Members were also invited to agree the Committee’s 
future work programme. 
 
Decision 
 
The Committee notes the report and agrees the work programme. 
 

Page 129

Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Audit Committee  
 
Minutes of the meeting held on 28 November 2023 
 
Present: 
Councillor Lanchbury - In the Chair 
Councillors Curley, Kilpatrick, Noor and Simcock 
 
Independent Co-opted member: Dr D Barker 
 
Apologies: Dr S Downs 
 
Also Present: Councillor Akbar (Executive Member, Finance), and Councillor Gavin 
White (Executive Member for Housing and Development) 
 
AC/23/33 Minutes 
 
Decision  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 19 September 2023 were approved as a correct 
record. 
 
AC/23/34 Annual Audit Report and Completion Letter 2021/22 
 
The Committee received the External Auditor’s Annual Report for the Year ended 
March 31 2022, that provided an overview of the work undertaken by the Council’s 
external auditor (Mazars) as well as the associated Audit Completion Letter  
 
Alastair Newall (Mazars) confirmed that the 2021/22 External Audit had been 
completed. The annual report contained a summary of the audit findings and a value 
for money commentary. He confirmed that there were no significant 
recommendations or significant weaknesses in the Council's Value For Money 
arrangements in the indicative financial year. He advised that there was nothing to 
highlight in the Audit Completion letter; some amendments had been made to the 
accounts that had been submitted to the committee at its September meeting, and 
some misstatements had not been made on the basis that they were immaterial. 
 
The Committee conveyed its thanks to Mazars and the Council’s Finance team for 
their work in delivering completion of those accounts. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the report and the audit completion letter. 
 
AC/23/35 External Audit Update - Annual Accounts 2022/23 
 
The Committee received an oral report from the External Auditor (Mazars) regarding 
the progress of the 2022/23 annual accounts. The Committee welcomed Amelia 
Salford (Mazars) who had taken over as senior audit manager for those accounts. 
She confirmed that planning work had commenced some weeks prior and that the 

Page 131

Item 10



 
 

audit strategy memorandum would be submitted to the next meeting of the 
committee. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the update. 
 
AC/23/36 Annual Accounts update 
 
The Committee received the update report from the Deputy Chief Executive and City 
Treasurer about the completion of the remaining annual accounts. The report stated 
that the Council’s 2021/22 accounts had been finalised and an unqualified Audit 
Opinion had been issued by the external auditors. The update included a planned 
timeline for the 2022/23 audit and the 2023/24 accounts consolidation. It made 
reference to the draft Annual Accounts for 2021/22 having been reported to the Audit 
Committee on 27 September 2022 and that information concerning amendments to 
those accounts by the Councils external auditors had been submitted to the previous 
meeting of the Committee (September 2023) where it was reported that the Audit 
Opinion would remain unchanged subject to the amendments that had been outlined 
and which had been subsequently resolved. The Mazars unqualified audit opinion 
stated that the Councils financial statements: 
 

• gave a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council and the Group 
as at 31st March 2022 and of the Council’s and the Group’s expenditure and 
income for the year then ended; and  

• had been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22 as 
amended by the Code Update:  

 
Mindful that all of the material elements had been covered in the previous two items 
of business, the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer conveyed her thanks to 
the Council’s Finance team and to the wider team at Mazars. Particular reference 
was given to this being Alastair Newall’s last attendance at the Committee. The 
Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer thanked Mr Newall for all of his hard work 
and support over the past few years and for his and Mazar’s proactive collaboration 
in the shared mission to complete the outstanding audit of accounts in the context of 
the wider national challenge. 
 
With regard to the 2022/23 update, a number of matters that were outstanding at 
September 2023 were summarised within the report. The Deputy Chief Executive 
and City Treasurer added that there was a current lack of clarity about the cut off 
date for the 2022/23 audit completion and that consequently all involved were 
proactively seeking to deliver completion within the current financial year. 
 
Decision 
 
The Committee: 
 
1. Noted that the Council’s 2021/22 audit is fully complete, and an unqualified audit 

opinion has been issued.  

Page 132

Item 10



 
 

 
2. Noted the timeline for 2022/23 audit and 2023/24 consolidation  

 
3. Noted the corrections to the 2022/23 Accounts, as itemised in paragraph 2.2 of 

the report. 
 
AC/23/37 Governance and Management of Complaints 2022/23  
 
The Committee received its annual report from the Assistant Chief Executive and the 
City Solicitor setting out the Council’s annual performance for 2022/23 in the 
management of corporate and social care complaints, Councillor and MP enquiries, 
and information requests. 
 
The Assistant Chief Executive reported an increase in the number of complaints in 
comparison to the previous year. He reported positive progress during 2022/23 to 
respond to more complaints and enquiries in a timely manner, despite significant 
increases in the overall numbers of complaints and enquiries that had been received. 
The timeliness of responses was reported as having markedly improved overall 
during 2022/23 and whilst some targets still had not been met, overall performance 
was much closer to the target than in previous years. This was in spite of significant 
challenges in terms of increased numbers of complaints and capacity. A key factor 
had been the embedding of the Council’s complaints handling system during the 
year. 
 
The key points for consideration were summarised as: 
 

• An increase in the total number of stage one complaints from 3,157 in 2021/22 to 
3,515 in 2022/23. These numbers are significantly higher than previous years. 
The proportion responded to in 10 days had improved from 77% to 81%. 
 

• The number of Stage 2 complaints (approximately 15%) had remained steady 
and had reportedly been responded to in a much more timely manner.  
 

• 85 Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (Ombudsman) enquiries 
compared to 81 in 2021/22 and much lower numbers in previous years, with a 
slight reduction in cases upheld. Performance in dealing with the Housing 
Ombudsman was highlighted as an area for as this is a new area of reporting for 
the Council.  
 

• An increase in Councillor / MP enquiries from 1,835 to 2,007 overall – noting the 
work undertaken to improve reporting of cases following discussion at Audit 
Committee last year – and an improvement in timeliness of response from 76% to 
84%. 
 

• A significant reduction in the number of social care cases from 377 to 262, and an 
improvement in the proportion responded to in 20 days from 59% to 84%. 
 

• Both General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) and Freedom of Information 
(FOI) request numbers remained largely steady.  
 

Page 133

Item 10



 
 

• There had been over 300 instances of praise across the Council 
 
Learning Action Points were also appended to the report in line with a previous 
recommendation by this Committee. 
 
There was a discussion about the established route for councillor and MP inquiries to 
ensure that they are not inadvertently underreported. The Complaints Manager 
referred to recently circulated guidance to members on the correct process. Where 
an element of dissatisfaction was detected in a given inquiry, as opposed to a routine 
request for service, there was an expectation that officers would record the matter on 
the councils complaints handling system to enable appropriate reporting. In response 
to a request from a member of the committee, the Complaints Manager agreed to 
explore the extent to which the complaints handling system was able to extract the 
number of complaints that had been recorded by the service involved.  
 
In response to a comment about the steady rise in complaints in relation to children 
and education services over the last two years, the Committee was advised that 
these were predominantly in relation to dissatisfaction with school admissions 
processes, school access sufficiency, special educational needs and school transport 
access. Children's social care complaints however had reduced significantly. 
Discussion then moved to the extent to which complaints were associated with a 
recent policy change and/or budget restrictions. The Assistant Chief Executive 
agreed to explore the extent to which this could be reported on in future. 
 
There was a discussion about the trend in Local Government Ombudsman referrals. 
A step change was described in relation to the growth in the number of cases over 
the last two years and the Assistant Chief Executive described the process for the 
management of Ombudsman cases as robust and effective and which ensured 
effective learning points for the service area involved. In respect of Housing 
Ombudsman cases (where emphasis was given that this had been reported 
separately this year).  He described a significant pressure that was linked with a 
government-led campaign to sign post social housing tenants where concerns lay in 
respect of housing quality. It was therefore anticipated that this trend would likely 
continue and the Complaints team would continue to work with services to ensure 
that those Ombudsman cases were appropriately managed. The Committee 
acknowledged the influence of targeted raising awareness campaigns and the 
association with long term behaviour change amongst residents. They noted the 
Assistant Chief Executive’s comments around the positive role of residents’ feedback 
on service development and policy change. 
 
The Chair suggested, in terms of possible next steps, that consideration should be 
given to the involvement of the Members Development Group to underpin guidance 
for councillors on the established route for complaints  and which includes 
information on the nuance between service requests, complaints and the role of 
partners.  It was also suggested that a session on this could be targeted to newly 
appointed Councillors as part of the Member Induction programme. 
 
The Executive Member for Finance thanked officers for the detailed report and 
highlighted the impact of staffing pressures that had arisen from significantly reduced 
local government funding since 2010 coupled with the impact of a growing city 

Page 134

Item 10



 
 

resulting in additional demand for services. He also referred to ICT infrastructural 
changes that were soon to be implemented which would promote the use of user-
friendly platforms to enable residents with greater ease of access to services. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the report. 
 
AC/23/38 Treasury Management Update 
 
The Committee received the report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer 
which set out Treasury Management activities of the Council during the first six 
months of 2023/24.  
 
A challenging financial market with increasing interest rates was described. The 
Council had taken on additional debt during that period to fund the Capital 
Programme seeking loans of short to medium term length to limit the long-term 
impact of higher interest rates, in light of market expectations that rates would fall 
back. A further borrowing requirement was anticipated in the latter half of the year. 
The borrowing position reflected the Council’s strong balance sheet which enabled 
net interest costs to be minimised and reduced credit risk by making temporary use 
of internal borrowing (reserves, provisions, positive cash flows, etc). The Council’s 
policy remained to keep cash as low as possible and not to borrow in advance of 
need for capital purposes. However, the report asserted that a strong balance sheet 
position is not without risk, and with interest rates set to remain at current levels or 
increase in the future, the timing and structure of future debt financing would be 
important in sustaining this position. Higher rates would also act as a constraint on 
future borrowing, and therefore capital financing capacity, would require due 
consideration as part of the Council’s Capital Strategy. Proactive treasury 
management during the year had sought to minimise borrowing costs for the Council 
and maximise returns on investment. The Treasury team would therefore continue to 
evaluate financial markets to look for opportunities and risks within the context of the 
agreed Treasury Management Strategy. 
 
The Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer reiterated the challenging 
environment the Council was operating within with regard to interest rates and the 
need to borrow to fund the Capital Programme resulting in borrowing being relatively 
high in comparison with other Local Authorities. A new section in the report had 
therefore been included which discussed the role of the newly constituted Office for 
Local Government (OfLOG) who would be scrutinising levels of borrowing and other 
council activities as part of their Early Warnings work. She gave assurance that 
funding for the programme was affordable and that provision had been made 
including within the capital financing reserves to ensure that costs would be met. The 
Capital Strategy itself would be considered by the Resources and Governance 
Scrutiny Committee as part of the budget process and would contain more detail on 
this. The cost of carry for any cash balances remained challenging. 
 
The Commercial Finance Lead responded to questions about temporary borrowing 
arrangements, including financial returns and measures to ensure that the Council 
was operating within the financing capacity available to it. The Deputy Chief 

Page 135

Item 10



 
 

Executive and City Treasurer asked the Committee to note that the Council’s ability 
to borrow for future capital projects was far more constrained than in the past and 
that the upcoming Capital Strategy report to be considered as part of budget 
arrangements would restate the principles around where the Council would or would 
not borrow. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the report. 
 
AC/23/39 Internal Audit Assurance (Quarter 2) 
 
The Committee received the report of The Head of Audit and Risk Management 
which discussed progress on the agreed audit plan and details of assurances from 
the Internal Audit Service for Quarter 2 in 2023/24. 
 
The report provided information about: 
 

• Audit Plan Progress and Delivery 

• Audit Assurance, Risks and Issues in Housing Services, Commercial and 
Contracts and Safer Recruitment in schools 

 
Appended to the report was : 
 

• A summary of Audit Work and other sources of assurance in Children and 
Education Services, Schools, Adults and Public Health, Corporate Services 
and the Chief Executive’s directorate, Growth and Development directorate 
and Neighbourhood Services 

• Executive Summaries of Audit reports for the Our Town Hall project, Foster 
Care payments, Imprest Accounts, Vendor creation and amendment, and 
safer recruitment follow up findings for a number of Manchester schools. 

 
The Head of Audit and Risk Management responded to questions about the 
upcoming recruitment to vacant posts in the Service and the remit of the Audit 
Service in respect of schools audit activity. 
 
Having duly considered the information the Committee noted the report. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the report. 
 
AC/23/40 Outstanding Audit Recommendations (Quarter 2) 
 
The Committee received the report of The Head of Audit and Risk Management 
which discussed the implementation position at September 2023 of outstanding high 
priority audit recommendations in line with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 
The report summarised information about: 
 

• Overdue Audit recommendations over 12 months old; in respect of Avro 

Page 136

Item 10



 
 

Hollows Tenants Management Organisation (TMO) and Privacy Notices 

• Overdue Audit recommendations 6 – 12 months old; in respect Vendor 
Creation and amendment, and Social Value monitoring 

• Overdue Audit recommendations 1 – 6 months old; in respect of the 
Adaptations Review, Adult Social Care: Contracts Governance, Contracts Risk 
Management, Review of Fire Risk Assessment Process (Residential 
Properties), Adults Care Package Payments 

 
The Head of Audit and Risk Management responded to a comment about the length 
of time taken to implement some of the longer-standing recommendations and gave 
emphasis to the positive impact of requiring Directors and Executive Members to 
committee in particular circumstances to explain the reasons for delay. 
 
A member suggested that a close eye be kept on the upcoming Adaptations reviews, 
in light of recent comments made by members of the Resources and Governance 
Scrutiny Committee. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the report. 
 
AC/23/41 Housing Services Update 
 
The Committee considered a report of the Strategic Director Neighbourhoods which 
provided information about building safety compliance in Housing Services in light of 
the issue of a Limited Assurance opinion concerning fire safety processes in July 
2023. 
 
The Director of Housing Services introduced the report with emphasis that safety 
remained at the heart of the Council’s vision and practise for social housing and, as 
such, prior to the transfer of former Northwards housing stock (the Arms Length 
Management Organisation (ALMO) back to the Local Authority, an audit of systems 
and procedures in connection with fire risk assessment safety had been undertaken. 
The findings had resulted in the issue of a Limited Assurance opinion and a number 
of agreed actions which were set out in the report for ease of reference. The majority 
of those actions had been completed, with just two remaining actions not yet fully 
implemented. New roles and systems had been implemented. The matter was under 
review of the Housing Board and the Housing Advisory Body and performance 
information on building safety compliance had been published on the Council’s 
website 
 
Discussions touched on recent events in Bristol where approximately 400 residents 
in a Local Authority maintained tower block were decanted from their homes at 
extremely short notice requiring temporary accommodation due to concerns over 
building safety. The Director of Housing Services gave assurance that the 
circumstances surrounding the Bristol decant were markedly different to the issues 
raised in the assurance opinion. Tried and tested policies and procedures were in 
place, including the availability of front line staff to support and accommodate 
residents should safety concerns arise. Furthermore, a review of the Council’s 
approach to building safety in view of recent legislative changes was underway. This 

Page 137

Item 10



 
 

would include the approach taken in relation to damp and mould and asbestos 
exposure and any further areas of improvement that had been identified. He also 
gave emphasis to a majority of capital programme spending in Housing Services 
being ring-fenced to building safety and decent homes. 
 
A member of the committee welcomed the progress and sought clarification on the 
underlying reasons for the delay with the remaining two action points yet to be 
finalised. A degree of complexity around particular Private Finance Initiative (PFI) 
housing stock was described as the cause, as well as an assessment of best practice 
examples from other organisations prior to ratification by the Housing Board. With 
regard to the access strategy, he advised that further engagement with residents was 
needed in view of a number of complexities however good progress had been made.  
 
In response to a question about Reinforced Autoclaved Aerated Concrete (RAAC), 
the Committee noted that full structural surveys had been undertaken of high rise 
stock which identified no RAAC. A recent detailed desktop exercise undertaken by 
Strategic Housing had identified a small number (circa 35) of assets (communal and 
high rise configuration of buildings) requiring further investigation. For residential 
assets, a further study was underway of approximately 1500 properties with a 
potential structural element containing RAAC. However initial onset investigations 
indicated that this was not the case, though further sampling would be undertaken. It 
was asserted that colleagues were in a strong position to act quickly should any 
remediation be necessary.  
 
In response to a question about next steps where residents refused access to 
properties to enable remediation, the Committee was informed that risk based 
assessments, including vulnerability assessments were undertaken in view of the 
nature of work being refused. Enforcement, where indicated, of tenancy agreements 
and other legal routes would also be considered subject to being proportionate, 
reasonable and compliant with the relevant legislation because of the impact not only 
to the resident but to neighbouring properties. 
 
The Executive Member for Housing and Development agreed that issues around 
refusal of access were an important consideration that had been duly considered at 
that Housing Advisory Board. An education piece had subsequently been 
implemented to support better engagement with residents to explain the importance 
of this type of work and the benefits conferred on residents in term of theirs and their 
neighbours/ health and safety. Due to the time taken to complete such an exercise, 
the matter would be overseen by the Housing Advisory Committee. The extent to 
which local ward members could facilitate the process would also be explored. 
 
Decision  
 
To note the report. 
 
AC/23/42 Register of Significant Partnerships 
 
The Committee received a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer 

which provided an update on the partnerships where a ‘Reasonable’ or ‘Limited’ 
rating was recorded, following the 2022 annual assessment, and presented to the 

Page 138

Item 10



 
 

Audit Committee in June 2023. 
 
The report provided: 
 

• An overview of partnership governance arrangements with a Reasonable 
Strength Rating, namely; Manchester Safeguarding Partnership 

• An overview of partnership governance arrangements with a Limited Strength 
Rating, namely, Greater Manchester Mental Health NHS Foundation Trust 
(GMMH), AVRO Hollows Tenant Management Organisation (TMO), and 
SHOUT Tenant Management Organisation (TMO) 

 
In respect of Greater Manchester Mental Health NHS Foundation Trust (GMMH), the 
Committee was informed that a number of actions  were in place with clearly defined 
timelines for delivery. 
 
In respect of SHOUT Tenant Management Organisation (TMO), the Head of 
Strategic Housing provided an outline of the number of properties managed by the 
TMO highlighting that the Council undertakes most of the repairs and maintenance 
work. In terms of its governance arrangements, a Board had recently been appointed 
and a meeting to establish how the board was progressing was due in December 
2023. He gave assurance that there was less concern about the operation of this 
particular TMO. 
 
 
In respect of AVRO Hollows Tenant Management Organisation (TMO), the Head of 
Strategic Housing outlined the legal basis for TMOs and the modular agreement that 
is in place nationally in terms of how they operate. The Committee noted that there 
were concerns about the TMO’s retention of staff and board members which could 
impact on governance arrangements. Additionally, Avro Hollows had elected to 
employ its own repairs contractor (which it is legally entitled to do) and that those 
repairs were carried out by a small to medium enterprise, however this was 
described as a concern in its own right. In terms of assurance, however, a formal 
assessment of works undertaken on a recently remediated long term empty property 
(known as a ‘void’ property)  had found no breaches of any fire safety work and no 
concerns about the quality of work that had been undertaken. In respect of the 
TMO’s responsibility for the management of four tower blocks as part of its housing 
stock, the Head of Strategic Housing gave assurance that the Council retained 
responsibility for major health and safety related works such as fire risk assessment, 
lift maintenance and legionella testing. In view of there being no rights to ‘step in’ with 
the regard to the operation of the TMO, next steps were outlined as well as interim 
arrangements to ensure that the Council was well-sighted on a range of matters as 
they develop. The Committee noted the procedural basis that would lead to the 
cessation of the TMO subject to certain findings. 
 
The Executive Member for Housing and Development thanked officers for their 
continued support and oversight of the relationship with the TMO and its overall 
operation.  
 
The Committee resolved to request that an update on progress of the TMO is 
submitted to the Committee in approximately 6 months and asked officers to give 

Page 139

Item 10



 
 

consideration to a communications outreach to tenants around what actions the 
Council was planning to undertake and the reasons why. 
 
Decision  
 
To note the report. 
 
AC/23/42 Work Programme 
 
The Committee considered a report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit 
which set out its future Work Programme for the remainder of 2023/24 municipal 
year. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the report and approve the work programme. 
 
 
AC/23/43 Exclusion of the Public 
 
A recommendation was made that the public be excluded during consideration of the 
following items of business. 

 
Decision 
 
To exclude the public during consideration of the following items which involved 
consideration of exempt information relating to the financial or business affairs of 
particular persons, and public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighed the 
public interest in disclosing the information. 
 
AC/23/42 Annual Counter Fraud (Part B) 
 
The Committee received a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer 
and the Head of Audit and Risk Management which provided a summary of the anti-
fraud arrangements and investigation work undertaken during 2022/23, with a 
particular focus on the work delivered by Internal Audit. 

 
The report provided information on: 
 

• Internal Control Arrangements 

• Structure and Roles, including the role of Internal Audit and the Council’s 
broader approach 

• A summary of financial outcomes 

• An outline of proactive Anti-Fraud Work  

• Training and awareness  

• An overview of reactive caseloads,  

• Other areas of Focus 

• Key Proactive Work and Plans 2023/24 

Page 140

Item 10



 
 

• A summary of Successful Sanctions and Prosecutions was also appended to 
the report 
 

The Head of Audit and Risk management responded to questions and comments 
arising from the report. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the report. 

Page 141

Item 10



Planning and Highways Committee   

 
Minutes of the meeting held on 14 December 2023 
 
Present: Councillor Lyons - In the Chair 
 
Councillors: Andrews, S. Ali, Curley, Gartside, Hewitson, Hughes, Johnson, Lovecy, 
Kamal and Riasat 
 
Apologies: Councillor Chohan 
 
Also present: Councillors Abdullatif, Doswell, Hilal, Ilyas, Moran and Muse 
 
PH/23/86  Supplementary Information on Applications Being Considered 
 
A copy of the late representations received had been circulated in advance of the 
meeting regarding applications 137399/FO/2023, 137401/FO/2023, 
138126/OO/2023, 137537/FO/2023, 138127/OO/2023 and 138128/OO/2023. 
 
Decision 
  
To receive and note the late representations. 
 
PH/23/87  Minutes 
 
Decision 
  
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 19 October 2023 as a correct record. 
 
PH/23/88  137399/FO/2023 - Land bounded by Upper Brook Street, 

Cottenham Street and Kincardine Road, Manchester, M13 9TD - 
Ardwick Ward & 137401/FO/2023 - Land between Upper Brook 
Street, Kincardine Road and Grosvenor Street Manchester - 
Ardwick Ward  

 
The Committee considered the reports of the Director of Planning, Building Control 
and Licensing regarding: 
 
137399/FO/2023 - the erection of a 6 to 9 storey building for Sci-Tech use (Use 
Class E (g)(ii)) and 265sqm of a cafe/bar (Use Class E (b)), and a 9 to 23 storey 
building for Purpose Built Student Accommodation (PBSA) (Use Sui Generis), 
comprising 737 bedrooms and 293sqm of community use (Use Class F2 (b)) and 
80sqm of commercial floorspace (Use Class E), alongside new public realm, access, 
parking, and associated works following demolition of existing buildings. 
 
114 objections (form 78 households) had been received. Councillors Muse and 
Abdullatif object. 
 
And: 
 

Page 142

Item 10



137401/FO/2023 - Full planning application for the demolition of existing buildings 
and 
erection of three 12/14/29 storey buildings to be used for Purpose Built Student 
Accommodation (Use Sui Generis), comprising 983 bedrooms in total and 506sqm of 
ground floor ancillary uses (café/commercial and convenience store - Use Classes E 
(a)/(b)/(c)), three buildings comprising 5/7/9 storeys for Science and Innovation uses 
(Use Class E (g)(i) & (ii)) and 834sqm ground floor community uses (retail/ cafés and 
medical facility (Use Classes E (a)/(b) and (e)), and the provision of new public 
realm, two new public squares, new access and parking, and associated works. 
 
Manchester Metropolitan University supported the proposal. 
 
113 (from 76 households) objections were received during the first round of 
notification, 97 (from 77 households) had been received. Councillors Muse and 
Abdullatif object. 
 
The Planning Officer stated that they recommended additional conditions regarding a 
student wellbeing strategy. The Planning Officer drew attention to matters in the late 
representations report regarding 6 additional objections for item 6 - 137401/FO/2023 
- Land between Upper Brook Street, Kincardine Road and Grosvenor Street 
Manchester - Ardwick Ward. The Planning Officer stated that all points raised in 
those late representations were addressed within the report. 
 
An objector attended the hearing and addressed the Committee, stating that it was 
not the job of the Brunswick community to solve the problems faced by students with 
a longer commuting distance. This was an unsustainable application as there was 
already PBSA in the area which stretched the resources. Adding this development 
would have a further negative effect on the community. Air pollution would be 
affected and the Medlock area already had the highest record in Manchester. There 
were also biodiversity issues to consider. Children in the area have a right to cleaner 
air and a cleaner urban environment. This proposal would see people using 
residential car parking spaces. Claiming that there would be zero additional cars was 
not realistic. This development would tower over the residents and block their light. 
There were 2 public consultations and the objector had attended. There were no 
buildings of similar height and massing in the area. 5,000 extra people and 
associated deliveries and taxis etc. was considered as a contempt for the community. 
The residents of this area wanted an affordable supermarket and affordable housing. 
As a resident of the area for the last 10 years, there had already been lots of building 
work endured which had a negative effect on residents. This was an attack on 
working class people. 
 
Two applicant agents attended and spoke for each of the two applications, the first 
stating that the developers were proud of the work they had already undertaken in 
Manchester. They employed great design management and had consulted with and 
listened to the community as well as planning officers. There was a demand for 
student accommodation in Manchester. The developers understood the concerns of 
the local residents and had reduced the size of the scheme accordingly. This was an 
experienced operator who had given consideration to the mental health of students 
who would be based there. The scheme would create 5,000 construction jobs and 
there was a growing demand for professionals that would be served by this 

Page 143

Item 10



application being granted. There would be a local, affordable store, medical centre, 3 
acres of public realm and sports facilities as part of the development for the use of 
local residents.  
 
The second agent stated that they represented a leading developer. This application 
would bring people together and create a university setting to compete with London, 
Oxford and Cambridge. This would create a dedicated property which would connect 
for tailored support to tenants. 1,500 new jobs would be created once completed. 
There would be a research and development science centre which would link with 
school and create skilled jobs. This development would deliver growth and prosperity 
to Manchester. 
 
Ward Councillor Abdullatif addressed the Committee and stated that she had a great 
number of conversations with local residents about this application and none of them 
were in support of this development. She was in attendance with Ward Councillor 
Muse to object. Councillor Abdullatif suggested the Committee undertake a site visit 
to understand the concerns of residents and expressed that this was a huge 
development. There were 1,500 residents in the local estate and students would add 
13,000 more into the area daily. This was not viable. The local houses were all low 
rise and the development was not in keeping with these surroundings. There would 
be a 29-storey tower, a small road and then two storey houses. The Committee were 
asked to take the residents’ quality of life into consideration. The additional commuter 
traffic for this development would add to the already considerable strain felt by this 
community of Ardwick. Upper Brook Street was already a very polluted road and the 
Brunswick area one of the worst polluted in the country. The area is committed to 
nature conservation, as exemplified by the model green development area, funded 
by GMCA and supported by Manchester University. The local action group reject the 
scheme as being harmful to Gartside Gardens which is at risk of over-shadowing. 
Children understand the concerns of what this development means to local residents 
and the promises made do not go far enough. In her closing statement, Councillor 
Abdullatif asked the Committee to think about local people and reject this application. 
 
Ward Councillor Muse addressed the Committee and stated that he was at the 
meeting to represent Ardwick. He stated that he and the residents were not against 
buildings of any kind but this development, next to two storey family homes, needed 
to be realistic. This scheme contradicts the council’s own policies and the transient 
nature of student lifestyles would be challenging for the area. Students do not pay 
council tax and this scheme would be a larger student dwelling area than Fallowfield.  
There would be refuse and sewage problems, the medical centre was already 
overwhelmed and children in the area already have a high rate of asthma and 
eczema and other respiratory problems. Nurses have voiced their concerns about 
these issues and a 12 year old child had written a letter to ask that the Local Ward 
Councillors help them so that the development would not take their natural light. This 
child was a symbol of the area’s future. There was no supermarket servicing the area 
and only one medical centre. It was stated that getting an appointment at the medical 
centre was akin to a lottery win. Councillor Muse implored the Committee to hear his 
impassioned plea for the community’s future. 
 
The Planning Officer addressed the concerns and stated that these were very long 
reports which covered all issues raised. The objective for Manchester City Council 

Page 144

Item 10



was to deliver life-science space over 650,000 square feet. The scheme had been 
tested for its viability and it was considered necessary to provide PBSA at this scale. 
The application had been reduced by 12 to 13 floors and the reduction represented 
the minimum required and had been tested independently. The resulting figures fed 
into the size of the life-science space and this was the amount that was required for 
the scheme to be viable. The scale and community had all been considered and it 
was understood that this was a large and imposing development, but the size of the 
development doesn’t make it unacceptable. This would have to be tested against 
MCC and national policies. All implications of sunlight, noise, wind, air quality, traffic, 
parking and biodiversity etcetera were all set out clearly in the report. 
 
The Chair invited Committee members to make comments or ask questions. 
 
Councillor Johnson stated that it was important to consider the resident’s point of 
view. She questioned how the air quality could not be worsened by the granting of 
this application, considering the additional traffic associated with the construction, 
staff and deliveries. This area already had high levels of air pollution. Car free areas 
should be prioritised, although cars are still required for expected online deliveries. 
Disabled people also rely on a certain number of parking space availability. 
Regarding the claim of increased biodiversity in the report, Councillor Johnson noted 
that tree planting was part of the scheme but it was not a particularly green plot, 
compared to the size of the buildings. The public realm appeared to be walkways 
with bushes and trees. The scheme may address the strategic framework in adding 
to a vibrant city but this needed to be balanced with the impact on local communities. 
The addition of this development, if agreed, would change the face of Ardwick for the 
future and potentially exclude families from living near the city centre. Councillor 
Johnson noted that the size of the development had been noted as not relevant and 
asked how this was so and agreed with the objector’s call for a site visit and 
proposed this as a motion. 
 
Councillor Hewitson seconded the proposal for a site visit stating that this 
development does not sit well in this location. 
 
Councillor Davies sought clarity on some site plans in the report. 
 
The Planning Officer confirmed that the site plans were covered under the second 
application under item 6 in the agenda. 
 
The Planning Officer then responded to Councillor Johnson’s comments on air 
quality by referring to page 96 and 97 where it was stated that construction could 
have some impact unless subject to mitigation, although these measures were set 
out in the report. After construction, this was to be a largely car-free scheme and 
colleagues in Environmental Health state that there would be zero impact, also 
detailed in the report. There were already two other huge car parks nearby at the 
Aquatic Centre and Circle Square which currently operated at around 35% capacity. 
There were also detailed strategies for deliveries within the report. Over the two sites 
there would be 3 acres of public realm. In terms of the impact of students on the 
community, there were large numbers of students occupying mainstream 
accommodation in Ardwick. Homes are being used to house students with 47% of 
these houses in Ardwick being built to rent. There was a need to build PBSA where 

Page 145

Item 10



students were choosing to live as without it there was additional pressure on family 
accommodation and these numbers would rise.  
 
The Director of Planning addressed Councillor Johnson’s comments by stating that 
the permanent impacts of the scheme were all addressed within both reports, this 
was a brownfield site earmarked for development unless there were material 
considerations opposing this. There were social, economic and environmental 
benefits, creating much needed jobs and high quality jobs, additional to the PBSA 
also set out within the report. 
 
Councillor Andrews Stated that he understood the requirement for additional PBSA in 
Manchester but agreed with Councillor Hewitson that a site visit was necessary to 
fully understand the impact to local residents. 
 
Decision 
  
The Committee resolved to approve a motion for a site visit for both applications in 
order to fully understand the potential impact of the developments on the local 
community. 
 
PH/23/89 138126/OO/2023 - University of Manchester Fallowfield Campus 

Wilmslow Road, Manchester M14 6HD - Fallowfield Ward  
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Planning, Building Control 
and Licensing regarding an outline planning application (with access only in detail) 
for the phased demolition of existing buildings and phased development of up to 
3,300 Purpose Built Student Accommodation bedrooms (Sui Generis use class) 
with associated facilities including waste storage, laundry and cycle storage; up to 
4,500 sq m of floorspace to be used for ancillary purposes associated with the 
student residential use of the site within Use Class F1a, Class E(a), E(b), E(c), E(d), 
E(g), Sui Generis (drinking establishment and hot food takeaway); ancillary 
supporting staff accommodation (up to 55 bedrooms) (Sui Generis use class), and up 
to 1,200 sq m of ancillary residential dwellings (Use Class C3), plus associated car 
parking, hard and soft landscaping, open space, utilities, footpaths and roads. 
 
The application related to the redevelopment of part of the University of Manchester 
student halls of residence at its Fallowfield Campus within the Fallowfield ward. 
Planning permission had previously been granted for its demolition and 
redevelopment as part of a wider scheme to provide additional bedspaces at the 
Campus. The application sought to update the University’s proposals to modernise 
the campus and provide further additional capacity at the site to address the need 
within the City for further purpose-built student accommodation (PBSA). 
 
The Planning Officer noted the additional objections in the late representations report 
from local community groups and confirmed that all matters raised were already 
addressed in the report. 
 
An objector attended the hearing and addressed the Committee stating that the 
scheme clashed with local and national policies and legal precedents. As an outline 
application, the most impactful features would be reserved matters, meaning that the 

Page 146

Item 10



Committee would not get to deliberate if they approved the proposal today. There 
were no particular details on the amount of bed spaces. An additional influx of 
wealthy students would cause harm to Fallowfield by way of 100,000 tons of carbon, 
in excess of legal limits in the area. Children have to walk past this area daily and 
also people with respiratory conditions. This scheme was contrary to the council’s 
own air quality policies. Bat protection was questioned and 14 bat roosts were 
mentioned. It was a criminal offence to remove bat roosts. This was a student 
fortress with no mixed use, no public rights of way and contrary to the core strategy. 
The Planning Officer may not have been well advised on this application. The 
Committee were being asked to make a decision on an unknown quantity and it was 
expressed that this application was a Trojan horse. 
 
The applicant’s agent attended and addressed the Committee stating that this was a 
major investment and core part of the developer’s portfolio and would provide 4,500 
safe student dwellings spaces. It was mentioned that Manchester’s growth had been 
partly due to the student population with many choosing to settle in the city and 
contribute. This was a globally competitive marketplace. Fallowfield played an 
important role in this field but the site drastically needed modernisation. There was 
growing demand for accommodation for overseas students which was currently not 
matched by growth in the provision of dedicated accommodation. There were 
challenges in meeting these accommodation commitments. This application 
presented a phased transformation of the current campus to address key points.  
There would be a variety of dwelling sizes and price points to allow affordable 
options. There would be ancillary facilities to make the campus self-sufficient. There 
would be 950 extra bedspaces, additional to the current offering. This was a modest 
increase which would allow for 2nd and 3rd year students to return to the site and 
lessen the use of mainstream housing stock. There would be additional tree planting 
and the retention of green spaces. This scheme would build on what was already a 
student campus and would be subject to effective management. There was a level of 
local concern and communications with the community had been addressed with 
officers to work together. 
 
Ward Councillor Ilyas addressed the Committee stating that he understood the need 
for student accommodation and that the number of HMOs and PBSA in the proximity 
of this proposal is an issue for community cohesion. Councillor Ilyas did not agree 
that it was HMOs and not PBSA that caused the main problems as the impacts can 
be caused by the people and organisations within the community. This proposed 
expansion in the heart of the community put it at breaking point and would 
exacerbate the need for HMOs. Councillor Ilyas supported PBSA but the policy 
needed to take account of the community. The scheme was not in line with MCC 
policy and was imbalanced. The council had already spent time and resources 
tackling anti-social behaviour, litter and other associated issues and he questioned 
the legitimacy of pouring more public money into this problem which could undo 
years of work. 
 
Ward Councillor Doswell addressed the Committee and stated that the regeneration 
of the site and the improvement of standards of student accommodation was 
welcomed. Councillor Doswell was in attendance to represent both residents and 
students and expressed that they should not pit one against the other. She felt that 
the application fell short of key information, most notably the number of bedspaces. 

Page 147

Item 10



The Planning Officers have stated that there will be a “reserved matters” application 
to follow for determination but the Committee need to know what they are voting on 
today. There needed to be an indication of the number of bedspaces in order for the 
Committee to be able to make a clear decision. Also, there was no mention of the 
capacity of staff dwellings on the site. This was less a question of who but more 
about how many and Councillor Doswell expressed concerns about costs and lower 
income students. Working class students felt priced out of accommodation in the city 
and it was noted that 20% of the rooms should be let at an affordable rate if agreed, 
with the NUS definition or 20% discount on the market rate. Regarding current 
issues, there were mid-week complaints about noise, litter and anti-social behaviour 
in this area. Students tend to live in PBSA for the first year and then find a cheaper 
HMO. Due to this practice, this proposal would be unsustainable in 5 years time. 
Private developers will build more PBSA and plans are lodged every week for the 
Fallowfield Ward. Councillor Doswell disagreed that this proposal met with 
Manchester City Council policy, adding that the application relating to Oakley Villa on 
Wilmslow Road for 425 bedspaces was considered contrary to the core strategy. The 
university should seek to develop better relationships with local residents and 
Councillor Doswell requested that the Committee reject this application to work 
towards a better development. 
 
The Planning Officer stated that there was a detailed report which covered all issues 
raised. The next stage of the application was reserved for future consideration with 
this application being before the Committee to set parameters to guide the following 
proposal with outline applications being wholly normal practice within the planning 
application process. With regard to reserved matters in a future application, it was 
noted that there would be 5,300 bedspaces, an extra 950 to what was currently 
possible on-site. The application complied with all policies and this was set out within 
the report. There was specific policy advice in the core strategy noting potential to 
intensify development at this campus. Regarding bat roosts, there would need to be 
a licence granted from Natural England and no work could progress until the licence 
was granted. In terms of the campus being a “student fortress,” the setting is the 
same as the site has never had a public right of way. The outer tree belt would be 
retained. There was a clear footprint whereby development can take place and that 
this will take place within 35% of the developable area. Also identified were height 
restrictions for certain zones. When the reserved matters application comes forward, 
the application will be fully tested again and brought to Committee. In the USDAW 
planning appeal, the inspector had stated that they felt this application was 
acceptable as a concept, their refusal was more concerning design, scale and mass. 
The inspector did not find that the increase in numbers was unacceptable, on the 
contrary, they stated that it would be an improvement to students living in HMOs. The 
last 10 years has seen a 29% drop in council tax exemption in South Manchester and 
a move towards the city centre and/or PBSA. In terms of affordability, the scheme 
was not subjected to other market pressures, plus there was not enough PBSA 
hence a higher cost. The matter had been discussed with the Neighbourhoods Team 
within the city council and it was noted that the larger impact of students was caused 
by them living in HMOs. 
 
The Chair invited the Committee to ask questions or make comments. 
 

Page 148

Item 10



Councillor Curley proposed a site visit to have a greater understanding of the 
proposal within its surroundings. 
 
Councillor Johnson seconded the proposal and stated that this application was 
similar to the previous Ardwick applications as there was a strong community voice. 
She requested information on the drop in council tax exemptions and whether there 
was any data available to show that students choose to move home. Councillor 
Jonson noted that there was clearly a need for more PBSA and asked if there could 
be a condition to address the issue of cohesion and integration between the two 
communities, residents and students. 
 
Councillor Gartside stated that she was aware and recognised the need for further 
PBSA in the city; an additional 950 bedspaces and asked if there was any available 
information on 2nd and 3rd year students dwelling choices, how many HMOs were 
being made available and whether this applied to 1st, 2nd and 3rd year students. 
 
The Planning Officer stated that the council’s Executive had set out that there was 
not enough PBSA, reporting that 10,000 rooms across the city had been set as the 
necessary amount, with the Planning and Highways Committee having approved 
3,500 so far. It was reported that 670 homes had been made available due to the 
expansion of PBSA in the city and that providing an alternative was the only way to 
keep this trend up. The Planning Officer stated that community engagement cannot 
be added as a Planning Condition but noted that the applicant/agent was in the 
meeting and would be able to take this away. If the Committee voted for a site visit, 
then more information could be brought back to a later meeting. 
 
Councillor S Ali agreed that there should be a site visit. 
 
Decision 
  
The Committee resolved to approve a motion for a site visit in order to fully 
understand the potential impact of the development on the local community. 
 
PH/23/90 136558/FO/2023 - 46 Henry Street, Manchester, M4 5DD -  
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Planning, Building Control 
and Licensing regarding an application for use of ground and first floor as a 
restaurant (Use Class E) together with elevational alterations and other associated 
external works. 
 
The application related to elevational alterations, including extending and 
creating a first floor to the building, in association with the creation of a restaurant. 
 
Six letters of objection had been received from two households. 
 
The Planning Officer had nothing to add to the printed report. 
 
The applicant’s agent addressed the Committee and stated that they had worked 
with conservation officers on the planning and design process. The building would 
have zinc cladding and the overall design would be a vast improvement. The 

Page 149

Item 10



application was originally to be dealt with under delegated powers, but public 
concerns led to revisions being made with no public access to the 1st floor and a 
serving hatch removed from the plans as a potential source of anti-social behaviour. 
The rooftop plant and odour extraction system would have no effect on neighbouring 
residencies. The Ancoats area and immediate surroundings were home to thriving 
bars and restaurants and this would be an addition with a maximum cover of 18 
diners. A smoking and CCTV policy had also been put in place. All available 
information was in the report and the agent expressed that he was looking forward to 
adding to the thriving food and drink economy in the Ancoats area. 
 
Councillor Andrews moved the officer’s recommendation of Approve for the 
application. 
 
Councillor Hughes seconded the proposal. 
 
Councillor Lovecy stated that this was a welcome application with community 
engagement and an improvement on the current setting. 
 
Decision 
 
The Committee resolved to approve the application subject to the conditions within 
the report. 
 
PH/23/91 137537/FO/2023 - Withington Community Hospital, Nell Lane, 

Manchester, M20 2LR - Didsbury West Ward  
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Planning, Building Control 
and Licensing regarding the erection of a two-storey building comprising a 
Community Diagnostics Centre (use class E(e)), with associated external 
landscaping, patient and delivery drop off area and 6 no. accessible parking spaces. 
 
The planning application was for the erection of a two-storey building comprising a 
Community Diagnostics Centre (use class E(e)), with associated external 
landscaping, patient and delivery drop off area and 6 no. accessible parking spaces 
at the site of Withington Community Hospital on Nell Lane in the Didsbury West 
Ward. 
 
The key issues with this application were: 

• The need and benefit of the new centre 

• The impact on the local environment 

• The impact on the local traffic and parking 
 

It was acknowledged there were concerns with the proposals, particularly around car 
parking and the potential impact on the local area; however, as set out in the report it 
was considered the proposal, which would provide a valuable new Health Care 
facility, must be carefully balanced with the overall public benefits holding significant 
weight. It was also recognised that this is a sustainable location near tram stops and 
bus routes, and other local facilities which provides significant opportunity to assist in 
modal shift from the private car whilst also having access to off-street car parking for 
those users where alternatives are not viable. 

Page 150

Item 10



 
Other matters raised by objectors were also fully addressed. 
 
The Planning Officer referred the Committee to an additional condition in the late 
representations report. 
 
The applicant’s agent from the NHS Foundation Trust addressed the Committee on 
the application and stated that there had been a £2.3bn investment from the 
government. This had identified Manchester and Trafford as key beneficiaries of the 
scheme. Withington Hospital was already recognised as a key medical hub for the 
South Manchester area. This centre was well placed to measure the impact of 
cardio-respiratory issues on local health. The principle of this development was 
considered acceptable. This medical centre was located in a residential area with the 
design maximising the functionality of the building. Solar panels, net zero targets, low 
carbon and sustainable transport methods would help to meet strategic policies in the 
city. There would be 10 cycle spaces and 6 EV charging points all part of the travel 
plan for the scheme. There was also an action plan to consider short, medium and 
long term travel developments. There had been engagement with stakeholders and 
Local Ward Councillors. To assist with any potential for a rise in on-street car 
parking, there had been a rise from 30 to 60 mins of free parking for users of the 
hospital. The development complies with the local and national framework and would 
be a benefit to the development of a healthy population. 
 
Ward Councillor Hilal addressed the Committee stating that she was in favour of the 
proposal, but had received complaints from residents about staff parking on 
residential streets. Councillor Hilal joined residents to observe this in the early hours 
of the morning and conducted research with staff members on why they were doing 
this. Staff of the hospital stated that they were being charged £3 per hour to park at 
the hospital and could not afford to do so. Charges for staff are based on wage. 
Councillor Hilal spoke to management at the hospital, asking if staff could have 3 
hours free parking as they were having a negative effect on local residents. The 
management rejected this proposal. Also, cancer patients of the hospital were not 
aware that they were entitled to free parking and it was questioned how the hospital 
could feed this information to these patients in a clear way to avoid more on-street 
parking. There had been an agreement in the report for all users of the hospital to 
have 60 minutes of free parking, which was an increase from the previous 30 
minutes. Also, the hospital was supportive of the use of their car park for residents 
between the hours of 8pm and 6am. Residents had previously rejected a parking 
scheme and Councillor Hilal and Jeff Smith MP had met with objectors to assist with 
an agreement between them and the hospital. It had been determined that the 
proposed unit will employ 30 additional staff and more patients were expected to visit 
and that would need consideration. 
 
The Chair invited the Director of Planning to make a comment to the hospital trust on 
the overnight parking arrangement. 
 
The Director of Planning stated that this was certainly an agreeable option and 
expressed her gratitude to all concerned and involved in the discussions. There was 
already a travel plan arranged for this application and the Director of Planning stated 
that she would write to the trust to set out terms for a potential overnight parking plan. 

Page 151

Item 10



 
The Planning Officer added that the applicant was committed to the travel plan and 
that this was flexible to incorporate future changes. 
 
Councillor Andrews was pleased to hear all the efforts and discussions that had 
taken place around this application and moved the officer’s recommendation of 
Approve for the application, subject to conditions and amendments. 
 
Councillor Gartside seconded the proposal. 
 
Decision 
 
The Committee resolved to approve the application, subject to conditions and 
amendments within the reports. 
 
 
PH/23/92 138127/OO/2023 - Express Solicitors, 313-315 and 317-319 Palatine 

Road, Manchester, M22 4HH - Northenden Ward  
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Planning, Building Control 
and Licensing regarding an outline planning application (with matters of access, 
layout and scale for approval) for demolition of existing buildings and redevelopment 
of site for up to 34 apartments and 3 townhouses (Use Class C3). 
 
The planning application had been submitted in outline for the redevelopment of the 
site following demolition of all buildings and erection of a 5 storey building to 
comprise 34 apartments located along the Palatine Road frontage of the site, 
together with 3 no. town houses to be located along the Allanson Road frontage. 
The application had been submitted in outline with matters relating to access, layout 
and scale being submitted in detail, with matters relating to the appearance and 
landscaping being reserved for future reserved matters applications. 
 
The key issues with this application were: 

• The scale of the building and its impact on the character and visual amenity of 
the area 

• Potential impacts on the residential amenity of residential properties in the 
area 

• The provision of affordable housing on the site 

• The impact on the local traffic and parking 

• The flood risk associated with the site 
 
It was acknowledged there were concerns with the proposals, particularly around car 
parking and the potential impact on the local area; however, as set out in the report it 
was considered that the proposal would provide residential properties on brownfield 
land in a sustainable location with a policy compliant proportion of these being for 
affordable housing. 
 
This application appears on the meeting agenda with another application submitted 
by the applicant for the redevelopment of another of their office sites located in 

Page 152

Item 10



Northenden for residential development in close proximity to this application proposal 
that application is reference number 138128/OO/2023. 
 
Other matters raised by objectors are also addressed. 
 
The Planning Officer had nothing to add to the printed report. 
 
The applicant attended and addressed the Committee on the application, stating that 
this solicitor’s firm had started out with 1 member of staff and grown to employ 
numerous staff, as exampled by the use of building before the Committee today. The 
company had required further expansion and acquired a new site on the Sharston 
Estate. This had led the company into re-purposing the building as “accidental 
developers.” The 1950s era building had been investigated for its potential to be 
converted into housing stock and it was considered not viable. The two items before 
the Committee today (items 10 Express Solicitors & 11 Transformulas House) were 
part of the same development and would be a useful site for housing and some 
affordable homes. In terms of parking, there were 40 spaces currently but this 
renovation would lead to less traffic and less parking due to the amount of staff being 
moved off-site. The townhouse each have a garage as part of the plot and the 
apartments had a 70% parking provision which had satisfied the Highways Officer.  
 
Ward Councillor Moran addressed the Committee stating that she thanked the agent 
and welcomed new houses to the area. Parking was a concern in this Ward but the 
other Local Ward Councillors were not opposed to housing on this site as more 
housing was required. New houses would need to deliver for residents in a 
sustainable way. The main concern was that the houses were terraced with no 
driveways and this may cause parking problems due to the 24 parking spaces 
available for the whole development as some households will have 2 cars. Another 
concern was the loss of retail units on the high street. Northenden had been 
improving with new restaurants and cafes in recent years which residents were in 
favour of. Further to this was the lack of any green space or enhancement of existing 
green spaces for these future occupants. The environmental effects of the demolition 
with no option to retro fit was another concern. Councillor Moran asked the 
Committee to please consider these concerns when making their decision. 
Regarding the most contentious element being car parking, she asked if officers 
would work with the developer to mitigate any impacts on the community. 
 
The Director of Planning stated that this was a very balanced report. All affordable 
housing is a bonus but the Planning Team were aware that parking is a big issue. 
The team would be working on the Section 106 agreement so further car parking 
arrangements could be discussed at that point. 
 
The Planning Officer stated that this was an outline application with a reserved 
matters application to follow in future, going into more detail therefore landscaping 
could be given further inspection. There is a travel plan in place with 100% cycle 
parking in the district centre and less car parking required, as suggested by the 
applicant due to the residents being in smaller numbers than the previous staff of the 
unit. Currently there was no retail unit operational on the site and the current unit 
didn’t lend itself well to this. These residential homes would also support the district 
centre. 

Page 153

Item 10



 
The Chair invited the Committee to ask questions or make comments. 
 
Councillor Andrews enquired on what an “informative” was with regard to the report. 
 
The Planning Officer stated that it was not a condition of the planning permission, but 
concerning issues the developer had to be aware of that cannot be dealt with via 
planning process. 
 
Councillor Andrews then moved the officer’s recommendation of Approve for the 
application with an understanding that there would be conversations between the 
planning team and the developer to address issues raised by the Ward Councillor 
before the reserved matters application was placed before the Committee. 
 
Councillor Hughes seconded the proposal. 
 
Decision 
 
The Committee resolved to be minded to approve the application subject to 
conditions within the report, subject to the completion of a section 106 agreement 
relating to on-site provision of 20% affordable housing. 
 
PH/23/93 138128/OO/2023 - Transformulas House, 1A Brett Street, 

Manchester, M22 4EY - Northenden Ward  
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Planning, Building Control 
and Licensing regarding outline planning permission (with matters of access, layout 
and scale for approval) for demolition of all existing buildings and redevelopment of 
site for 2 townhouses (Use Class C3). 
 
The planning application had been submitted in outline for the redevelopment of the 
site following demolition of all buildings and erection of 2 no three storey townhouses. 
The application had been submitted in outline with matters relating to access, layout 
and scale being submitted in detail, with matters relating to the appearance and 
landscaping being reserved for future reserved matters applications. 
 
The key issues with this application were: 

• The scale of the building and its impact on the character and visual amenity of 
the area 

• Potential impacts on the residential amenity of residential properties in the 
area 

• The impact on the local traffic and parking 

• The flood risk associated with the site 
 
This application appeared on the meeting agenda with another application submitted 
by the applicant for the redevelopment of another of their office sites located in 
Northenden for residential development in close proximity to this application proposal 
at 313 – 319 Palatine Road. The application number is 138127/OO/2023. 
 
The Planning Officer had nothing to add to the printed report. 

Page 154

Item 10



 
The applicant did not add anything by way of a statement to the Committee. 
 
The Chair invited the Committee to ask questions or make comments. 
 
Councillor Andrews moved the officer’s recommendation of Approve for the 
application. 
 
Councillor Hughes seconded the proposal. 
 
Decision 
 
The Committee resolved to approve the application subject to conditions within the 
report. 
 
PH/23/94 137172/FH/2023 - 126 Chichester Road Manchester M15 5DZ 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Planning, Building Control 
and Licensing regarding the erection of a single storey rear extension to provide 
additional living accommodation. 
 
This application was considered by a meeting of the Planning and Highways 
Committee on the 16 November 2023 where Members resolved to defer 
consideration in order for additional images of the extension to be included within the 
report. This would also provide some understanding of the course of events leading 
to the extension being partly erected providing visual context. These images had now 
been included in the main body of the report. Concern was also expressed by 
Members that this application is retrospective. It is the case that a retrospective 
application is fully assessed in the same way as any other application and the 
extension, the subject of this application, had been fully considered on its individual 
merits. 
 
The Planning Officer stated that visual aspects had now been provided to the 
Committee in the report. 
 
Councillor Andrews moved the officer’s recommendation of Approve for the 
application. 
 
Councillor Curley seconded the proposal. 
 
Councillor Lovecy stated that the Committee had requested that some builds be 
taken down retroactively and asked if this application met planning policies. 
 
The Director of Planning confirmed that this application did meet the city council’s 
planning policies. 
 
Decision 
 
The Committee resolved to approve the application subject to conditions within the 
report. 

Page 155

Item 10



 
PH/23/95 138378/FH/2023 - 54 Ardern Road, Manchester, M8 4NW - 

Crumpsall Ward  
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Planning, Building Control 
and Licensing regarding the erection of part single, part two storey side and rear 
extension to form additional living accommodation. 
 
The application sought planning permission for the erection of part single, part two 
storey side and rear extension to form additional living accommodation. 
 
During the course of the application, it came to light the applicant works for 
Manchester City Council and for that reason it was necessary for the application to 
be presented to Committee for consideration. One representation from a neighbour 
had been received raising concern about the proposal in relation to loss of light. 
 
Key issues related to the proposal’s impact upon neighbouring occupiers with regard 
to loss of light and the visual appearance as well as the impact on the character of 
the area in general. These issues were fully considered within the main body of the 
report. 
 
The Planning Officer had nothing to add to the printed report. 
 
The Chair invited the Committee to ask questions or make comments. 
 
Councillor Andrews moved the officer’s recommendation of Approve for the 
application. 
 
Councillor Hughes seconded the proposal. 
 
Decision 
 
The Committee resolved to approve the application subject to conditions within the 
report. 
 

Page 156

Item 10



Planning and Highways Committee   
 
Minutes of the meeting held on 18 January 2024 
 
Present: Councillor Lyons - In the Chair 
 
Councillors: S. Ali, Andrews, Chohan, Curley, Davies, Gartside, Hassan, Hewitson, 
Hughes, Kamal, Lovecy, Riasat 
 
Also present: Councillors Abdullatif, Muse, Bayunu, Igbon, Doswell and Ilyas 
 
PH/24/01 Supplementary Information on Applications Being Considered 
 
A copy of the late representations received had been circulated in advance of the 
meeting regarding applications 137399/FO/2023, 137401/FO/2023, 130387/FO/2021 
and 138302/FO/2023. 
 
Decision 
  
To receive and note the late representations. 
 
PH/24/02  Minutes 
 
Decision 
  
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 14 December 2023 as a correct 
record. 
 
PH/24/03  137399/FO/2023 - Land bounded by Upper Brook Street, 

Cottenham Street and Kincardine Road, Manchester, M13 9TD - 
Ardwick Ward & 137401/FO/2023 - Land between Upper Brook 
Street, Kincardine Road and Grosvenor Street Manchester - 
Ardwick Ward  

 
The Committee considered the reports of the Director of Planning, Building Control 
and Licensing regarding: 
 
137399/FO/2023 - the erection of a 6 to 9 storey building for Sci-Tech use (Use 
Class E (g)(ii)) and 265sqm of a cafe/bar (Use Class E (b)), and a 9 to 23 storey 
building for Purpose Built Student Accommodation (PBSA) (Use Sui Generis), 
comprising 737 bedrooms and 293sqm of community use (Use Class F2 (b)) and 
80sqm of commercial floorspace (Use Class E), alongside new public realm, access, 
parking, and associated works following demolition of existing buildings. 
 
Consideration of this application was deferred by the Planning and Highways 
Committee on 14 December 2023 to enable a site visit to take place. 
 
The Government published, an updated National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
on 19 December 2023. The assessment of the issues and matters arising from the 
application set out in the report remained valid as a result of the publication of the 

Page 157

Item 10Appendix 1,



updated NPPF and the recommendation set out at the end of the report remained 
unchanged as a result. 
 
114 objections (form 78 households) had been received. Councillors Muse and 
Abdullatif object. 
 
And: 
 
137401/FO/2023 - Full planning application for the demolition of existing buildings 
and erection of three 12/14/29 storey buildings to be used for Purpose Built Student 
Accommodation (Use Sui Generis), comprising 983 bedrooms in total and 506sqm of 
ground floor ancillary uses (café/commercial and convenience store - Use Classes E 
(a)/(b)/(c)), three buildings comprising 5/7/9 storeys for Science and Innovation uses 
(Use Class E (g)(i) & (ii)) and 834sqm ground floor community uses (retail/ cafés and 
medical facility (Use Classes E (a)/(b) and (e)), and the provision of new public 
realm, two new public squares, new access and parking, and associated works. 
 
Consideration of this application was deferred by the Planning and Highways 
Committee on 14 December 2023 to enable a site visit to take place. 
 
The Government published, an updated National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
on 19 December 2023.  The assessment of the issues and matters arising from the 
application  set out in the report remained valid as a result of the publication of the 
updated NPPF and the recommendation set out at the end of the report remained 
unchanged as a result. 
 
Manchester Metropolitan University supported the proposal. 
 
113 (from 76 households) objections were received during the first round of 
notification, 97 (from 77 households) had been received. Councillors Muse and 
Abdullatif object. 
 
Officers noted that a letter of support had been received from the Growth Company 
that felt the application presented an opportunity for an exciting platform which would 
benefit the area for many years. Committee members had been on a site visit on the 
day of the meeting which focused on the tallest element of the application, at 29-
storeys near Grosvenor Street, and its impact on nearby accommodation on 
Hamsworth Close. On the visit, members stopped opposite Elizabeth Yarwood to see 
another taller element on Upper Brook Street with the lower element closer to 
Kincardine Court. Members noted the proximity to homes on the opposite side to 
Kincardine Court. The visit stopped at Gartside gardens, noting the proximity of 
buildings to road frontages and therefore the community. Members asked questions 
during the visit that were answered by Officers. 
 
The Planning Officer noted that the Council’s main priority was to deliver commercial 
space, and the application offered 650,000 square feet. Life sciences are one of the 
key growth sectors and the opportunity to commercialise that was only available in a 
small area, mainly around the University. To deliver that space, the application 
needed to provide an enabling use, which for this was PBSA, which was desperately 
needed in Manchester. The size of the scheme had reduced considerably. Originally 

Page 158

Item 10Appendix 1,



the application was for a 42-storey building but was now 29 storey following work by 
officers. The application had been independently tested and that was satisfied the 
application was not excessive and was the amount required to deliver the 
commercial floor space.  
 
Two objectors addressed the Committee. The first objector raised concerns that the 
development would be towering, removing day light for nearby residential property. 
The objectors felt this was a residential area for families and that they had been told 
the area would be a thriving community, not a Life Science campus. It was felt that 
students would not move out of HMO’s as PBSA was too expensive.  
 
The second objector had similar concerns regarding the size of the application and 
the negative impact on residents. They felt the application would overshadow the 
nearby park and residential properties. They had concerns regarding a possible 
increase in pollution. The resident felt there was not enough sunlight in the area, and 
this would remove it even further. The resident felt Councillors had a lead role in 
looking after residential communities and requested that the application was refused. 
 
Two applicants addressed the Committee for each application. The first stated that 
the applicant was investing £730 million into the area having consulted extensively 
and listened to the Community. The scheme had been amended to the minimum 
required to deliver the Life Sciences space. Nearby car parks have low occupancy 
levels that can be used if necessary. They noted that the local community had 
requested certain amenities, such as a GP surgery, which was included in the 
application. 
 
The second agent noted that the applications would deliver PBSA and a leading Life 
Science building. Whilst this was the only suitable location, this was also the correct 
location. The applicant wanted to play an active role in the community. The scheme 
was to provide 500 Life Science jobs once completed, with 800 during the delivery of 
the project.  
 
A ward Councillor addressed the Committee stating that this was an area of family 
homes and a tight knit community. They felt the application did not match that. The 
Councillor felt that the area did not need the amount of students proposed in the 
application. They did not believe the application would enhance any part of resident’s 
lives.  They felt the application would increase traffic and commuters in an already 
busy area. The application would overshadow homes, as well as green spaces. 
 
A second ward Councillor addressed the Committee, hoping that the site visit had 
provided members with a clearer idea of their objections. They noted that it had been 
the 10 years anniversary of the Brunswick redevelopment, and that this application 
would have a detrimental impact on that redevelopment. They had raised consistent 
objections, noting a lack of parking for 5,000 people, the height of the building, and 
loss of light and overshadowing. They felt that there was already PBSA around, with 
more already approved so questioned the need for this scheme. They raised issues 
relating to the viability of this scheme. The ward Councillor felt the development was 
not suitable for the area.  
 

Page 159

Item 10Appendix 1,



The Planning Officer stated that 2 comprehensive reports addressed the issues 
raised. It had never been suggested that there would not be a substantial impact on 
the area. All impacts had to be properly tested, with all impacts set out in the reports. 
The application had been fully considered and that formed the basis of Officer’s 
recommendation.  
 
The Planning Officer noted there had been comments regarding PBSA and what it 
achieves, with suggestions that it did not lead to students moving out of mainstream 
accommodation and HMO’s. They noted that in South Manchester, Council tax 
exemptions had dropped by 31%, meaning 670 homes had been taken out of student 
use.  In the City Centre, council tax exemptions had flatlined but the number of 
students living in the centre had increased by 4,000, highlighting that most of those 
students were living in PBSA. In Ardwick, in the previous 10 years there had been 
2,000 more students living in the area but only 200 PBSA spaces built so students 
were living in mainstream accommodation or HMO’s. Without PBSA, those numbers 
would continue to rise.  
 
In terms of Public Realm, there were 3 significant areas proposed as part of scheme, 
with 3 generous routes linking Brunswick and Upper Brook Street through the site 
that were landscaped with seating throughout.  
 
The Planning Officer stated that there was no parking with scheme, but it is Council 
policy to reduce car journeys and increase public transport use. To provide parking 
as part of the scheme would not encourage that. They did also note that there were 3 
car parks within a 10-minute walk of site that operated well below occupancy levels.  
 
The Planning Officer stated that the impact of overshadowing was set out in both 
reports and had not been ignored. They were not suggesting that there would be no 
impact, but assessments had shown that the impact would not be significant. 
 
Following persistent interruption from the public gallery, at this stage the Chair 
requested that the meeting being adjourned whilst the public gallery was cleared. 
The Committee restarted in the Antechamber. 
 
The Planning Officer continued that in terms of viability, this was a large and complex 
scheme, that in total was over 2 hectares. As the proposal was not just Life Sciences, 
it had to be tested how much of enabling development was necessary to deliver the 
scheme. An Independent Party had assessed the proposal and agreed that the level 
of PBSA was required to deliver the 650,000 square feet of commercial space. 
 
In terms of rights of light, the Planning Officer stated that was a private matter and 
could not be assessed in the Planning process. During that process, the impact on 
day light, sun light and overshadowing are all assessed and that was set out in the 
report. 
 
The Chair moved on to taking questions from members, grouping questions together. 
A member questioned if the scheme could not be built or maintained without the 
subsidy of the PBSA, and if so, why that was the case. A member also queried if 
there was any provision for highway adaptations within the applications due to the 
increased population they would bring. A member then questioned how the 

Page 160

Item 10Appendix 1,



developer would have an active role in the community, as had been suggested. They 
did not see how residents wants were being met by the applications. 
 
The Planning Officer noted that the viability assessment had shown the requirement 
for a subsidy, but that subsidy was from the developer and not students. In terms of 
Upper Brook Street, thousands of students cross over there every day to get to the 
University as a third of Ardwick population are already students. One of the public 
crossings was to be enhanced as part of the application but if there were safety 
issues, the highways authority would already have been aware. The Planning Officer 
felt it important to remember that students were also residents and part of the 
communities that they live in. The proposal included retail units to benefit the 
Community, with the developer having attempted to get a Lidl supermarket but Lidl 
were not interested at the time. There was to be a community centre, and medical 
centre along with 3 major pieces of public realm with 3 wide, landscaped routes.  
 
A member queried to what extent a different model was feasible where a subsidy 
would not be needed. A member questioned how it would be made sure that the local 
retail would be for local residents rather than takeaway outlets aimed at students.  
 
Councillor S. Ali moved the Officer’s recommendation for both applications. 
 
The Planning Officer was invited to respond to the member queries prior to the 
moving of Officer recommendations. The Planning Officer reminded the Committee 
that they had to make decisions on planning policies. This site was seen as complex, 
with the application across 2 hectares which was larger than usual applications. The 
only viable way to deliver the proposal was using enabling development of PBSA of 
this scale. The data showed where students want to live, which was close to the 
Universities. The evidence showed that when PBSA is available, students move out 
of family homes and HMOs into the PBSA. The Planning Officer accepted that 
students were a transient population, but they wanted to free up homes to be 
occupied by permanent residents. The developer had engaged with the community to 
establish what types of retail units they wanted in the space created by the 
application. Whilst it could not be confirmed the type of retail that would be there, the 
Planning Officer felt that the developer wanted retail to serve the residents. 
 
A member continued to query why the scheme was not profitable and did not 
understand the need for a subsidy. A member then questioned how deliveries to the 
PBSA would be managed. A member also noted that a recent report stated that 
students from Manchester were travelling to other cities for university. 
 
The Director of Planning noted that students were staying outside Manchester due to 
not being able to get any accommodation. They reminded the Committee that they 
had to form a decision based on current planning policy. 
 
The Planning Officer repeated that in relation to the need for a subsidy, that was 
what the viability assessment had shown. Strategies were also proposed within the 
report for dealing with moving in and out, and managing deliveries, with conditions 
proposed to support that. 
 

Page 161

Item 10Appendix 1,



As Councillor S. Ali had moved the Officer’s recommendation for both applications 
earlier, at this point, Councillor Andrews seconded the proposal.  
 
Decision 
  
The Committee resolved to be Minded to Approve both applications subject to the 
signing of a section 106 agreement to secure the provision of affordable rented 
accommodation, a mechanism to secure the delivery of the employment building, 
that private waste collections would take place for the perpetuity of the development 
and secure the project architect. 
 
PH/24/04 138126/OO/2023 - University of Manchester Fallowfield Campus 

Wilmslow Road, Manchester M14 6HD - Fallowfield Ward  
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Planning, Building Control 
and Licensing regarding an outline planning application (with access only in detail) 
for the phased demolition of existing buildings and phased development of up to 
3,300 Purpose Built Student Accommodation bedrooms (Sui Generis use class) 
with associated facilities including waste storage, laundry and cycle storage; up to 
4,500 sq m of floorspace to be used for ancillary purposes associated with the 
student residential use of the site within Use Class F1a, Class E(a), E(b), E(c), E(d), 
E(g), Sui Generis (drinking establishment and hot food takeaway); ancillary 
supporting staff accommodation (up to 55 bedrooms) (Sui Generis use class), and up 
to 1,200 sq m of ancillary residential dwellings (Use Class C3), plus associated car 
parking, hard and soft landscaping, open space, utilities, footpaths and roads. 
 
The application related to the redevelopment of part of the University of Manchester 
student halls of residence at its Fallowfield Campus within the Fallowfield ward. 
Planning permission had previously been granted for its demolition and 
redevelopment as part of a wider scheme to provide additional bedspaces at the 
Campus. The application sought to update the University’s proposals to modernise 
the campus and provide further additional capacity at the site to address the need 
within the City for further purpose-built student accommodation (PBSA). 
 
The Government published, an updated National Planning Policy Framework NPPF) 
on 19 December 2023.  The assessment of the issues and matters arising from the 
application set out in the report remained valid as a result of the publication of the 
updated NPPF and the recommendation set out at the end of the report remained 
unchanged as a result. 
 
The Planning Officer had nothing to add to the report. 
 
An objector noted that they had lived in the area for 24 years. They felt Fallowfield to 
be struggling with the number of people there. There were already issues with litter. 
The University of Manchester only guaranteed PBSA for students in their first year. 
The objector did not believe that this application would free up family homes and felt 
there was no evidence to support that it would. The felt the application was an 
overdevelopment of the site. They had concerns about carbon emissions and the 
effect of those on children, the elderly and the most vulnerable.  
 

Page 162

Item 10Appendix 1,



The agent, noted that this was an outline application with strict limits contained within 
that, such as having declared the maximum number of beds, the maximum height of 
the scheme and the areas that must be free from development and the points of 
access that were fixed in the application. The agent felt that the outline application 
allowed for Officers to make a full assessment of the scheme. The agent noted that it 
was desirable to increase the student population of Manchester but to do that, extra 
PBSA was required. Prices were to be purposely set at a competitive rate, typically 
30% cheaper than what was available elsewhere. The agent noted that PBSA was 
necessary to move students out of residential homes and HMOs, as supported by the 
evidence. Fallowfield remained a popular location for students. The scheme had 
been designed to be zero carbon emissions in operation and achieve a net-gain of 
20% in biodiversity, which was a university standard. The university had been 
involved in extensive engagement with the neighbourhood team in Fallowfield to put 
long-term support into the area.  
 
A ward Councillor accepted that issues would be easier to manage whilst students 
were in PBSA. They accepted that the area was marketed for students to move into 
but did not believe the application would free up HMOs and family homes. The ward 
Councillor noted that a previous application in the area was refused on appeal due to 
that application bringing an extra 425 students to the area and the impact that would 
have. They noted the application being considered by members was for over 3,000 
bedrooms. They felt that it was long-term residents who would be impacted most by 
the application.  
 
A second ward Councillor addressed the Committee, stating their belief that this was 
an overdevelopment. They wanted residents to be considered and did not believe 
they had been as part of this. They felt the application had not considered whether 
the site was suitable for PBSA. The ward Councillor did not believe that PBSA would 
free up family homes and HMOs. 
 
The Planning Officer noted that the report before members addressed the issues that 
had been raised. They stated that there were clear parameters to approve the 
scheme contained within the report. The Planning Officer was aware of the need to 
provide family homes in Fallowfield and stated that without PBSA, students would 
continue to take up those family homes. The university had agreed a programme of 
work with the neighbourhood team in Fallowfield for the short and long term.  
 
A member queried if the Planning Officer had details on the number of students who 
had moved out of HMO’s. A member asked what percentage of the rooms in the 
application would be for second- and third-year students.  
 
The Planning Officer stated that the council tax exemptions data from their housing 
colleagues provided the data regarding students moving into PBSA and away from 
HMO’s. They noted that approving the outline application did not constrain the 
Committee but set a limit on what can be proposed in subsequent applications, such 
as the number of bedrooms and height of the building.  
 
A member queried what the drawback was for students not in their first year. Another 
member asked that the developer works closely with the neighbourhood teams to 
improve their offer to the community.  

Page 163

Item 10Appendix 1,



 
The Planning Officer noted that they could not control through the Planning process 
whether second- and third-year students live in the building. They had discussed the 
possibility of reserving places for those students with the university. The Planning 
Officer stated that discussions were already underway between the developer and 
neighbourhood teams.  
 
Councillor Andrews moved the Officer’s recommendation to Approve.  
 
Councillor Davies seconded the proposal.  
 
Decision 
  
The Committee resolved to Approve the application.  
 
PH/24/05 130387/FO/2021 - 130387/FO/2021 - The Former Gamecock Public 

House Boundary Lane Manchester M15 6GE 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Planning, Building Control 
and Licensing regarding the erection of a part 7, part 9 storey purpose-built student 
accommodation building comprising 146 bed spaces (Sui Generis use class) with 
ancillary amenity space, a ground floor community hub (proposed for Use Classes 
F2(b), E(b), E (3), E(f)) and associated landscape works and infrastructure. 
 
A scheme was reported to Planning and Highways Committee on the 16 November 
2023 for a part 7, part 9 storey PBSA building providing 146 bed spaces. The 
Committee were ‘minded to refuse’ on the basis that PBSA of that size would have 
been contrary to maintaining a sustainable mixed residential neighbourhood and 
would lead to an imbalance of students living in the area. The planning policy context 
for this proposal was set out clearly in the section of the report with the subheading 
‘Policies’. That part of the report addresses all the policies that were relevant to the 
determination of the application. As had been set out in previous reports, officers did 
not consider that there was a policy-based reason to refuse this proposal. 
 
There were 22 objections to the latest scheme, one expression of support and two 
neutral comments. 
 
The Planning Officer stated that a letter of objection had been received from the 
Guinness Partnership on behalf of Cooper House residents, drawing particular 
attention to issues associated with the parking spaces for disabled people on 
Camelford Close, land they believe was not a public highway. The Council is a 
freeholder of the land on Camelford Close, providing a lease to the Guinness Trust 
but applicant would have a legal right to access the parking spaces. The Planning 
Officer noted that 31 objections from when the item was last before the Committee 
had been missed off this most recent report.  
 
An objector stated that the development would have a profound impact on daylight 
and be overbearing on Cooper House. They felt there would be insufficient parking 
and loading, that would lead to further traffic congestion. They believed the 

Page 164

Item 10Appendix 1,



application to be a far denser development than others in the area. They felt the 
development threatened residents’ quality of life.  
 
A second objector noted that they had been consistent in stating that this 
development was inappropriate for the area. The proposed development would 
overlook children’s bedrooms. They felt the offer of a Community Hub from the 
developer to be insulting and asked the Committee to refuse the application.  
 
The applicant’s agent addressed the Committee, stating that this would be a high 
quality, sustainable development. They felt there was a pressing need for PBSA in 
Manchester and that this site was currently a blight on the local area. The proposed 
site was 500 metres from the University of Manchester and 200 metres from 
Manchester Metropolitan University. The proposed PBSA would offer a varity of 
accommodation, in-line with the offer of a typical PBSA and will provide disabled 
parking and a Community Hub. The proposal was in-line with other buildings in the 
area with the reduced scale and mass.  
 
A ward Councillor addressed the Committee, stating that this was the time to finally 
refuse the application. They felt the proposal did nothing to address their concerns 
and had provided no evidence of the need for PBSA on this site. They felt the 
application would bring disruption to a settled residential area, failing to consider the 
health and wellbeing of residents. They felt that the trees proposed to be planted 
would not have sufficient light. The Councillor felt that the rooms offered were below 
the required standard. 
 
A second ward Councillor addressed the Committee, stating that nothing had 
changed. They had objected on every occasion the application had been before the 
Committee. The application was in a residential area and students already living in 
the area had had a negative impact.  
 
The Planning Officer noted that the applicant had amended the application on three 
occasions. The Planning Officer could find no policy-based reason to refuse the 
application based on the reason the Committee had been previously minded to 
refuse, on the basis that PBSA of this size would be contrary to maintaining a 
sustainable mixed residential neighbourhood and would lead to an imbalance of 
students living in the area. 
 
A member stated that they thought a different reason for minded to refuse had been 
given at the previous meeting, relating to the size of the scheme. They felt the 
application did not fit with the Oxford Road Regeneration Scheme. They wanted to 
propose refusal based on the size of the scheme and policy H12. 
 
The Director of Planning informed members that there was clear protocol relating to 
minded to refuse. When members are minded to refuse, Planning officers take that 
away to try to find a reason for refusal. Previously, the applicant had amended the 
scheme based on the reasons that members had been minded to refuse. At the 
previous meeting the reason for minded to refuse was that PBSA of this size would 
be contrary to maintaining a sustainable mixed residential neighbourhood and would 
lead to an imbalance of students living in the area, and not the height of the scheme. 

Page 165

Item 10Appendix 1,



If members wanted to change the reason, then they would have to be minded to 
refuse again rather than being able to propose refusal.  
 
A member then stated that they would second the proposal if amended to minded to 
refuse on the basis of Policy H12.  
 
A member then stated their belief that it would be disingenuous to be minded to 
refuse again, feeling that a decision was necessary. They queried how the vote 
would work.  
 
The Director of Planning and the City Solicitor’s representative informed the 
committee that if a motion is defeated, then another motion would need to be 
proposed for a decision. The same motion could not be moved twice. 
 
Councillor Lovecy moved minded to refuse on the basis of Policy H12. Councillor 
Curley seconded the proposal. The proposal was defeated, with three members in 
favour, nine against and two abstentions. 
 
Councillor S. Ali moved the Officer’s recommendation. 
 
Councillor Chohan seconded the proposal. 
 
Decision 
 
The Committee resolved to be Minded to Approve subject to a legal agreement 
containing affordable rent obligations for up to 20% of all bed spaces being 
advertised as being below market rent level in each academic year. 
 
PH/24/06 138302/FO/2023 - 1 Park Place Manchester M4 4EZ 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Planning, Building Control 
and Licensing regarding the erection of a part 25 and part 15 storey residential 
building comprising 154 apartments (Use Class C3a) with ground floor commercial 
uses (Use Class E), together with associated residents amenity space, cycle parking, 
substation, servicing, and associated landscaping works following demolition of 
existing buildings. 
 
The proposal would create 154 homes, of which up to 20% would be affordable 
(shared ownership), with commercial space in a part 15, part 25 storey building. 
There would be public realm, parking for disabled residents and a loading bay. 
 
Six objections had been received. 
 
The Planning Officer report incorrectly stated that the affordable housing as part of 
the application was to be shared ownership, but it would be discounted market sales 
at 80% of market rates. 
 
The applicant attended and addressed the Committee, noting that they had been a 
Manchester resident for a long time and had made a high-quality application 

Page 166

Item 10Appendix 1,



containing 20% affordable housing. The application provided commercial space 
whilst also aligning with the zero carbon aims of the city.  
 
Councillor Riasat noted that the report was detailed and was happy to move the 
Officer’s recommendation. 
 
A member had concerns regarding the design of the application, with white buildings 
often becoming stained. 
 
The Planning Officer stated that there were lots of white buildings that were not 
stained. When designed correctly, white buildings will remain white. The application 
had employed an experienced architect. 
 
Councillor S. Ali seconded the proposal of Councillor Riasat to move the Officer’s 
recommendation. 
 
Decision 
 
The Committee resolved to be Minded to Approve subject to the signing of a legal 
agreement to secure 20% affordable housing and to secure the use of the project 
architect. 
 
PH/24/07 137657/FO/2023 - 27-29 Middleton Road Manchester M8 5DT 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Planning, Building Control 
and Licensing regarding the erection of two storey building (with basement) to form 
synagogue (Class F.1) following demolition of existing building, together with 
associated parking and landscaping. 
 
The application related to a pair of semi-detached dwellinghouses which had been 
subdivided into flats. Consent is sought for the erection of a two-storey building (with 
basement) to form a synagogue (Class F.1) following demolition of existing building, 
together with associated parking and landscaping. The application site is located 
within the Crumpsall Lane Conservation Area. 
 
7 objections and 103 emails of support had been received. 
 
The Planning Officer stated that if members were to agree the recommendation of 
Officers, they would ask for one additional condition regarding another bat survey 
taking place before demolition of the building. 
 
An objector attended and addressed the Committee, noting the proposal to demolish 
two houses and replace with a religious centre. The houses are part of a 
conservation area and were part of the reason why there is a conservation area in 
the first place. The objector could not see the justification for demolishing the 
properties. They raised concerns regarding traffic, noting the site is between two sets 
of traffic lights with congestion issues already apparent. They felt the application 
would make the congestion issues worse.  
 

Page 167

Item 10Appendix 1,



The applicant attended and addressed the Committee, accepting that it was a 
conservation area. The application had been in process for two years to ensure that 
the design addressed the needs of the area. They noted that they would not be able 
to keep the building as it was, and that the application brought less than substantial 
harm. Issues relating to traffic and parking had been addressed in the report, noting 
that the building was for an Orthodox religious community who were prohibited from 
driving on the days they visited the centre.  
 
The Planning Officer accepted that it was regrettable to lose a building in a 
conservation area but it has been fully explored with the applicant whether it was 
possible to reuse the existing building or retain the frontage but it was accepted that 
the proposed scheme was an appropriate design and that there would be less than 
substantial harm with the public benefits outweighing any limited harm.  The Planning 
Officer was satisfied that users of the centre would walk and not drive. 
 
A member queried if the building was still in use as housing.  
 
The Planning Officer stated that the building was in use as apartments, owned by the 
applicant. There was a condition that the applicant would assist those living in the 
apartments with relocation. 
 
A member questioned if there would be a pressure on timing relating to that 
relocation. 
 
The Planning Officer stated that the condition would include time scales to relocate 
existing tenants. 
 
Councillor Riasat moved the Officer’s recommendation. 
 
Councillor S. Ali seconded the proposal. 
 
Decision 
 
The Committee resolved to be Minded to Approve (subject to statutory notices 
lapsing and no new issues being raised). 
 
PH/24/08 138294/FO/2023 - Land At Plymouth Grove Manchester 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Planning, Building Control 
and Licensing regarding the erection of a part six storey, part eight storey building for 
use as purpose-built student accommodation (PBSA) (Sui Generis) comprising 263 
bed spaces, with associated amenity space, cycle parking, external landscaping, 
access, and other associated works. 
 
6 objections had been received. 
 
The Planning Officer recommended a further condition should the Committee be 
Minded to Approve, to agree details of boundary treatment. 
 

Page 168

Item 10Appendix 1,



The applicant’s agent addressed the Committee, stating that there had been 
extensive engagement regarding the application from the outset. The application 
would reuse a vacant brownfield site. The agent stated that there was a clear need 
for additional student accommodation in Manchester. The agent stated that the 
application met Policy H12. The application would provide economic and 
regeneration benefits, bringing construction jobs that would be targeted at 
Manchester residents. They noted there had been no objections from statutory 
consultees. 
 
Councillor Hewitson proposed a site visit, noting that the proposed site was facing a 
children’s nursery and would overshadow nearby buildings. 
 
Councillor Curley seconded the proposal. 
 
Decision 
 
The Committee resolved to approve the motion for a site visit in order to investigate 
the potential impact of overshadowing on nearby buildings and the impact on the 
nearby children’s nursery. 
 

Page 169

Item 10Appendix 1,



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Manchester City Council 
Report for Information 

 
Report to: Council – 31 January 2024 
 
Subject:  Urgent Key Decisions 
 
Report of:  The City Solicitor 
 
 
Purpose of report 
 
To report those key decisions that have been taken in accordance with the urgency 
provisions in the Council’s Constitution. 
 
Recommendation 
 
To note the report. 
 
 
Wards affected: All 
 

Alignment to the Our Manchester Strategy Outcomes (if applicable) 

Manchester Strategy outcomes Summary of how this report aligns to the OMS 
A thriving and sustainable city: 
supporting a diverse and 
distinctive economy that creates 
jobs and opportunities 

A highly skilled city: world class 
and home-grown talent sustaining 
the city’s economic success 

A progressive and equitable city: 
making a positive contribution by 
unlocking the potential of our 
communities 

A liveable and low carbon city: a 
destination of choice to live, visit, 
work 

A connected city: world class 
infrastructure and connectivity to 
drive growth 

The Our Manchester Strategy sets out the vision 
for the city to 2025. The decisions listed will 
contribute towards that Strategy. 

  

 
Full details are in the body of the report, along with any implications for 
 

• Equal Opportunities Policy 

Page 171

Item 11



 

• Risk Management 
• Legal Considerations 

 
Financial consequences for the Revenue budget: 
None 
 
Financial consequences for the Capital Budget: 
None 
 
Contact officers: 
 
Name:  Fiona Ledden 
Position: City Solicitor  
Telephone: 0161 234 3087 
Email:  fiona.ledden@manchester.gov.uk 
 
Name:  Donna Barnes 
Position: Governance and Scrutiny Support Officer 
Telephone: 0161 234 3037 
Email:  d.barnes@manchester.gov.uk 
 
Background documents: 
 
The following documents disclose important facts on which the report is based and 
have been relied upon in preparing the report. Copies of the background documents 
are available up to 4 years after the date of the meeting. If you would like a copy, 
please contact one of the contact officers above. 
 
None. 
 

Page 172

Item 11



 

1. Background 
 
1.1 The Constitution (Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules) establishes a 

procedure for dealing with key decisions where action needs to be taken 
immediately for reasons of urgency and is therefore not subject to the normal 
call-in arrangements. 

 
1.2 The procedures states that the chair of the appropriate scrutiny committee 

must agree that both the decision proposed is reasonable in all the 
circumstances, and to it being treated as a matter of urgency. 

 
2. Such decisions are to be reported to the Council.  
 

Page 173

Item 11



 

3. Urgent Key Decisions taken since the last meeting of Council 
 
3.1 A key decision requiring exemption from the call-in procedure that have been taken since the last meeting of Council is listed 

below. 
 

Date Subject Reason for urgency Decision Taken 
by 

Approved by 
 

13 
December 
2023 

To appoint a Mobysoft to 
provide software 
(RentSense) which will 
aid the recovery of rent 
arrears 

The pre-procurement estimated value of this 3 
year contract was below £500k based on historic 
pricing. Following a procurement exercise the 
actual contract value is £640,622. The current 
contract expiry date is 22 December 2023 so 
publishing this decision with 28 days notice will 
result in a break in the provision of the system. Any 
call-in would delay award of the contract until after 
the expiry date and lead to a break in provision of 
the service. This would seriously prejudice the 
legal or financial position of the Council and the 
interests of the residents of Manchester 

Deputy Chief 
Executive and 
City Treasurer 

Councillor A 
Simcock – Chair 
of Resources and 
Governance 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

P
age 174

Item
 11


	Agenda
	Meeting of the Council – Wednesday, 31st January, 2024

	3 Minutes
	7 Proceedings of the Executive
	8 Questions to Executive Members and Others under Procedural Rule 23
	9 Scrutiny Committees
	10 Proceedings of Committees
	18 January 2024 Planning Minutes

	11 Key Decisions Report

